
 

Page 1 of 4 

City of Imperial Council Agenda  
June 4, 2025 

 

   Imperial City Council 

 

James Tucker – Mayor 

Ida Obeso-Martinez – Mayor Pro-Tem 

Stacy Mendoza – Council Member 

Katherine Burnworth – Council Member 

Robert Amparano – Council Member 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA  
Regular Meeting of the Imperial City Council 

City Council Chambers 
220 West 9th Street 

Imperial, CA 92251-1637 

 

June 4, 2025 
Closed Session at 06:00 pm 

Open Session at 07:00 pm 

 

The City Council meetings are live-streamed on the City’s Facebook page at 

www.facebook.com/cityofimperial. By remaining in the room, you are giving permission to be recorded. 

 

Public Comments: Members of the public who wish to speak are encouraged to fill out a Speaker Slip 

and submit it to the City Clerk before the start of the meeting. Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. 

Comments may also be submitted by email to CityClerk@imperial.ca.gov no later than 4:00 p.m. the 

day of the meeting. 

 

Americans with Disabilities Act: Requests for special assistance to participate in the meeting, please 

contact the City Clerk’s Office by calling (760) 355-5303 or emailing CityClerk@imperial.ca.gov. 

Notification of 48 hours before the meeting will enable the city to make reasonable arrangements to 

ensure accessibility to this meeting [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA title II]. 

 

All documents with executive summaries and staff recommendations for open session action items are 

available on the City’s website 72 hours before the meeting www.https://cityofimperial.org/cc-agenda-

archive. Supplemental writings distributed to the City Council within 72 hours of the meeting will also 

be posted online. Written materials shared during the meeting will be available there if prepared by the 

City or afterward if prepared by others. These materials can be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office. 

 

6:00 P.M. CLOSED SESSION 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION ITEMS ONLY:  At this time, members of the public 

may address the City Council on Closed Session items. Pursuant to State Law, the City Council may not 

discuss or take action on issues not on the meeting agenda (Government Code Section 54954.2). If you 

are compensated to communicate with City officials, you may be required to register and/or make certain 

disclosures as a lobbyist. Please see the City Clerk for additional information. There is a time limit of three 

(3) minutes for anyone wishing to address the City Council on these matters.  

 

 

http://www.facebook.com/cityofimperial
mailto:CityClerk@imperial.ca.gov


 

Page 2 of 4 

City of Imperial Council Agenda  
June 4, 2025 

 

CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNS INTO CLOSED SESSION  

 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: The City Council finds, based on advice from the City 

Attorney, that discussion in open session of the following described matter(s) will prejudice the position 

of the City in existing and anticipated litigation.  

 

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS (SECTION 54956.8) 

Property:   APN 063-010-083; 063-010-084; 063-010-085; 063-010-086; 063-010-087;  

   063-010-088 

Agency Negotiator:  Dennis H. Morita, City Manager 

Under Negotiation:  Instructions to Negotiator Concerning Price and Terms 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation - G.C §54956.9 (d)(2) 

Number of Cases: 1 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS – G.C. 54957.6 

Agency Representatives:  City Manager 

Employee Organization:  Imperial Police Officers Association, Teamsters Local 542    

    & Employee Organization Management Supervisory,    

    Professional, Confidential, and Police Captain/Unrepresented 

 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA: The City Council may amend the order, add urgency items, note 

abstentions or “no” votes on consent calendar items, and request consent calendar items be removed from 

the consent calendar for discussion. The City Council may also remove items from the consent calendar 

before that portion of the agenda. The City Council may address these issues by entertaining a formal 

motion.  

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Matters not appearing on the agenda: If you wish to address the City Council 

concerning any item within the City Council’s jurisdiction, please raise your hand and be acknowledged 

by the Mayor. At that time, state your name and address for the record. The Mayor reserves the right to 

place a time limit of three (3) minutes on each person’s presentation.  

 

A. PRESENTATIONS: 

 

A-1.  Finance and Accounting Week Appreciation Proclamation. 

A-2. Budget presentation by Victor Manriquez, Administrative Services Director. 



 

Page 3 of 4 

City of Imperial Council Agenda  
June 4, 2025 

 

B. CONSENT AGENDA: All items appearing under the “Consent Agenda” will be acted upon by the 

City Council with one motion without discussion. Should any Council member or other person request 

that any item be considered separately, that item will then be taken up at the time as determined by the 

Mayor. 

 

B-1. Approval of Warrants Report. 

B-2. Award a Labor Compliance Contract RFP 2025-09 to Labor Compliance Consultants of Southern 

 CA for the CA Irving Parking Lot Project. 

B-3. Declare five (5) Public Services vehicles as surplus and authorize the sale of the vehicles. 

B-4. Authorize the rejection of all bids for the Shop Tank & Aten Tank Modifications and New 

 Ventilation System Installation Project Bid 2025-03 and authorize re-bidding. 

B-5. Approve Resolution No. 2025-15, authorizing the extension of Domestic Water Service for 604 

 W. Murphy Rd (APN 063-020-010) 

B-6. Approve three (3) resolutions for the Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1 (Paseo del 

 Sol and Wildflower Subdivision) 

1. Resolution No. 2025-19, Initiating proceedings for the Annual Levy; 

2. Resolution No. 2025-18, Preliminary Approval of the Engineer’s Report; and, 

3. Resolution No. 2025-17, Intention to Conduct a Public Hearing and Order Levy of 

Assessments 

B-7. Approve three (3) resolutions for the Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2 (Sky Ranch 

 Subdivisions, Zone 2005-03) 

1. Resolution No. 2025-22, Initiating Proceeding for the Annual Levy; 

2. Resolution No. 2025-21, Preliminary Approval of the Engineer’s Report; and 

3. Resolution No. 2025-20, Intention to Conduct a Public Hearing and Order Levy of 

Assessments. 

B-8. Approve three (3) resolutions for the Imperial Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 (Paseo del Sol 

 and Wildflower Subdivision) 

1. Resolution No. 2025-25, Initiating Proceedings for the Annual Levy; 

2. Resolution No. 2025-24, Preliminary Approval of the Engineer’s Report; and, 

3. Resolution No. 2025-23, Intention to Conduct a Public Hearing and Order the Levy of 

Assessments. 

 

C. PUBLIC HEARING (PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION):  

 

C-1. Public hearing and presentation regarding local public employee vacancy levels, recruitment and 

 retention efforts, pursuant to AB 2561. 

 

 Presenter: Kristen Smith, Human Resources Manager 

 Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing regarding the status of staff vacancies, recruitment, 

 and retention efforts, pursuant to AB 2561. Receive and file the report. 

 

D. ACTION ITEMS (DISCUSSION/ACTION): 

 

D-1. Award construction contract for the CA Irving Parking Lot Project (Bid 2025-04, CIP 864). 

 

Presenter: Tony Lopez, Parks and Recreation Director 

Recommendation: Award construction contract to Pyramid Construction for the CA Irving 



 

Page 4 of 4 

City of Imperial Council Agenda  
June 4, 2025 

 

Parking Lot Project in the amount of $106,969.17 and authorize a 20% contingency.  

 

D-2. Approve a sidewalk survey proposal from Precision Concrete Cutting through a Master 

 Services Agreement with JPIA. 

 

 Presenter: David Dale, Public Services Director 

 Recommendation: Approve the sidewalk survey proposal from Precision Concrete Cutting 

 through a Master Services Agreement with JPIA. 

 

D-3. Adopt the plans and specifications and authorize public bidding for the 2025 City of Imperial 

 Manhole and Gravity Sewer Collection System CCTV Video Inspection and Inventory project 

 (Bid 2025-08, CIP 853). 

 

 Presenter: David Dale, Public Services Director 

 Recommendation: Adopt the plans and specifications and authorize public bidding for the 2025 

 City of Imperial Manhole and Gravity Sewer Collection System CCTV Video Inspection and 

 Inventory project (Bid 2025-08, CIP 853). 

 

D-4. Award a construction contract for the Aten Road Sewer Line Replacement Project Phase II 

 (Bid 2025-06, CIP 848). 

 

Presenter: David Dale, Public Services Director 

 Recommendation: Award a construction contract for the Aten Road Sewer Line Replacement 

 Project Phase II (Bid 2025-06, CIP 848) and authorize a 10% contingency. 

 

D-5. Approve the purchase and installation of two screen retrofit sets from Huber Technology for the 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Headworks. 

 

Presenter: David Dale, Public Works Director 

 Recommendation: Approve the purchase and installation of two screen retrofit sets from Huber 

 Technology for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Headworks. 

 

D-6. Approval of Resolution No. 2025-16, Adopting the project list for fiscal year 2025-2026 funded 

 by SB 1. 

 

 Presenter: Othon Mora, Community Development Director 

 Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 2025-16, A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF 

 PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND 

 ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 

 

E. REPORTS: 

E-1. Department Reports  

E-2. City Manager Report 

E-3.  Mayor and Councilmember Reports 

 

ADJOURNMENT: The next regular meeting of the Imperial City Council will be held on Wednesday, 

June 18, 2025.  



b-l

CITY OF I[.l|PERIAL

Check Register Report

BANK: UNION BANK

Date:

Time:

Page:

051n12025

1t28 pn
1

Check
Number

Check
Dale

Void/Slop Reconcile Vendor
Date Dale Number

Status Vendor Name Check Description Amount

l.rNlON BANK Checks

125014
125015

05122125 Ptinled
05122125 Ptinled

05122125 Ptinled
O5t22125 tuinled

0922125 Ptinted

05t2225 Ptinled
05122n5 Ptinled

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

125035

125036

125038

05122125 Ptinled
O5l22n5 Ptinled
O5l22n5 Ptinled

3669
3329
1154

3816

2357

5956

6306

1066

1851

4400

250
7158

8694

8296
674
3765
455

ALEXANDER FORD
ALL VALLEY FENCE AND
MATERIALS
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES
AMERICAN FIDELITY
ASSURANCE
AT&T
AT&T LONG DISTANCE
BABCOCK LABORATORIES.
rNc.
BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS

BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA
BLUETARP FINANCIAL. INC,

BRANDON MORLETT
BRAWLEY ANALYTICAL, INC,

BRENNTAG
BRODART CO.

CALIFORNIA STATE
DISBURSEMENT
CANON U.S.A. INC

CI. SOLUTIONS
COMPUTERSHARE TRUST
COMPANY
COMPUTERSHARE TRUST
COMPANY
COMPUTERSHARE TRUST
COMPANY
CONTROL PARTS

CONTROL SYSTEMS
ENGINEERING
CORE & MAIN LP

COSTCO MEMBERSHIP

COSTCO IA/FIOLESALE

COUNW OF SAN DIEGO, RCS

DANIEL CASILLAS
DARIO SUAREZ

DAVID TURCH &
ASSOCIATES
DAVIS DEWAYNE
DELL MARKETING L,P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
DESERT VETERINARY
GROUP
DOOLEY ENTERPRISES. INC

DYNAMIC CONSULTING
ENGINEERS
EL CENTRO MOTORS
ERIC FLORES

FERGUSON WATERWORKS
#1083
FLOR X GUTIERREZ
FUN EXPRESS, LLC

GALLS, LLC

GRAFFIK SCREEN PRINTING

GRAINGER
GREEN RUBBER.KENNEDY

HERRERA & ASSOCIATES
HOME DEPOT CREDIT
SERVICES

DEAL #160710 81675
2*2027 A3/,60

48,993.33
58.19

125026
125027

125029
125030

125031

125032
125033

125034

125043
125044
125045

12s0$
125047

125048

05t22/25
05t22D5
05t22/25
05122/25

05t22t25
05t22t25
05t22D5
05t22n5

2039042343 82984

251 340024968 JUNE 2025 82748
a2533 43224
9978-3088/498 TRESHTLL*242

001132 83/72
8Pt515993 83292
B,699D274 82552

5t16t25

lVFO-GVOR-CCCN 8307S

D847147 MAY 2025 A2746

'10,273.32

4,765.16

2y40247
338,3716557 s/1525
cE50692-8203 83480

245.05
59,811.16

1,192.14

24o.12
459.50

4,571.18
384.35

1.478.75

40758905 82747
00026840 82543
2441748 RDA TARB 82744

2.651.82
992.S8

4,500.00

492.47

113.70

2,257.61

4 500 00

2.500 00

125039 OSt22r25 Ptinled

125040 05l22n5 Ptinled

1154

1 154

1302

2441749 RDA TTARB 82744

2441768IMPERIAL PFA \^^/r' 82744

125041

125042
05/22125 P,inted

05122125 Ptinled
7U
663

202508390 83494
2025-0322 8U62

356 31

255 m

05t22ns
05t22t25
05t22t25
05t22n5
05t22r25
05t2225

\ /976't97 83474
MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 25126 A2777

46851 83410
25tMPCPDN10 83115
9625-001 0/042 W BRA/VER*146

REIMB€RADING/IMPROV PLANS
82945
MAY 2025

1,086 03
195.00

445 83

1,475.00

115 40

2.200 00

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

514
174

3135
8698
8697

125050 0922n5 Ptinled 5,000.00

125051

125052
125053

125054

0.,22n5 Ptinled
05122125 Ptinled
0922D5 Ptinled
OSl22r25 Ptinled

8695

1056

1573

569

BUILOING PERMIT-REIMB 82946

10813851553 83213
815915 83309

316753 83113

125055

1250fi
05122125 Pti^led
05122125 Ptialed

7094
517

125057

125054

125059

OSl22n5 Ptioled
05122125 Ptinled
05122125 P.i^ted

207
8692

7145

69879 RETSSUED 83117

390797.02 A2948

854 76

560.00

5234U3 83120
9422-0046/704 DA\AN

0880890 83461

959.62

1.416.37

05122n5
o5122t25

05t22n5
o512225
05t22125

05122125

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

9977-02'10/201 E 1oTH

736S5809603 83078

031075766 83't 14

37E2 83099
9491301090 83296
r-107506 83496

'111.30

3,494.84
4U.27
350.19

1.092.22

31.04

12s060

125061
125062
125063

12506/
125065

8699
8552
6327
4456
710
7720

125066

125068

05122125 tuinled
05122125 Ptinled

8399
2096

1308 MAR 2025 82743
904360 83123

64,015 00

2,474.17

125020
125021

125022

125023
125025

169.98

159.47

704 00

50.00



C TY OF IMPER At

Check Register Report

BANK: UNION BANK

051nt2025

128pm
2

Check
Number

Check Status
Date

Void/Stop Reconcjle Vendor
Date Date Number

Vendor Name Check Desc.iption

UNION BANK checks

125069 05/2225 Prinled

125070 05122125 Ptioted

125071 0922125 Pdnled

125072 05122125 Ptinled

4271

120

028

4264

APRTL 2025 83118 70.00

HAZARDOUS INCIDENI 24125 82776 2.405 00

MAY I 2025 23.665 97

3139598 5/13/2s 5 880 00

125073
125074

05122125 Ptinted
05122125 P(inled

125075
125076

05122n5 Pti.,led
05122125 Ptinled

1336

102

221

3187

4136-000022333 83297
5t16t25

2,340.81
't,367.50

2+1276 82944
8755a183122

2,157.20
78.37

125071 05122n5 Ptinled

1254?8 0922125 Ptinled

125079 05122125 Ptin'ted

7777

7147

3980

4727 83497

84020 83484

250430-22 82933

2e12 a2931

0020783663-001 83405

10 850 00

114 y

2 040 00

1,922.05

856.,16

1,507.37

115.21

65.86
3,515.37
2.676.40

2.200.00

1,600.51

1,309.00

97.50
47.24

639.20
249.36

125080
125081

125082
125083

12508r'
125085

125087

125089

125090

125091

125092
125093

125094

125118
125't 19

125120
125121

125122
125123
125124
125125

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Pranled

Prinled
Prinled
Pranted

Prinled
Printed

5033
u72
8644
8696
8700
2901

1647

5230

8091

05t22D5
05122125

05122r25

05t22t25
05122t25

05t22125

05122n5

285866 82740
88033048 82572

5t16t25
9920-0398/231 0 SHELBY t\4ARtE

86't7-0152241 GAEBRTAL

103245916 83/|91

301438C 8311

125088 05122n5 Ptinled

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

125095

125097

125098

05122125 Ptinled
oll22n5 Ptinled
05122125 Prinled

1190

8669
8633

1251co
125102

05122125 Prinled

05122125 Ptinled
4481

389S

5t16t25
567268 82949
5t16125

326.,{0

1.126.89

264.00

2687,137246 82699
22903 a3482

552 22

05t22125

05t22t25
05/22t25
05t22t25
0.5/22125

05t22r25

10/740 83121

NOTARY LIVE SCAN.REIMB. 829.13

96't4-1469/275 ROSARTTO

7@t 83465
6159513 83293

125103 05/22125 Ptinted

125104
125105

0922125 P.inled
0 22n5 Ptinted

9122,0005l700 SUNRTSE
4511 83305

170 46

300.00

125106

125107

125116
125117

Og22r25 Ptinled
05l22DS Ptinled
OSl22f25 Ptialed
0g22n5 tuinled

8516
3698
957
3975

AR8221197 83109
ZP0MR101 83222
rN-0000104592 83469
79069 83495

303.84
410.63
789.21

'17.o97.62

1239

5706
4569
3262
5257

135

8087
3751

425.41

5,586.70
1,380.00

11,918.54
13,412.71

72.09
1,300.00

590,057.35

o5122125

o5122125

05122125

o5122125

05122125

05122125

0512225

7332€ 83409
als7s3178 83215
2267 834fi
139475 JUNE 2025 82745
30215 AU52
675 WATEN 4nGt9/25 83490
236-1 BAI.ANCE-REV!SED 834001

551692R 82935

0ate

Time

Pager

HUMANE SOCIETY OF
IMPERIAL
IMPERIAL COUNTY FIRE
DEPT.
IMPERIAL IRRIGATION
DISTRICT
IMPERIAL IRRIGATION
DISTRICT
IMPERIAL LANDFILL. 4I36
ll\,lPERlAL POLICE OFFICERS
ASSN,
IMPERIAL PRINTERS
IMPERIAL TRUSS & LUMBER
co.
IMPERIAL VALLEY AIR
CONDITIONI
IMPERIAL VALLEY CHRYSLER
DODGE
IMS INFRASTRUCTURE
MANAGEMENT
INFO SEND INC,

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES
JESSICA HURTADO
JORGE RAYA
KAYLA HENDERSON
KIMBALL MID\A/EST

LA BRUCHERIE IRRIGATION
SUPPLY
LAEOR COMPLIANCE
CONSULTANTS
LEE TIRE CO.

LINCOLN LIFE
LORENA GALINDO
LORNE JONES
I\4AO GRAPHIX PRINTING &
MALLORY SAFETY AND
SUPPLY LLC
MISSIONSOUARE . 304257
NAPA AUTO PARTS

NC CHILD SUPPORT
CENTRALIZED
O'REILLY
PLUMMER UPHOLSTERY
SHOP
POOL & ELECTRICAL
PRODUCTS.
PRESTON SOTO
PUBLIC AGENCY RISK
MANAGEMENT
OUICK OUACK CAR WASH
RESIDEO LLC

SC FUELS
SEAL MASTER OF
SOUIHERN
SHERWN.WLLIAMS
SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP
SIERRA MATERIAL TESTING
SIMNSA HEALTH PLAN

SKM ENGINEERING LLC

SOCALGAS
SOULESS INDUSTRIES
STERNDAHL ENTERPRISES
LLC

253.31

1996

101

5476
8701

2028
2@

8693
3748



CITY OF II\IPERIAL

Check Register Report

BANK: UNION BANK

0alel

Time

Page

6mtN25
1:28 pm

3

Check
Number

Check Status
Date

Void/Stop Reconcile Vendor
Date Date Number

Vendor Name Check Desc.iption

UNION BANK ChecKs

125130
125132

05122D5 Pti.,led
0922n5 Ptinled

125126
125127

125128
125129

05122f25 Ptinled
Osl22n5 Ptinled
osl22n5 Ptiated
05122125 Ptinled

64't 6
7863
104

7443

SUN DATA SUPPLY
TARYN JOHNSON
TEAMSTERS, LOCAL 542

TEXAS LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY
TUCKER MINI SIORAGE
UNITED WAY OF IMPERIAL
COUNTY
USIQ, INC,

VERITONE.INC,
VERIZON WRELESS
VISION TRAFFIC CONTROL
rNc.
WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY
WEBB AND ASSOCIATES
\AECK LABORATORIES, INC

XPRESS LUBE

AIRWAVE COMMUNICATIONS

tNV0293803 83356
REFUND-HOUSEHOLD CREDIT 83403

5tt6t25
5t16t25

240 33

22 00

2 098 50

1,147 12

7708

944

JUNE 2025-UNrr 358 83392
5t16125

125 00

600

1251X1

125135

1251

125137

125138

125139

125140
125141

0512225 Ptinled
OSl22l25 Ptinled
05122n5 Ptinled
05122n5 Ptinled

8675
7567
611

8626

05t22D5
o5t22n5
05t22125

05t2225
05t27 t25

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

Printed

't715

1568

8558

487

023

288899541 82695
886315 83124

6112818711
872 83/,6A

14.47300
2,500 00

846.60
884.67

83231345 83464
ARtV0008299 83478
w5E0831 8357
215448 82950
450747 80211

603.83
53,021.70

1,705.00

92.68
26.2U 47

TotalChecks: 106

Total Payments: 106

Total Payments: 106

checks Total (oxcluding void checks):

Bank Total (excluding void checks):

crand Total (excluding void checks):

1,056,822.59

1,056,822.59

1,056,822.59



DATE SUBMITTF]I)

SUBMITTED BY

I'ATE ACTION RF]QUIREI)

5i27t25

Parks and Recrcalion

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda Item No. b-a
x

1. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR LABOR COMPUANCE SERVICES IN THE
AMOUNT OF $5,OOO.OO TO LABOR COMPUANCE CONSULTANTS OF
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA. LLC.

ST]BJIJCT DISCUSSION/ACTION:

BACK(iROL]ND/St]MMARY:

In May 2025 a competitive RFP process was conducted by the Parks and Recreation
Department. Staff released RFP #2025-09 for labor compliance services for the CA Irving
parking Lot Project. On May 27. 2025 we received 2 proposals.

After careful review of submitted proposals staff is requesting City Council award the contract to
Labor Compliance Consultants of Southern California, LLC.

FINANCE
INI'TIALS rlt",*l

FISCAL IMPACT: $5.000.00 RULE 3 l0 GRANT FUNDS

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is the department's
recommendation for City Council to award the contract to Labor
Compliance Consultants of Southern Califomia. Ll-C.

CIl'Y
MANAGER s

INI IIALS

MANA(;ER-S RI:( OVllllLNDAIION

W,4hrl4/'b'tl-

NlonoN

SECONDEI)
AYES:
NAYtiS:
ABSI]NT:

Rt_Jl.( t[D
Dt l'l,RREI)

APPROVI,D ( )

DISAPPRoVED 0

6i.li 25

COLNCIL ACl'ION
PI,'BLIC HEARINC REQUIRED
RESOI,t]TION
ORDINANCE IST READINC
ORDINANCE 2\D READINC
CITY Ct,ERK'S INITIALS

DF]PARTMF,NT INVOI,VF:t):
PARKS AND RF]CREATION

1. Labor Compliance Consultants of Southern California, LLC. In the amount of $5,000.

2. MVN and Associates, LLC. in the amount of $9,510.00

DF]P I" INITIAI,

( )

)(

REFERRTJD TO:



Agenda ltem No. o-v
DATE SUBMIT-TED

SUBMITTED BY

DATE ACTION REQUIRED

RESOLUTION
0RDINANCL- IST READINC
ORDINANCF: 2ND READINC
CITY Ct-FRK'S INITIAT-S

5i 28/15

06t04t25

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

COUNCIL AC'I'ION
PtlBt IC IlI,ARI\C RLQI'lRI:D

x)
)

)

)

)

)

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION: Yehicre Surprus

l. Approvol lo declore vehicles os surplus
2. Authorize sole of vehicles declored surplus

DEPARTMENTINVOLVED: PUBLICSERVICES
BACKGROLIND/SUMMARY:

The Public Services Deportmenl is requesling the lmperiol City Council's opprovol to declore lhe
following vehicles os surplus:

Yeor Moke/Model Tvpe
2003 Ford Fl50 Possenqer
2006 Ponlioc G6 Possenqer
241 4 Dodqe Rom 3500 Ulility Truck
201 4 Dodqe Rom 3500 Utility Truck
201 4 Dodqe Rom 2500 Flotbed

Although the vehicles remoin technicolly operotionol, lheir recunjng molfunctions present
significonl chollenges thol impoct both finonciol efficiency ond operotionol reliobility. These
issues result in increosed moinlenonce costs, frequent disruplions fo service, ond o reduced level
of dependobility, even when repoirs tempororily restore funclionolily.

The decision io surplus these vehicles, despite their operobiliiy, is o prooclive meosure oimed ot
prioritizjng long-term cost sovings, sofely, ond uninterrupted operolions.

Surplusing these vehicles from the fleet will ollow us to reinvest in newer vehicles thot better olign
with the orgonizotion's operotionol stondords.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

FINANCE INITIAI-S

U N^5

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the deporlmeni's recommendotion to opprove
lhe vehicles os surplus ond ouihorize sole of lhe
vehicles.

DEPT. INITIALS

MANAGER'S RECOMMF.NDATION

G,tAo't

MOTION:

REJECTED
DEFERRED

SECONDED
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED
DISAPPROVED

o
()

REFERRL,D'fO

Pt lll I( S[RVI( Ls



2003 FORD F-150 1

BODY TYPE: CREW CAB PICKUP

MILES:154455
Vehicle runs and drives. A/C is malfunctionang and motor leaks oil.

'fllt 
4

I

fi

I

I
I

!

v

aLr t
,. D\b

tll,

n



2005 PONTTAC G6

BODY TYPE: SEDAN

MILES:50524
Vehicle runs and drives. Vehicle's exterior paint is deteriorated.

r--!

!
L

r
T

t,

!

\

\/

&
J

I

I
lf,:IlrI \

u
,/



20014 RAM 3500
BODY TYPE: CAB & CHASSIS

MItES:80337
Vehicle runs and drives. Has motor issues.

,

H
f

,'r t,'l rE\

.,t

il

l-"

if

0I

a

0
I

o

tl

I

&



!

2014 RAM 3500
BODY TYPE: CAB & CHASSIS

MItES:55832
Vehicle runs and drives. lt has problems while starting and overheats.

I
E\

t
F

J1''rl

I

-

I--a I,I

11

-/

I

I
][

i a I
I

ih.-I
II I

)I( IJ L

.i
r
I

''Au
)

\

?

1



2014 RAM 2500 (FLATBED)

BODY TYPE: STANDARD CAB PICKUP

MILES:63294.8
Vehicle runs and drives. lt has problems while starting

.{

l.ilt l 4
T

I ,

l

1
a t$ I

If -,

v )
-3.,

1
I 7

\; 1
t'

+-
I

)

'1

rl
/4

7)

r
I,

a
a



b-+
DATF SI]BMITTED

SUBMITTED BY

DATE ACTION R€QUIRED

5t28t25

Public Services

6t4t25

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda ltem No.

COUNCIL ACTION
PUBLIC IIEARING REQUIRED
R-ESOLT]TION
oRDtNANCE tt- READING
onorNAtcE 2no nenowc
CITY CI F,RK'S INITIAI S

(X)

StrBJl:( I DISCUSS ION/ACTION:
. Reject all bids for the Shop Tank & Aten Tank Modifications and New VentjlataonI System lnstallation Project in the City of lmperial; Bid-202 3 and Authorize Re-bidding

of the Pro.iect

DEPARI MLNT INVOLVED: PubIiC SETiCCS

BACKCROUND/SUMMARY:
On April 2. 2025. he City Council aulhori2ed city slafi lo carry oul a compelilive publlc bid for the above descnbed projed. Stafr releas€d a
Notica to gadd€ls publish€d in fle Holtvillo Tribune, th€ Caty wobsite and plan rooms to solicit proposels hom conlraclo.s to completa lhe
proiect. Bids were opened on May 8. 2025.

The Cily received lwo (2) bids: S€€ Exhibit'1'- "Bid Op€ning Act' for information.

1 Total lndustries - $1,315,639.00
2. Spiess Construclion - S1,380.645.00

After reviewing all bids. straff has determined that rgecting all submissions and re-biddang the prolecl is in lhe ci9's besi inlerest.

lf apprcved for re-bidding, lhe proiecl will bid in accordance with lhe Public Conlracl Code (PCC). The proiect plans and specificalions will be
on fle wilh lhe City Clerk at City Hall loceled at 420 S. lmperialAve, lmperiel, CA92251.

FISCAL IMPACT: NOT TO EXCEED
Funds to cover associated cosls will be expended from onte.prise funds. Projecl is in the
FY 24-25 Capital lmprovemenl Plan.

CIP Prqecl No. 842, Aten Tank Rehab - $1,200,000

FIN AN('1,
INITIAI,S

STA FI' RT,COMMENDATION

approve request DEPT, INI'I'IAI-S

MANA(il,R S REC O I\r l\41- N I)Al ION

CITY
MANACIR's
INI'TIALS

MO I tON

APPROVED ( )

DISAPPROVED 0
RFIF('I Il I)
DEI:ERREI)

(

(

)

)

RI IJI RRI]D TO

uA"5

ilNv|/l
-_-----r----_

SECONDF,D:
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT:



EXHIBIT "l"

BID Opening Act

Bids received by ktmee 0 At\a
Were opened at a- on 5 t /zs-
By frtme< Agur\Lt

Witnessed by Signature

hi

Company Total Bid Amount

3sD b*f'. ot-

lo lvdtaslrtes I , 3ts, b3g. cr

Bids were given to U,\Lll eI Qvt) for study and

Brd Bond

A

recom ndation for City Council

Date

Shop Tank & Aten Tank Modifications and New Ventilations System
Bid No. 2025-03

.)



b-6
DAT| St UMl l IED

SL;I]MI II'tD BY
COIlIMUNI'I'Y

DEVET-OPMENT
DIREC'I'OR

Ma\ 28 2025

DATE ACTION REQtllRLt) .lune 1. l0l5

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

ORDINA\CE IST RIAI)ING
ORDINANCE 2\D READIN(;
CII Y CLERK'S INII'IALS

SUBJLC'I DISCUSSION/ACTION:

DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE TO PROPERTIES OUTSIDE CITY BOUNDARIES.

I. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2025- I5 FOR THE EXTENSION OF DOMESTIC WATER
SERVICE FOR APN 063-020.0 IO

2. APPROVE SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE

DIlPARTl\4[NT
INVOLVED:

CO14Mt]NI1 Y DEVELOPMEN'T

BACKGROLND/SUMMARY:

Property Owner. Joshua Quintero, is requesting water services at his property located at 604 W, Murphy Road (,{PN:
063-020-010). Mr. Joshua Quintero submifted an Encroaqhment Permit on April 24.2025.

For details, see the attached Exhibit "A" illustmting the location ofthe exisring City's Domestic Water main in the
vicinity of said parcel. The fully executed "Will Serve" letter is attached as Exhibit "B". Resolution No.2025-15 is
attached as Exhibit "C". Service Agreement for Domestic Water Service is anached as Exhibit "D"

FISCAL IMPACT: NO FISCAL IMPACT ADMIN
SERVICES
SIC\
INII IALS

u l-^"1

IiI'AFF RECoMMENDATIoN

l. Staffrecommends approval ofDomestic Water service
outside ofcity boundaries for APN 063-020-010.

2. Staff recommends approval of Domestic Water Service
Agreement

DEPT,
INITIAI-S t)^ 

e+*A^r<-
CITY
NIANACI:R'S
IN'ITIAI-S WA

\,to llo\

SECONDED
AYE S:

NAYES:

ABSF]N'I':

APPROVED 0
DISAPPROVL,D 0

RL.JL.C I trl)
D EFE RRED

(

{

)

)

Agenda Item No.

COIINCII ACTION {r)
PIJBLIC I IEARIN(; REQT]IRED 0
RTISOI,UTION 0

MANACI--R'S RtCOI\4 Ml,N lrATlON i

REFERRED I'O:



EXHIBIT A



!I
a

IH
f

I

I

III

604 W Murphy Road

Ifi rII I
T

-T

a Er aaIt

G

aI
aIIaEI

a

IIII
a

I
T

f,

tL

I

I l T

II

'itt
,ll
t l_

I

I

II

!
a't

:l
1

II

III
il

{
:

I
o
o
&
11.'

Oz
z

l

?
?
t

III
aa I

IflI
II ,iir L

OWNER OF THIS PARCEL
IS REQUESTING WATER
SERVICES iB

I

t

T

lI

iil. !-

H

N

{I

I
II

l*,7\
-t

-f

J,
t

I

I

I
I

I
I
I

rL

)

il II
ll

I

T

I
I t

Existing 6" Waterline

APN 063-020-010

I

Murphy Road

I
I

I

tlal

L
Tta

I
!
it

I
-

II

I

a.t

f
-11
ul

I
I

llrralallalatltlalllllllarrrlllrtttratttttttlrallttaatttrarrlrrrrrrtrrrrarrrrrr

I H
I

v*II tT
a

lFrT
TI

-

r
I

I
I

-

-l
I

+ I

Irit

L

t

t'

I t
I

L

ta

/

!

I

*it,i
II

I
I!l

J

,l

't,, = 23/ ft Sub Title o4t2312025

-nE,n 
C m, tep.r3€i6 at|irr, drdrt d lt..Ed_g.ogndr r{6ln&o.1t}r. p.ud.d rE ar. rd SrE-rr.. oaeri ndd cdxhdl5 lob. er! oa cdrpl.re..orE tr.c{rffi ,E .r4oGaaa Lf fd mod l+toda€ i|b.rEEr

_, t



EXHIBIT B



I I

3arl
CITY COUNCIL

James Tucker - Mayor
lda Obeso-Martinez - lttrayor Pro-Tem
Robert Amparano - Council Member

Katherine Bu rnworth- Council Member
Stacy Mendoza -Council Member

01y of

California

CITYCLERK

Kristina Shields

Moy 21 , 2025

Joshuo Quinlero
604 W. Murphy Rood
lmperiol, CA 92251

RE: Wolet "Will SeNe" Leftet
Fot 604 W. Murphy Rd
lmpeiol CA 92251
APN 063-020-0t0

Deor Mr. Quintero.

The City of lmperiol hos the copocily'lo provide odequote domeslic woter supply service to the
property ot 604 W. Murphy Rood, lmperiol, CA 92251, on unincorporoled oreo within the County
of lmperiol.

Pleose consider this correspondence os o "Will-Serve" lelter which worronlies woter cdpocily
specificolly for the obove-referenced proiect up to Moy 21 ,2026.

Should you hove ony queslions, or need odditionol informotion, pleose do nol hesilote lo
contoct our office ot your eorliest convenience ol ony of lhe following numbers:

355-3336 Public Services
355-l 152 - Communily Development

60
60

7

7

o
b

Sincerely,

Dovid Dole
Public Service Director

Othon Moro
Community Developmenl Director

420 souTH vpERtALAVENUE . |MPERIAL CA 92251 ' TEL (760) 355-437r . FAX (760)355-4718 . WWW CITYOFIMPERIAL ORG

=!



EXHIBIT C



RESOLUTION NO.2025-I5
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL AUTHORIZING

DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE CONNECTION FOR 604 W. MURPHY ROAD (APN O6J-
O2O.O1O), PROPERTY LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL.

WHEREAS. there is currently no domestic water servicing 604 W. Murphy Road (APN 063-
020-0 l0) a property located outside of the C ity of Imperial; and

WHEREAS. Mr. Joshua Quintero, owner of said property. filed an application to the Local
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) requesting their approval to establish service with the City;
and

WHEREAS, Mr. Joshua Quintero understands and accepts that the extension of domestic water
service to the property at 604 W. Murphy Road is strictly for that property and will not extend to any
other properties without LAFCO and City approvals: and

WHEREAS, a "Will Serve" letter was issued on May 21.2025 stating that the City of Imperial
has the capacity to provide adequate domestic water service for one ( I ) single lamily dwelling to the
property at 604 W. Murphy Road after Public Services Department and Community Development
Department reviewed the request.

NOW THERf,FORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Imperial hereby
agrees:

To authorize the City of Imperial to approve a water service connection for 604 W
Murphy Road. as outlined.

b. The City Attorney is authorized to make minor typographical changes to this Resolution
that does not change the substance of this Resolution:

a

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Signed:
James Tucker, Mayor

Signed:
Kristina Sh ields. Citv Clerk

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was passed and adopted by the City Councilof the
City of Imperial on the,lth day ofJune. 2025.



EXHIBIT D



RECORDINC REQUESTED ANI)
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

CITY OF IMPERIAL
ATTN:

l his Space Reserved for Recorder Only Cov. Code 27361 .6

AGREEMENT FOR DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE

This agreement, made and entered into between the City of Imperial, a municipal
corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City" and Joshua Quintero for 604 W Murphy (APN
063-020-010). hereinafler ret'erred to as "Consumer" collectively referred to as "Parties."

WHEREAS, Consumer is the owner of certain real property located outside the city
limits of the City of Imperial ("Property"); and

WHE.REAS. the Property is more particularly described in the attached Exhibit A: and

WHEREAS. Consumer is desirous of connecting to City's existing domestic water
service system for domestic use; and

WHEREAS. City is agreeable to providing domestic water service to Consumer's real
property. as more particularly described below, upon certain conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions
herein, City and consumer agree as follows:

l. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein by
this reference.

2. City hereby grants to Consumer permission to connect to the Domestic Water
Service System ("System") to the property of Consumer. more particularly described in the
attached Exhibit A which is incorporated by this reference.

3. Consumer agrees to be bound by all the ordinances. rules and regulations of the
City pertaining to Domestic Water. and to pay such rates lor said service as set forth herein and
as lhe City Council of the City may fix by ordinance. resolution or motion duly adopted or
amended lrom time to time.

4. Parties agree that City will not extend its System or pay to allow extension ofthe
System to enable Consumer to connect to the System. and that Consumer will. at Consumer's
own expense. install such infrastructure as may be required to connect to the System. Consumer
agrees that all material and labor for installing any such inlrastructure shall be at the expense of

5/21/2025 Page 1 of 3

RECITALS



Consumer and that such inf'rastructure must be properly constructed to City specifications in a
good and workmanlike manner and meet the reasonable satisfaction ofthe building inspector of
the City. Plans lbr such installation shall be approved by City prior to installation. The design
will be such that existing users will not be adversely impacted.

5. Consumer shall. at Consumer's sole expense. obtain all permits. including. but not
limited to. any necessary encroachment permits. Additionally. Consumer shall. at Consumer's
sole cost, obtain approval tiom the lmperial County [-ocal Agency Formation Commission lor
obtaining the service described herein.

6. Upon application for a permit, Consumer shall pay to City a connection fee as set

forth by the City Council in an amount as may be established from time to time and in effect at

the time of payment. Additionally, Consumer shall pay any other applicable fees and charges.
including, but not limited to, monthly fees and reimbursement for previously installed
infrastructure as determined by City.

7. This agreement authorizes Domestic Water for the real Property described in
Exhibit A. In the event any portion ofsaid property is sold. transferred. conveyed or occupied by
any party and/or parties other than Consumer. this Agreement shall terminate as to the portion
transferred and. said party and/or parties must apply to the City for a permit. pay the permit fee

required by the City, and enter into an agreement with the City for Domestic Water. It is agreed
that non-compliance with this paragraph by Consumer, or any person holding under or through
Consumer or a grantee of Consumer, will justify the City in immediately terminating
Consumer's water service.

8. Parties agree that the Domestic Water service provided to Consumer under this
agreement shall be for one single family dwelling only. In the event Consumer wishes to have

City water to any additional residential dwelling. Consumer must make separate application and

enter an agreement for Domestic Water service. City may grant or deny such application in its
sole and unfettered discretion. Parties further agree that the water service provided to Consumer
under this agreement shall be used for domestic personal use only lor Consumer's residence and

not commercial or industrial use

9. Consumer agrees, as a condition of receiving Domestic Water service from the

City. to voluntarily participate in an assessment district. should one be formed. to construct
inl-rastructure improvements. The infrastructure improvements anticipated to be constructed
include water lines, storm drains, roadway improvement and street lighting improvement.
Consumer is hereby put on notice that the assessment district improvement will be funded by an

increase in propeny taxes for all parcels included within the boundary ofthe district. Further. by
the execution olthis agreement. Consumer hereby gives its irrevocable consent Io the annexation
of the real property described herein to the City of Imperial, when at such times as the City
Council of the City determines it would be in the best inlerest of City to annex said property.

10. The parties agree that this agreement shall be recorded in the official records of
the Imperial County Recorders office so that any successors in interest to Consumer ofthe real
property described in Exhibit A shall have notice of the re-application provisions contained
above.

5/21/2025 Page 2 of 3



CITY:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto set their hands this 4'r'day of June. 2025

CONSUMER:

CITY OF IMPERIAL

By:
Mayor

ATTEST:

By
City C lerk

5/21/2025 Page 3 of 3



EXHIBIT A
604 W Murphy Road

III
! r )

I
II I

rI

I r,a

rI

*

T

a

I

a a
t'

iI I
-

-II

au

II a I
aI a

I TI I a

It
I

I
II

I I

trfr E a

tI
a

! I IIr

I
I

I
a ;-

-l f OWNER OF THIS PARCEL
Irs nEouesrNG wATER@I

nt :-

H 5l
I

tt\

ITt
I I

I I
l II

il

1
+t

I

J, g I
t I I

-,

I
APN 063-020-010

II
f, I

5rfl

ltllat!ttttalttltala,rrrralrltlrl.ralrlalltltlaltllllltaralllltlllllllrrtrrllll

Ei

T
I

Existing 6" Waterline I a

!
ta

!t

{ E
lVurphy Road

r
III

T I
F
III
tI

G

Bl t IIrI
IIa

I

-

I

t I

-1t I

l_

I:
'fI

l

t

I

)

t
ll ,.

ll
I

I H
I
'l

I,l

1" = 2UR Sub Title o4t23t2025

Th6 
'r+ 

m.y,t9rEier ! r n6ud dtd.y oa GtrrEd q..gr.dE nf..iri6.r Ddr p.Dnd€d rElr on ir mr qurin€. o, IirE f.ld csdoo.rs To b. gt! oa cstu€r€ .cct.rr. Cesa
cfrrrcr rE rcryr!3ale taff lo trE6r upiDa€ hio''naE r

I

-l i

o
ot
LJJ

Oz
z

I

a

t



DATE SUBMITTED

SUBMI TED BY

DATE ACTION REQUIRED

Agenda ltem No. lrb-u
CotlNclt. ACTION (x)
PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED ( )

RTTSOLUTION (r)
ORDTNANCE IST READING ( i
ORDINANCE 2\O READING 0
CITY CLERK'S INITIALS I

6 { l0l5

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

SI rl].ll:('l RESOLUTION OF INTENTION:
IMPERIAL L4rVDSC,4Ptr' MAINTENANCf, DISTRICT NO. I (Paseo del Sol and
Wildfl ower Subdivisions)

DF]PARTMENTINVOLVED: FINANCE

B.\( K(;l{()t \l) st \t\1.\RY

The Ciry Councilrvill adopt these three resolulions for intent to initiate. levy an assessment for Fiscal

Year ("FY") 202512026. order an engineer's report, and set a public hearing. Follorving the intent meeling

and Adoption ofthe resolutions. a public hearing will be held on June 18,2025 to take testimony and

adopt resolutions to accept the engineer's report and approve a levy for FY 202512026.

The proposed FY 202512026 annual assessment is $504.24 per Parcel for Wildflower and $488.50 per

Parcel for Paseo del Sol, which are equal to the maximum assessment rates allowed.

FISCAL IMPACT: NOT TO ExCEED

The funds generated are used for the purposcs stated in the original formation ofthis
district. Each )ear the assessments on individual parcels may bc increased up lo the
Consum€r Price lndex.

ADMIN
SERVICES
SICN INITIALS

ilr.n1

S1'AI]I] RECOMMENDAllON

Staffrecommends that the Cit) Council adopt thc three resolutions initiating the
2025/2026 annual assessments.

I)t,l, r. r\lll,\t_s {l'^1:

MANACE]R'S RECOMMENDATION

Appro!c as presented.

(.I IY
NIANA(iFlR's
INIIIAI-S

ort'44

Mo f IoN .II) ADOPT

IMPERIAI, I-ANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I
( l) Res. No. 2025-19. lnitialing Proceedings tbr the Annual Le\):
(2) Res. No. 2025-18. P.eliminaD Approlal oithe Engineer's Report: and.
(l) Res. No. 2025-17. lntention 1o Conduct a l'ublic Hearing and Order lhe Le!) ofAssessments

APPROVI]D ()
DISAPPROVIJI) 0

I
(

)

)

SECONDED
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT: REIERRT]D II)

REJECTEI)
I)EF'E RRE D

5t2't t2025
SPECIAL TAX

ADMINISTRATOR



RESOLT TIO\ \O.2025-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COTINCIL OF THE CITY
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, FOR PRELIMINARY
APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER'S ANNTIAL LEVY
REPORT REGARDING THE IMPERIAL LANDSCAPE
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I; AND THE LEVY AND
COLLECTION OF ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS RELATED
THERETO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

WHEREAS. the City Council has, by previous Resolution. ordered the preparation of the

Fiscal Year (*FY") 2025/2026 Annual Engineer's Report (the "Report") in connection with the

City of Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. I (the "District"). and the levy and collection
ofassessments against lots and parcels of land within the tenitory for the Fiscal Year commencing

July l. 2025. and ending June 30. 2026. lo pay the maintenance. servicing. and operation of the

improvements. pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Aa d 1972, Part 2 of
Divisktn 15 ol'the Streets ond Highways Code of Calilbrnia, beginning with Section 22500 (the

"Act")l and.

WHEREAS. the District Assessment Engineer has prepared and filed vnith the City Clerk
and the City Clerk has now presented to the City Council the Engineer's Report entitled "City of
Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1 (Paseo del Sot and Wildflower) Engineer's Report
Fiscal Year 202512026": and.

WHEREAS. the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Report as

presented, and is preliminarily satisfied with the District, the improvements described therein. each

and all ofthe budget items and documents as set forth therein. and is satisfied that the proposed

annual assessments. on a preliminary basis. have been spread in accordance with the special

benefits received from the improvements. operation. administration, maintenance and sen ices to

be performed within the District. as set forth in said Report.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE tT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The above recitals are all true and correct

Section 2: The Report as presented, consists ofthe following:

o A Description of Improvements:

o The Annual Budget (Costs and Expenses ofServices, Operations and Maintenance):

o The Method ofApportionment and the proposed amount to be levied and collected against

each Assessor Parcel within the District for FY 202512026:

o The District Roll containing the Levy for each Assessor Parcel Number within the Districtl
and



o An exhibit showing the boundaries of the District.

Section 3: The District and the associated assessments as outlined in the Engineer's Report are in
compliance with the provisions olCalifomia Constitution Article XIIID.

Section 4: The Report is hereby approved on a preliminary basis. and ordered to be flled in the

Office ofthe Citl Clerk as a permanent record and to remain open to public inspection.

Section 5: The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution. and the

minutes olthis meeting shall so reflect the presentation ofthe Report.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held

on the 4th day ofJune. 2025.

JAMES TUCKER.
Mayor

ATTEST:

KRISTINA SHIET-DS.
Citv Clerk

l. Kristina Shields, City Clerk of the City of Imperial. California. hereby certify that the

foregoing Resolution No. 2025-18 was duly adopted at a meeting of the Imperial City Council at

its meeting held on the 4th day ofJune, 2025. by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
lmperial. Califomia. on June 4. 2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COTINCIL OF THE CITY
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, INITIATING
PROCEEDIN(;S FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE IMPERIAL LANDSCAPE
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I, FOR FISCAL YEAR
202512026; AND ORDERING THE PREPARATTON OF AN
ENGINEER'S REPORT IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS. the City Council by previous Resolutions formed and approved maxrmum

annual assessment rates for the City ol Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. I (the

"District"). pursuant to the provisions of rhe Landscuping and Lighting Act d 1972, Part 2 oJ'

Diyision t5 ol rhe Streets arul Highv'ays ('ode of Calilbrnia. beginning v'ith Scction 22500 (the
"Act"): and.

WHEREAS. the Act provides the City Council the authority to annually levy and collect
assessments for the District on the Imperial County tax roll on behalf of the District to pay the

maintenance. services. and operation of facilities and improvements related thereto. and.

WHEREAS. the City Councit desires to initiate proceedings for the levy and collection ol
annual assessments against lots and parcels ol land within the District for Fiscal Year ("FY")
202512026. pursuant to provisions ofthe Act. and.

WHEREAS. the City Council has retained Koppel & Gruber Public Finance ("K&G
Public Finance") for the purpose ofpreparing and filing an Engineer's Report (the "Report") with
the City Clerk in accordance with the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, AS FOLLOWS:

Section l: The C'ity Council hereby appoints K&G Public Finance as the District's Assessment

Engineer. and orders K&G Public Finance to prepare the Report conceming the District and the

levy of assessments for FY 202512026. in accordance wilh Chapter l. Article 1, beginning v'ilh
Section 22565 of the Act.

Upon completion olthe Report. said Repo( shall be tlled with the City Clerk. who shall submit

the same to the City Council lor its consideration pursuant lo Section 22i86 ofthe Act.

Section 2: The improvements include but are not limited to the operation. administration,
maintenance and servicing ollandscaping and appurtenant facilities and expenses associated with
the District thar were installed as part of the property development within the District and uill be

maintained by the City of Imperial or their designee though annual assessments. The Repon
describes in more detail the items to be maintained and serviced.

RESOLTTTION NO. 2025-19



Section 3: The City Council hereby determines that to provide the improvements described in
Section 2 ofthis Resolution, it is necessary to levy and collect assessments against lots and parcels

within the District.

Section 4: The City Manager of the Cityof Imperial is hereby authorized and directed to take any

and all action necessary and appropriate in connection with the annual levy and collection of
assessments for the District.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held

on the 4th day ofJune. 2025.

JAMES TUCKER.
Mayor

ATTEST:

KRISTINA SHIELDS,
City Clerk

I. Kristina Shields. City Clerk of the Citl of Imperial. Califomia, hereby certify that the

foregoing Resolution No. 2025-19 was duly adopted at a meeting ofthe Imperial City Council at

its meeting held on the 4'h day ofJune. 2025.by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
Imperial, California, on June 4, 2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk



RESOLT-rTrON NO. 2025-l 7

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS
INTENTION TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
MATTER OF ASSESSMENTS AND ORDER THE LEVY OF
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I. FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

WHEREAS, the City Council has by previous Resolution, initiated proceedings for the

levy and collection of assessments against lots and parcels of land within the City ol Imperial
Landscape Maintenance District No. I (the "District") for Fiscal Year ("FY") 202512026. pursuant

to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 ol Dit'ision l5 ofthe Streets

and Highu,al,s Code ol California. beginning u'ith Section 22500 (the *Act")l and.

WHEREAS, the Act provides for the City Council to levy and collect the annual

assessments for the District on the lmperial County tax roll on behalf of the District to pay the

maintenance. services. and operation olfacilities and improvements related thereto; and.

WHEREAS, the City Council has retained Koppel & Gruber Public Finance as the District
Assessment Engineer lor the Annual Levy olthe District. and to prepare and file an Engineer's
Reporr (the "Report") with the City Clerk in accordance with the Act, and that said Report has

been prepared and filed with the City Clerk and presented to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, AS FOLLOWS:

Section l: The above recitals are all true and correct.

Section 2: The City Council hereby declares its intention to levy and collect assessments against

lots and parcels olland within the District for the Fiscal Year commencing July I . 2025. and ending

June 30. 2026. to pay the costs and expenses of the improvements which are described in the

Report. The City Council finds that the public's best interest requires such levy and collection.

Section 3: The territory of the District is within the boundaries and jurisdiction of the District.
and the Citl' of Imperial within the County of lmperial. State of California. The boundarl map

describing the District is on file *'ith the City Clerk and is hereby incorporated b1"rel'erence into
this Resolution. The District is designated as the "City of Imperial Landscape District No. 1."

The boundaries ofthe District are non-contiguous and consist ofall parcels with the Zone 2001-
01 (Wildflower) and Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol). A general description of each Zone is as

follows:



Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) is located in the west po(ion of the City of Imperial, generally
South of Joshua Tree Street and West of La Brucherie Road. Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower)
consists of all assessable parcels located in the Wildflower No. 8 subdivision in the Cityt

Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) is located in the northeast portion of the City of Imperial.
generally North oi Aten Road. and East of Highway 86. Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol)
consists of all parcels located in the Paseo del So[ subdivision within the Cit-v.

$gg1!q[ The improvements of the District are briefly described as the operation. administration,
maintenance and servicing of all landscape improvements and appurtenant facilities and expenses

associated with the District that were installed as part of the property development within the

District and will be maintained by the City of lmperial or their designee through annual

assessments namely:

Landscaping improvements may include but are not limited to: turf, ground cover, shrubs

and trees. sprinkler and irrigation systems. ornamental lighting, drainage systems, masonry
walls. entryway monuments and associated appurtenances;

Storm drain basins to be maintained are located at the south side of the Wildflower
development and the east end of the Paseo del Sol development;

The location of landscaped easements. including street trees. may include but are not

limited to: Joshua Tree Street. La Brucherie Road and Cross Road.

Section 5: The District Assessment Engineer has prepared and filed with the City Clerk. and the

City Clerk has presented to the City Council a Report, in connection with the proposed

improvements. a description ol an annual inflationary adjustment that will be applied to the

assessments in subsequent fiscal years and collection of assessments against lots and parcels of
land wirhin the District for FY 202512026 in accordance with Chapter I . Arricle J of the Act. and

the City Council did by Resolution approve such Report. Reference is hereby made to said Report

for a detailed description of improvements. the boundaries of the District, and the proposed

assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of land within the District.

fu!!q..@ The District and the associated assessments as outlined in the Engineer's Report are in

compliance with the provisions of California Constitution Article XIIID.

Section 7: The City Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a Public Hearing conceming

the improvements and the lery ofassessments for the District in accordance u'ith ('hapter 2. Article
l. Section 22590 of lhe Act. Notice is hereby given that on Wednesday, June 18,2O25 at 7"00

p.m. the City Council will hold a Public Hearing for the District for FY 202512026. or as soon

thereafter as feasible. The Public Hearing will be held in the City Council's regular meeting

chambers located at 220 9th Street. Imperial. Califomia, at the time so fixed. At the hearing. all
interested persons shall be afforded the opportunity to hear and be heard.

Section & The City Clerk shall cause notice to be given ofthe time and place ofthe Public Hearing

by causing the publishing of this Resolution once in the local paper not less than ten (10) days



belore the date ofthe hearing and by posting a copy ofthis Resolution on the official bulletin board
customarily used by the City Council for the posting ofnotices.

Section 9: The Mayor. City Clerk. the City Manager. the City Council and such officers and

employees of the City as are appropriate, are authorized and directed to execute such other
documents and take such further action as shall be consistent with the intent and purpose of this
Resolution.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held

on the 4rh day ofJune.2025.

.IAMES TI]CKER.
Mavor

ATTEST:

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk

I. Kristina Shields. City Clerk of the City of Imperial, Califomia. hereby certify that the

loregoing Resolution No. 2025-17 was duly adopted at a meeting of the Imperial City Council at

its meeting held on the 4th day ofJune, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City ol
lmperial. Califomia. on June 4, 2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk



Ct/o{

Crlifornia

City of Imperial

Landscape Maintenance District No. I
(Paseo Del Sol and Wildflower)

Engineer's Report

Fiscal Year 202512026

Report Dated: May 27,2025

Koppnu&Gnunpn
t,t tt t- t(' t.'t \.\ \(- tt

334 \'ia veracn z.Suite 256

Sm IlrL.(E Cdilodaq2oTS

760-5lO-0290

inI(€lqpf,net



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I. OVERVIEW

A. lntrod uction

SECTION II. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

A. Boundaries of the District

B. Description of the District lmprovements and Services

1

I

2

2

,,,,,,......2

C. District Boundary Map

sECnoN r. METHOD OF APPORTtONMENT.....................

A. General

3

4

4

4

5C. AssessmentMethodology...

SECTION IV, DISTRICT BUDGET...,.,,,,.. 9

EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT A: PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2O2s/2O26

EXHIBIT B: DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS



SECTION I. OVERVIEW

A, INTRODUCTION

The City of lmperial ("City") annually levies and collects special assessments in order to
continue the maintenance of the improvements within the lmperial Landscape Maintenance
District No. 1 ("District"). The District was formed and annual assessments are levied,
pursuant to the Londscoping ond Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the Colifornio
Streets ond Highwoys Code ( 1972 Act") and in compliance with the substantive and
proced ural req uirements of the Colifornio Stote Constitution" Article XlllD l" Article XlllD"l.

This report constitutes the annual update of the Engineer's Report ("Report") which
provides updated information regarding the budget and factors that affect the assessment.
The annual budget for the maintenance and operation of the improvements is based on
estimated expenses for the upcoming fiscal year. Parcels within the District are assessed
proportionately for only those improvements and services that are a special benefit as

determined in the originalformation Engineer's Report.

The word "parcel," for the purposes of this Report, refers to an individual property assigned
its own Assessor's Parcel Number by the Imperial County Assessor's Office. The lmperial
County Aud itor/Controller uses Assessment Parcel Numbers and specific Fund Numbers, to
identify on the tax roll, properties assessed for special district benefit assessments.

Following consideration of all public comments and written protests at a noticed Public
Hearing, the City Council will confirm the Report as submitted or amended and order the
levy and collection of assessments for Fiscal Year ("FY") 2025/2026 pursuant to the 1972
Act. The assessment information approved will be submitted to the County
Aud itor/Controller and included on the property tax rollfor each benefiting parcel.

ln November 2001, the District was formed comprising of one zone of improvement, Zone
2001-01 (Wildflower). The formation was pursuant to City Council resolution following a

property owner protest ballot proceeding, conducted in compliance with the provisions of
Article XlllD Section 4, to approve and confirm the Maximum Assessments and an
Assessment Range Formula (inflationary factor) for Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) District. In

February 2002, a second zone of improvement, Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol), was annexed
into the District following a similar property owner protest ballot proceeding, conducted in

compliance with the provisions of Article XlllD Section 4, to approve and confirm the Zone
2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) Maximum Assessments and an Assessment Range Formula
(inflationary factor). Although the City Council must consider all property owner comments
or protests prior to levying an annual assessment each year, the Council may approve any
proposed assessment that is less than or equal to the adjusted maximum assessment rate
previously approved for each zone.

The Constitutional provisions of Article XlllD do not alter the non-conflicting provisions of
the 1972 Act and this Report and the method of apportionment contained herein utilize
commonly accepted assessment engineering practices consistent with the Act and the
provisions of the Constitution. All new or increased assessments (including any annexations)
will be subject to the substantive and procedural requirements of Article XlllD Section 4.

Changes in land use or parcel subdivisions resulting in an increase to a particular parcel or
group of parcels are not considered an increased assessment.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026
Page 1



SECTION II DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

A. BOUNDARIES OF THE DISTRICT

The boundaries of the District are non-contiguous and consist of all parcels with the Zone

2001-01 (Wildflower) and Zone 2OOl-02 (Paseo del Sol). A map showing the boundaries of
the District has been previously filed with the City Clerk and by reference is made part of
this Report.

1 . Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower)

zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) is located in the west portion of the City, generally south of
Joshua Tree Street and West of La Brucherie Road. zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) consists
of all assessable parcels located in the Wildflower No. 8 subdivision.

B DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT IMPROVEIVIENTS AND SERVICES

Landscape improvements provided in the District may include but are not limited to: turf,
ground cover, shrubs and trees, sprinkler and irrigation systems, ornamental lighting,

drainage systems, masonry walls, entryway monument, and associated appurtenances. These

improvements include all necessary service; operations; administration; and maintenance

required to keep the above-mentioned improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and satisfactory

working condition. The City utilizes the services of landscape maintenance contractors and

City crews for all regularly scheduled landscape maintenance. The specific locations of
improvements within each zone of the District are described in the following section.

The District provides and ensures the continued maintenance, servicing, administration, and

operation of various landscape improvements and associated appurtenances located within
the District.

Landscaped Easements - The location of landscaped easements, including street trees, may

include, but are not limited to: .Joshua Tree Street, La Brucherie Road in Zone 2001-01
(Wildflower) and Cross Road in Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol).

Storm Drain Easin Maintenance - The location of the storm drain basin to be maintained

by the assessments is located at the south side of the Wildflower development in Zone

2001-01 (wildflower) and the east end of the Paseo del Sol development in Zone 2001-02
(Paseo del Sol).

The assessable parcels receive special benefit from the ongoing maintenance of the
landscaping, irrigation and drainage systems within the boundaries of the District. Specific

improvements include all ground cover, turf, shrubs, trees, and associated appurtenances.
The services provided include all necessary operations, administration, and maintenance

required to keep the above-mentioned improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and

satisfactory condition.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2o2s12026

Page 2

2 Zone 2001-02 (Paseo Del Sol)

zone 2OOL-02 (Paseo del Sol) is located in the northeast portion of the City, generally

North of Aten Road, and East of Highway 85. Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) consists of all

parcels located in the Paseo del Sol subdivision.



The District through annual assessments budgeted and reviewed each fiscal year, funds the
continued maintenance of these improvements. All assessable parcels identified as being
within the District, share in both the cost and the benefits of the improvements. The costs

associated with the improvements are equitably spread among all benefiting parcels within
the District in proportion to the benefit received. The funds collected are dispersed and

used for only the operation and servicing of the District improvements.

The detailed plans and specifications for the improvements are on file in the office of the
City Clerk where they are available for public inspection. The plans and specifications for the
improvements are voluminous and are not bound in this Engineer's Report but by this
reference are incorporated herein and made a part of this Engineer's Report.

C. DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP

Assessment District boundary maps have been prepared for the Landscape Maintenance

Assessment District in the format required by the 1972 Act, and are on file with the City

Clerk, and, by reference, are made part of this Report. A subdivision map showing each of
the parcels included within the boundaries of the District is incorporated as Exhibit "B" to
this Report.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance 0istrict No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

Page 3



SECTION III. IVIETHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

A, GENERAL

The 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies for the purpose

of providing certain public improvements which include the construction, maintenance and

servicing of landscaping and appurtenant facilities. Ihe 7972 Act further requires that the
cost of these improvements be levied according to benefit rather than assessed value:

'The net omount to be dssessed upon londs within on ossessment district moy be
apportioned by any formulo or method which foirly distributes the net omount
among all assessoble lots or porcels in proportion to the estimoted benefits to be
received by eoch such lot or porcel from the improvements."

The formula used for calculating assessments in this District therefore reflects the
composition of the parcels, and the improvements and services provided, to fairly apportion
the costs based on benefit to each parcel.

ln addition, pursuant to Article XlllD Section 4 a parcel's assessment may not exceed the
reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel. Only special
benefits may be assessed and the District must separate the general benefits from the
special benefits. Therefore, the District assesses only for improvements that provide special

benefit and any improvements considered general benefit have been eliminated from the
District Assessments.

B, BENEFIT ANALYSIS

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026
Page 4

1. Special Benefits

The method of apportionment (method of assessment) is based on the premise that
each assessed parcel receives benefit from the improvements maintained and funded
by the assessments. Specifically, landscape improvements installed in connection with
the development of these parcels. The desirability of properties within the District is

enhanced by the presence of well-maintained landscaping and amenities in close
proximity to those properties.

The improvements generally include landscaped parkways, entryways, and appurtenant
facilities. The annual assessments outlined in this Report are based on the estimated
costs to provide all necessary service, operation, administration, and maintenance
required each year to keep these improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and satisfactory
condition and benefit the properties. The special benefits associated with the local
landscaping improvements are specifically:

o Enhanced desirability of properties through association with the improvements.

. lmproved aesthetic appeal of properties within the District providing a positive
representation of the area.

o Enhanced adaptation of the urban environment within the natural environment
from adequate green space and landscaping.



. Environmental enhancement through improved erosion resistance, and dust and

debris control.

. lncreased sense of pride in ownership of property within the District resulting from
well-maintained improvements associated with the properties.

o Reduced criminal activity and property-related crimes (especially vandalism) against
properties in the District through well-maintained surroundlngs and amenities.

o Enhanced environmental quality of the parcels by moderating temperatures,
providing oxygenation and attenuating noise.

All of the preceding special benefits contribute to a specific enhancement and

desirability of each of the assessed parcels within the District and thereby provide a
special enhancement to the property.

2 General Benefits

It has been determined that the lots or parcels within this District receive unique and

special benefits from the maintenance of the improvements within the District. The

improvements maintained by the District were installed and constructed in connection
with the development of properties within the District and were neither required nor

necessarily desired by properties outside the District boundaries. lt has been

determined that these improvements and the ongoing maintenance of those
improvements provide special benefits to the parcels within the District and no parcels

outside the District area benefit from the maintenance of the improvements within the
District. Therefore, there are no benefits of a general nature to properties outside the
District boundaries or the public at large.

C, ASSESSMENT IVETHODOLOGY

Pursuant to the Act, the costs of the District may be apportioned by any formula or method,
which fairly distributes the net amount to be assessed, among all assessable parcels in

proportion to the estimated special benefits to be received by each such parcel from the
improvements. The special benefit formula used within the District should reflect the
composition of the parcels, and the improvements and services provided, to fairly
proportion the costs based on estimated special benefit to each parcel.

This District utilizes an Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) method of apportionment. The EDU

method of apportionment uses the single-family residential parcel as the basic unit of
assessment. The typical single-family residential parcel is assigned one (1.0) Equivalent

Dwelling Unit. Every other land-use or property type is converted to EDU's based on an

assessment formula that equates the property's specific development status, type of
development (land-use), and size of the property, as compared to typical single-family
residentia I pa rcel.

Single Family Residential - This land use is defined as a fully subdivided residential home

site with or without a structure. This land use is assessed 1.0 EDU per lot or parcel. This is

the base value that all other properties are compared and weighted against (i.e. Equivalent
Dwelling Unit EDU).

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance Oistrict No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026
PaBe 5



Multifamily Residential - This land use is defined as a fully subdivided residential parcel

that has more than one residential unit developed on the property. This land use is assessed

1.0 EDU per u nit.

Planned-Residential Development - This land use is defined as any property not fully
subdivided with a specific number of proposed residential lots to be developed on the
parcel. This land use type is assessed at 1.0 EDU per planned (proposed) residential lot.

Vacant Multi-Residential - This land use is defined as property currently zoned for
residential development, but a tentative or final tract map has not been submitted and/or
approved. This land use is assessed at 1.0 EOU per acre. Parcels less than 1 acre are

assigned a minimum of 1.0 EDU. Parcels over 50 acres are assigned a maximum of 50 EDU.

Exempt Parcels - This land use identifies properties that are not assessed and are assigned

0.00 EDU. This land use classification may include but is not limited to lots or parcels

identified as public streets and other roadways (typically not assigned an APN by the
County); dedicated public easements, rights-of-way, public greenbelts and parkways; utility
rights-of-ways; common areas, sliver parcels and bifurcated lots or any other property that
cannot be developed, publicly owned properties that are part of the District improvements
or that have little or no improvement value. These types of parcels are considered to
receive little or no benefit from the improvements and are therefore exempted from
asseSsment.

The following table provides a listing of land use types, the Equivalent Dwelling Unit factor
applied to that land use type, and the multiplying factor used to calculate each parcel's

ind ivid ua I EDU.

TABTE 1

Land Use Designation

The EDU method of apportioning benefit is typically seen as the most appropriate and

equitable assessment methodology for calculating benefit in Districts formed under the
7972 Acl, as the benefit to each parcel from the improvements are apportioned as a
function of land-use type, size and development. The following outlines the EDU applied to
the various parcels and properties within this District:

. zone 2001-01 (wildflower) - One hundred nineteen (119) single-family residential
parcels, each receiving full and equal special benefit from the improvements. These

parcels are assigned an Equivalent Dwelling Unit of 1.0 EDU to reflect their special

benefits.

. Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) - One hundred thirty (130) single-family residential
parcels, each receiving full and equal special benefit from the improvements. These

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025l2026

Single Family Residentia I

Multi-family Residential

per Un it/Lot/Pa rce I

Exem pt

1.000

0.000

1.000

1.000

1.000 per Planned Residentia I Lot

per Parcel

per Acre or portion of an Acre

per Unit

Pla n ned-Residentia I Development

Vacant M u lt i- Re sid e nt ia I

Page 6

Property Type EDU Multiplier



parcels are assigned an Equivalent Dwelling Unit of 1.0 EDU to reflect their special

benefits.

The Total Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU) for Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) in FY 2025/2O26 is

119 EDU's.

The Total Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU)for Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) in FY 2025/2026
is 130 EDU'S.

The Levy per Equivalent Dwelling Unit, or Rate, applied to each parcel is the result of
dividing the total Balance to Levy for each Zone, by the sum of the Zone EDU's, for the fiscal

year. This Rate is multiplied by each parcel's individual EDU to determine the parcel's levy

amount.

The following formulas are used to calculate the assessment for each parcel:

Formula

Total Balance to tevy / Total EDU = tevy per EDU

Parcel EDU x Levy per EDU = Parcel Levy Amount

D ASSESSMENT RANGE FORIUULA

Any new or increased assessment requires certain noticing and meeting requirements by

law. Prior to the passage of Proposition 218 (Colifornio Constitution Articles Xlllc ond XlllD),

legislative changes in the Brown Act defined a "new or increased assessment" to exclude

certain conditions. These conditions included "any assessment that does not exceed an

assessment formula or range of assessments previously adopted by the agency or approved

by the voters in the area where the assessment is imposed." This definition and conditions
were later confirmed through Senate Bill 919 (Proposition 218 implementing le8islation).

The purpose of establishing an Assessment Range Formula is to provide for reasonable

increases and an inflationary adjustment to annual assessments without requiring costly

noticing and mailing procedures, which could add to the District costs and assessments. As

part of the District formation, a property owner protest ballot proceeding was conducted
pursuant to the California State Constitution Article XlllD Section 4. This property owner
protest ballot proceeding includes the establishment of an initial Maximum Assessment as

well as an Assessment Range Formula.

Generally, if the proposed annual assessment (levy per EDU) for the current fiscal year is
less than or equal to the calculated Maximum Assessment, then the proposed annual

assessment is not considered an increased assessment. The Maximum Assessment is equal

to the initial Assessment (approved by property owners) increased each year, based upon

the latest composite percentage change in the Consumer Price lndex, All Urban Consumers,

for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario Area ("CPl"), as determined by the United States

Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, or its successor.

The Engineer shall compute the percentage difference between the percentage change

each year in CPI for March and the CPI for the previous March. The Engineer shall then
ad.iust the previous maximum assessment rate by an amount not to exceed the percentage

change for the upcoming fiscal year. Should the Bureau of Labor Statistics revise such index

or discontinue the preparation of such index, the Engineer shall use the revised index or a

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

Page 7



comparable system as approved by the City Council for determining fluctuations in the cost

of living.

Beginning in the second fiscal year (FY 2002/2003), for Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) and

beginning in the second fiscal year IFY 2OO3/2OO4I, for Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) and

each fiscal year thereafter, the Maximum Assessment will be recalculated and a new

Maximum Assessment established. The Maximum Assessment is adjusted annually and is

calculated independent of the District's annual budget and proposed annual assessment.

Any proposed annual assessment (rate per EDU) less than or equal to this Maximum
Assessment is not considered an Increased assessment, even if the proposed assessment is

much greater than the assessment applied in the prior fiscal year.

Although the Maximum Assessment will increase each year, the actual District assessments

may remain virtually unchanged. The Maximum Assessment adjustment is designed to
establish a reasonable limit on District assessments. The Maximum Assessment calculated

each year does not require or facilitate an increase to the annual assessment and neither

does it restrict assessments to the adjustment maximum amount. lf the budget and

assessments for the fiscal year do not require an increase, or the increase is less than the

adjusted Maximum Assessment, then the required budget and assessment may be applied

without additional property owner balloting. lf the budget and assessments calculated

require an increase greater than the adjusted Maximum Assessment then the assessment is

considered an increased assessment. To impose an increased assessment the City must

comply with the provisions of the Constitution Article XlllD Section 4(c) that requires a

public hearing and certain protest procedures including mailed notice of the public hearing

and property owner protest balloting. Property owners, through the balloting process, must

approve the proposed assessment increase. lf the proposed assessment is approved, then a

new Maximum Assessment is established for the District. lf the proposed assessment is not

approved, the City may not levy an assessment greater than the adjusted Maximum

Assessment previously established for the District.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

PaBe 8



P Bud

S6,7oo s85,3ooMaintenance Costs, Labor and Utilities
46,305 0Capital I mprovement Expenditures

ss3,oos s86,30ODIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAL

tNctDENTAL COSTS/EXPENSES

s7,ooo 57,400Engineerin&/District Administration
00Special Administration Costs

57,000 s7,400TNctDENTAL COSTS/EXPENSES

So s(30,19s)IESS: FUNDS ON HAND

s60,oos s63,50sTOTAT ASSESSMENT

130119Total Parcels
130119Total Parcels Levied

119 130Total Equivalent Dwelling U nits

ss04.24 s488.50Applied Rate per EDU

s488.51s504.2sMaximum Rate per EDU

The Maximum Assessment per EDU for Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) and for Zone 2001-02 (Paseo

del Sol) shown above is based on the lnitial Maximum Assessment and the Assessment Range

Formula approved by the property owners within the D,strict at the time of formation.

Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower): The proposed FY 2025/2026 annual assessment is 5504.24 per EDU.

Zone 2OO1-02 (Paseo del Sol): The proposed FY 2025/2026 annual assessment is 5488.50 per

EDU.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

Page 9

SECTION IV. DISTRICT BUDGET

TABTE 2

Zone 2001{1
Wildflower

Zone 2q)1{2
Paseo del SolDescription

DIRECT COSTS

otsTRtcT sTATrsflcs



CITY OF IMPERIAL

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WILDFLOWER)

ENGINEER'S REPORT
FISCAL YEAR 202512026

Report Su bmitted by:

Scott Koppe

Koppel & Gruber Public Finance

Registered E Exo.q F l.ls
No 20903o p

e

m

.\Y,a

I(,
ul
G

OF c

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

Page 10



EXHIBIT A
PRELIMI NARY ASSESSMENT ROLL

FOR FISCAL YEAR 202512026

Parcel identification for each lot or parcel within the District, shall be the parcel as shown on

the lmperial County Secured Roll for the year in which this Report is prepared and reflective
of the Assessor's Parcel Maps.

The following pages contain a listing of parcels assessed within this District, alon8 with the
zone designation and proposed assessment amounts.



/l (hn
.*qfu)(W

CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. ,1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WILDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

Code

Residential

UnitsZone APN Situs Address €DU Assessment

2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001,01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2o0l-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01
2001,01
2001 01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

5U.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
s04.24
504.24
s04.24
su.24
s04.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
su.24
504.24
504.24
504.74
s04.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
s04.24
s04.24
s0/.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
304.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

064-421-001-000
064,421'002-000
064-421-003-000
064-421-004-000

064'421-005-000
064-421-006-000
064-421-007-000
064-421-008-000
064-421-009-000

064-421,010-000
064-421-011-000
064-421-012,000
064-421-013-000

054,421-014-000
064,421-015-000
064,421-016,000
064-421-017,000
064-421-018-000

064,421-019-000
064-421-020,000
064-421-021-000
064-421-022-000

064-421-023-000
064-42t-O24-000
054-421-02S-000
064-421-026-000
064-421--027 -000
054-421-028-000
064-421-029-000
064'421-030-000
064-421,031-000
064-421,032'000
064-421-033-000
064-421-034-000

054-421-035-000

064,421,036-000
064-421-037-000
064-421,038-000
064-421-039-000
064-421-040,000
064-421-041-000
064-427-042-O00
064-421-043-000
064,421-044-000
064-421-045-000
064-422-001-000
064-422-002-000
054-422-003-000
064-422-004-000
064-422-005-000
054-422-006-000

551 MESQUITE ST

555 MESQUITE ST

559 MESQUITE 5T

563 MESQUITE ST

567 MESQUITE ST

571 MESQUITE ST

575 MESQUITE ST

579 MESQUITE 5T

583 MESQUITE 5T

582 MESQUITE ST

578 MESQUITE ST

574 MESQUITE ST

570 MESQUITE ST

566 MESQUITE 5T

552 MESQUITE 5T

558 MESQUITE ST

554 MESQUITE ST

550 MESQUITE ST

S5l SAGESRUSH ST

555 SAGEBRUSH ST

559 SAG€8RUSH ST

563 SAGEERUSH ST

567 5A6EBRUSH ST

571546EBRUSH ST

575 SAGEERUSH 5T

579 SAGEBRUSH ST

583 SAGEERUSH ST

582 SAGEBRUSH ST

578 SAGEBRUSH ST

574 SAGEBRUSH ST

570 SAGESRUSH 5T

566 SAGESRUSH ST

562 SAGEBRUSH ST

558 SAGEBRUSH ST

554 SAGEBRUSH ST

550 SAGEBRUSH 5T

551 SILVERWOOD ST

555 STLVERWOO0 5T

559 SILVERWOOD ST

563 SITVERWOOD ST

567 SILVERWOOD ST

5Tl SILVERWOOD ST

575 SILVERWOOD ST

579 SILVERWOOD 5T

583 SILVERWOOD 5T

549 MESQUITE 5T

545 MESQUITE ST

54l MESQUITE ST

537 MESQUITE ST

533 MESQUITE 5T

529 MESQUITE ST

5

5

s
5

s
5

s
5

5

s
s
5

s
s
S

)
5

5

s
5

5

s

5

s

S

s
5

s
s

s
I
S

$

s
s
s
5

5

S

s
5

s
s
s

S

S

S

s
5

s
s

Preparedby l -:1.,' Page I of 5

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

7

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1



tr\ CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WTLDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

Code

Residential
UnitsZone APN Situs Address EDU Assessment

2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001"01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESiDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESID€NTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESID€NTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESID€NTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
so4.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
so4.24

504.24
504.24
504.74
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
so4.24

504.24
504.24
5M.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

5M.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
5M.24
504.24
504.24

064-422-007,000
064-422-008-000
064-422-009-000
064-422-0LO-OOO

064-422-011-000
064-422-012-000
064-422-013-000
054,422-014-000
054-422-015-000
064-423,001-000
064-423-002-000
064-423-003-000
064-423-004-000
064-423-005,000
064-423-006'000
064-423-007-000
064-423-008-000
064,423-009-000
054,423,010,000
064-423-011-000
064-423-012-000
064-423-013-000
064-423-014-000
064,423-015-000
064-423,016,000
064-423-017-000
064-423-018-000
0&'423-019-000
064-423-020-000

064,424-001-000
064-424-002,000
064-424,003,000
064-424-004,000
054-424-005-000
064-424-006-000
064-424-O07 -000

064,424-008-000
064-424-009-000

064-424-010-000
064-424 011,000
064-424-012-000
064-424-013-000
054-424-014,000
054-424-015-000
054-424-016-000
064-424-017-000
064-424-018-000
064-424,019-000
064,424-020-000
064-424-021-000
064-424-022-000

525 MESQUITE ST

521 MESQUITE ST

S17 MESQUITE 5T

513 MESQUITE 5T

509 MESQUIT€ ST

2342 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2338 TUMBLEWEEO AVE

2334 TUMELEWEED AVE

2330 TUMELEWEED AVE

2328 TUMBTEWEEO AVE

2324 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2320 TUMBTEWEED AVE

508 SILVERWOOD ST

512 STTVERWOOO ST

516 STTVERWOOD ST

520 STLVERWOOo ST

524 SILVERWOOD ST

528 SILVERWOOD ST

532 SILVERWOOD ST

536 STLVERWOOD ST

540 SILVERWOOD ST

544 SILVERWOOD 5T

548 SILVERWOOD ST

550 SILVERWOOD 5T

554 SILVERWOOD ST

558 SILVERWOOD ST

562 SILVERWOOD 5T

566 SILVERWOOD ST

570 SILVERWOOD 5T

521 SAGEBRUSH 5T

E25 SAGEERUSH ST

529 SAGEERUSH ST

533 SAGEERUSH ST

537 SAGEBRUSH ST

54l SAGEBRUSH 5T

545 SAGEBRUSH ST

549 SAGEBRUSH ST

548 MEsQUITE ST

544 MEsQUITE ST

540 MESQUITE ST

535 MESQUITE 5T

532 MESQUITE 5T

528 MESQUITE ST

524 MEsQUITE ST

520 MESQUITE ST

2343 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2339 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2335 TUMEL€WEED AVE

2331TUM8I.EWEED AVE

2329 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2325 TUMBLEWEED AVE

S

5

)
)
)
s
)
s
s
s
s
s
s

s
s
5

5

5

s
s
s
s
s
s
5

5

5

5

s

s
s
5

5

S

s
s
s
5

5

5
)
s

S

)
)
5

s
s

S

S

Prepared by N Page 2 of 5

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1



f\ CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO ,1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WTLDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land U5e

Code

Residential
UnitsZone Situs Address EDU Assessment

2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-o2
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001,02
2007-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001'02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001,02
2001-02

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

504.24
304.24

504.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
so4.24
504.24
so4.24

504.24
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.s0
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

064-424-023-000
064-424-024-000
064-424-025-000
064{24-026-000
064-424-O27 -000

064-424-028-000
064-424-029-000
064-424-030-000
064-424-031-000
064-424-O32-OOO

064-424-033-000
064-424-034"000
064-424-035-000
054"424-036-000
054-424-037-000
064-424,038-000
064-424-039-000
044-611-001-000
044-511-002-000

044,611-003-000
044 611'004-000
044-511-005-000
044-611-006-000
044-611-007-000
044-611-008-000
044-611,009-000
044,611-010-000
0ir4-612-001-000
044-612-002-000
044-612-003-000
044,612-004-000
044-512-005-000
044-612,006-000
0ir4-612-007-000
044-612-008,000
044-612-009-000
044,612,010-000
044-612-011-000
044-612,012-000
0/r4-512'013-000
044-612-014,000
044-612-015,000
044-612-016-000
044-612-017-000
044-612-018-000
044-612-019-000
M4,612,020-000
044-613-001-000
044-613-002-000
044-613-003,000
044-613-004-000

2321 TUMELEWEED AVE

521 SITVERWOOD ST

525 STTVERWOOD ST

529 STTVERWOOD ST

s33 SI"VERWOOD ST

537 S[-VERWOOD ST

541 STIVERWOOo ST

545 STLVERWOOD ST

549 STLVERWOOD ST

548 SAGEBRUSH ST

544 SAGEBRUSH ST

S4O SAGEBRUSH ST

536 SAGEBRUSH ST

532 SAGEBRUSH 5T

528 SAGEBRUSH ST

524 SAGEBRUSH SI
520 5A6ESRUSH ST

2O1W ACAPULCO OR

203 W ACAPULCO DR

205 W ACAPULCO DR

207 W ACAPULCO DR

209 W ACIPULCO DR

211 W ACAPULCO DR

213 W ACAPULCO DR

215 W ACAPULCO DR

217 W ACAPULCO DR

219 W ACAPULCO DR

2OO W ACAPULCO DR

202 W ACAPULCO DR

204 W ACAPULCO DR

206 W ACAPULCO DR

208 W ACAPUTCO OR

210 W ACAPUTCO DR

212 W ACAPULCO OR

214 W ACAPULCO OR

216 W ACAPULCO DR

218 W ACAPULCO DR

219 MAZATLAN DR

217 MAZATLAN DR

215 MAZATLAN DR

213 MAZATIAN DR

211 MAzATLAN DR

209 MAZATTAN DR

207 MAzATLAN OR

205 MAZATLAN OR

203 MAZATLAN DR

201 MAZATLAN DR

2OO MAZATLAN DR

202 MAzATTAN OR

204 MAzATTAN DR

206 MAZATLAN OR

S

5

5

s

s
5

5

5

)
s
5

5

5

S

5

S

s

5

)
5

5

5

s
s
5

5

5

)
s
t
S

5

5

s
s
s
s
5

5

5
5

)
5

S

S

s
5

5

Page 3 of 5Prepared by \ r:.il

APN

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
L

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
I
1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I



f! CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WTLDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Situs Address

Land l,rse

Code

Residential
UnitsZone APN EOU Assessment

2001-02
2007-02
2007-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2007-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-o2
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-o2
2001-o2
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2007-o2
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2007-o2
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
200t-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001,02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2007-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAL

RE5IDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESiDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.s0
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.s0
488.s0
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

044,613'005-000
044-613-006-000
044-613-007-000
044-613-008-000
044-613-009-000
044-613-010-000
044-613-011-000
044-513-012-000
044-513-013-000
044-613-014-000
044-613-015-000
0ir4-613-016-000

044-613-017-000
0rr4-613-018-000
044-613-019-000
044-613-020-000
044-614-001,000
044-614-002-000

044,514,003-000
044-614-004-000
044-614-005-000
044-614-005-000
044-614-007-000
044-614-008-000
044-614,009-000
0il4-614-010-000
044-614-011-000
044-615-001-000
044-615-002'000
044-615-003-000
044-615-004-000
044-615-005-000
044-515-005-000
044-615-007-000
044-615-008'000
0il4-515-009-000
044-515-010-000
044,615-011-000
044-61s-012-000
044-515-013-000
044-615-014'000
044-616-001-000
044-616-002-000
044-616-003-000
044-616-004-000
044-616-005-000
044-616,006-000
044-615,007-000
044-616-008-000
044-616-009-000
044-615-010-000

208 MAzATLAN DR

210 MAZATTAN DR

212 MAZATTAN OR

214 MAZATTAN DR

216 MAZATTAN DR

218 MA2ATLAN DR

219 sAN FELIPE DR

217 SAN FELIPE DR

215 SAN FELIPE DR

213 SAN FELIPE DR

211SAN FELIPE DR

209 SAN FELIPE OR

207 SAN FELIPE DR

205 SAN FELIPE OR

203 SAN FELIPE DR

2O1SAN FETIPE OR

2OO SAN FETIPE DR

202 SAN FELIPE DR

2442 LORETO CT

2444 LORETO CT

2446 LORETO CT

2448 LORETO CT

2ir47 LORETO CT

2445 LORETO CT

2443 LORETO CI
206 SAN FELIPE DR

208 sAN FELIPE DR

220 ACAPULCO DR

222 ACAPULCO OR

224 ACAPULCO OR

226 ACAPULCO DR

228 ACAPULCO OR

230 ACAPULCO DR

232 ACAPULCO DR

233 MAZATLAN DR

231 MA2ATLAN DR

229 MAZAILAN DR

227 MAZATLAN DR

225 MAZAILAN DR

223 MAZATLAN OR

221 MAZATLAN OR

221 ACAPULCO DR

223 ACAPULCO DR

225 ACAPUTCO DR

227 ACAPUTCO DR

229 ACAPULCO OR

23l ACAPULCO OR

233 ACAPULCO DR

235 ACAPULCO DR

2421 ENSENADA OR

2423 ENSENAOA OR

5
5

s
S

s

s
5

5

s
5

5

s
5

s

s
5

s
5

5

5

5

5

5

5

s
s
S

5

s
5

5

s
:
S

5

S

5

5

s
s
S

S

5

5

s
5

s

5
5

S

Preparedby u :.'l Page 4 of 5

1

'L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
I
I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1



f"! CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WILDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Situs Address

Land Use

code
Re5idential

Unit5Zone APN

2001-02

200L-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
2001-02
200t-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
200t-02
2001-02
2001,02
200t-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001,02
2001-02

200t-o2
2007-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

200L-oz
2001-02
200t-o2
2001-02
2001-02
200t-02
200t-02
200t-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

044,616-011-000
044-616,012-000
044-616-013-000
044-616-014-000
044-616-015-000
044,516-016-000
044,615 017-000

044-616-018,000
044-616-019-000
044-616-020-000
044-616-021-000
044-616-022-000
044,616-023-000
044-617,001-000
044,617'002-000
044-617-003,000
044,617-004-000
044-617-005-000
044,617-006-000
044-617-007,000
044,517 008-000

044-617-009,000
044-617-010-000
044-617-011-000
044,617,012-000
044-617,013-000
044,617-014-000
044-618-001-000
044-618-002,000
044-618-003-000
044 618-004-000
044-618-00s-000
044-618-006-000

044-618-007-000
044-618,008-000
044-518-009-000
044-618-010-000
044-618-011-000
044-618-012-000
044-618 013-000
044,618 014-000
044,618-015-000
044,618 016-000
044-618-017-000
044-618-018,000

2425 ENSENADA DR

2427 ENSENADA DR

2429 ENSENADA DR

2431 ENSENADA DR

2433 ENSENADA DR

2435 ENSENADA DR

2437 ENSENADA DR

2439 ENSENADA DR

2441 ENSENADA DR

2443 ENSENADA DR

2/r45 ENSENADA DR

2447 €NSENADA DR

2iT49 ENSENADA DR

220 MAzATI.AN DR

222 MAZATI.AN DR

224 MAZATI-AN DR

226 MA2ATLAN DR

228 MA2ATLAN DR

230 MAzATLAN DR

232 MAZATTAN DR

233 SAN FELIPE DR

231sAN FELIPE DR

229 SAN FELIPE DR

227 SAN FELIPE DR

225 SAN FELIPE DR

223 SAN FELIPE DR

221SAN FELIPE DR

2447 CAEO SAN LUCAS AVE

2,145 CABO sAN LUCAs AVE

2'143 CAEO SAN LUCAS AVE

220 SAN FELIPE DR

222 SAN FELIPE DR

224 SAN FELIPE DR

2444 VERACRUZ CT

2446 VERACRUZ CT

2448 VERACRUZ CT

2447 VERACRUZ CT

2445 VERACRUZ CT

2443 VERACRUZ CT

228 SAN FELIPE DR

230 sAN FELIPE DR

232 SAN FELIPE DR

2iI44 ENSENADA DR

2'146 ENSENADA DR

2448 ENSENADA DR

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI"

RESIDENTIAI.

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.s0
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

Prepared by N' I

5123,509.55
249

TotalLevy
Total Parcel Count

Page 5 of 5

EDU Asses5ment

s

s
)
s
5

5

S

s
5

s
s
s
5

5

5

S

s

5

s
5

)
5

s
S

)
)
s
5

s
s
)
5

)
5
5
5

s
S

s
5

5

S

S

s
s

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1



EXHIBIT B
DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS



7

Z

-

!:g-

6
q

a
E

t

6
E

h

at
=
=

d
Ia

6
5
{
3

ta &.dsa F!

l]] .qS e.aqg

t1 e€r,{.x&E€

at
g

$

6

E
E

a5

E

a

-!-"t*6I

tl
A
z
Fr

9AilflF>,,a^
?E:
d ll ;-i

Hz=
EUE,
fr. irl '.',

^F O.z:.a(- It <Xl-{ Fl v(')A N
EH*z
tR
-z
Fl



/
I

-l

r>.

:7'

d
{
EI

a
€9
H

I

6
t
s

q}(t Esdrndo Cr

6p

9qt,

6
g

!

6
E

5
I
F

6

a

Loreb Cl

C& Sa1Lu6 A,,e

Ve.a Ctuz O

{ epe!€ar3

6

3

!.1

/ 

z
3a
9FlHAt6F\

-U)!.ii-Il<en
EncrrlJlI1a.za
E*fl

7-r V

Xf-rNv> or.F<i,r - !.rEr( o
-tl ^Qa x

Fcaz
8RA
-z
i

!



DATF] SIJBMITl'ED

SUBMITTED BY

DATE ACI tON RgQLltRIt)

SPE('IAI - I'AX
ADMINISTRATOR

Agenda ltem No.

COUNCIL ACTION (x

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRI]D (

RESOLUTION (x
ORDINANCF] IST REAI)INC (

ORDINANCE 2ND READING (

CITY CI-ERK'S INITIAI-S (

5/27.r2025

6r.l/2025

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

SUBJ I,CT RESOLUTION OF INTf,NTION:
IMPERIAL I,4N'^SCA PE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO.2
(Slq Ranch Subdivisions, Zone 2005-03)

DEPARTMENTINVOLVED: IINANCE

The Ciry.. Council rvill adopt these three resolutions for intent to initiate. levy an assessment tbr Fiscal
Year ("FY") 2025/2026, order an engineer's repon, and set a public hearing. Following the intenr meeting
and Adoption ofthe resolutions, a public hearing will be held on June 18. 2025 to take resrimon) and
adopl resolutions to accept the engineer's report and approve a levy for FY 202512026.

The proposed FY 202512026 annual assessment is $547.70 per EDU. which is 56.10% ofthe maximum
assessment rate allowed.

FISCAL IMPACT: NOT TO EXCEED

The funds generated are used for the purposes stated in the original
formation ofthis district. Each year the assessments on individual
parcels may be increased up to the Consumer Price Index.

ADMIN
SERVICES
SIGN INITIALS

\ l.A5

STAFI] RE('O\I]\,IENI)ATION

Staffrecommends that the City Council adopt the three resolutions
initiating the FY 202512026 annual assessments.

I)EPT- INI TIALS \Jlr^<,

MANAGER'S RI-]CO]\,1MENDATION

Approve as presented.

CITY
MANAGER's
INITIALS

0ffi4

MOIION tO ADOPT

IMPERIAL T,ANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT No. 2
(I) Res. No.2025-22. Initiating Proceedings for the Annual [,ev]:
(2) Res. No.2025-21. Preliminar)' Appro!al ofthe Engineer's Reporri and.
(3) Res. No. 2025-20. Intention to Conduct a Public llearing and Order the Lev) ofAssessments.

APPROVITD ()
DISAPPROVT,]D 0

(

(

)

)

SF.C()NDhl)
AYES:
NAYI,S:
ABSEN'I':

REJI-Cl l:t)
DEI]E R R I't)

b--t

BACKGROI.TND,SLININIARY:

RF]ITI]RRI-]D T'o:



RESOLT TIO\ \O. 202s-20

A RESOLT]TION OF THE CTTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS
INTENTION TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING ON THf
MATTER OF ASSESSMENTS AND ORDER THE LEVY OF
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2, ZONE
200s-0-3 (sKY RANCH), FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

WHEREAS, the City Council has by previous Resolution, initiated proceedings fbr the
ler.y- and collection of assessments against lots and parcels of land within the City of Imperial
Landscape Maintenance District No. 2 (the "District") for Fiscal Year ("FY") 2025/2026, pursuant
to the provisions ol the Landscuping and Lighting Act ol 1972, Parr 2 of Division l5 ol'the Streets
und Highwal'.; Code o_/-Califbrnia, beginning v'ith Secrion 22500 (the "Act")l and.

WHEREAS, the Act provides for the City Councit to lerry and collect the annual
assessments for the District on the lmperial County tax roll on behalf of the District to pay the
maintenance. services. and operation of facilities and improvements related thereto; and.

WHEREAS. the City Council has retained Koppel & Gruber Public Finance as the District
Assessment Engineer lor the Annual Levy of the District. and to prepare and file an Engineer's
Report (the "Report") with the City Clerk in accordance with the Act. and that said Report has
been prepared and filed with the City clerk and presented to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CTTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section l: The above recitals are all true and conect.

Section 2: The City Council hereby declares its intention to levy and collect assessments against
lots and parcels ofland within the District lor the Fiscal Year commencing July I . 2025. and ending
June 30, 2026. to pay the costs and expenses of the improvements which are described in the
Report. The City Council finds that the public's best interest requires such levy and collecrion.

Section -3: The territo ry of the District is within the boundaries and jurisdiction of the District.
and the City of Imperial within the County of Imperial. State of California. The boundary map
describing the District is on file with the City Clerk and is hereby incorporated by reference inro
this Resolution. The District is designated as the "City of Imperial Landscape District No. 2."

The boundaries ofthe District consist ofall parcels with the Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch). A general
description ofeach Zone is as follows:

Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch) is located in the west portion ofthe City of Imperial. generally
South oflndustrial Way. North of Aten Road. and East of Dandelion Canal (Austen Road).



Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch) consists of all parcels located in the Sky Ranch subdivision
within the City.

Section 4: The improvements ofthe District are briefly described as the operation. administration.
maintenance and servicing of all landscaping improvements and appurtenant facilities and
expenses associated with the District that were installed as part ofthe property development within
lhe District and will be maintained by the City ol Imperial or their designee through annual
assessments namely:

Side bars on interior street, easement along Aten Road and 9.5-acre park retention basin on
the north side of Sky Ranch.

Section n The City Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a Public Hearing conceming
the improvements and the levy olassessments fbrthe District in accordance with Cl,upter 2, Artil.le
l, Section 22590 of the Act. Notice is hereby given that on Wednesday, June 18, 2025 at 7:00
p.m. the City Council will hold a Public Hearing for the District for Fiscal Year 202512026. or as
soon thereafter as feasible. The Public Hearing will be held in the City Council's regular meeting
chambers located at 220 West 9th Street. lmperial. Calilomia 92251. at the time so fixed. At the
hearing. all interested persons shall be afforded the opportunity to hear and be heard.

Section 8: Thc' City Clerk shall cause notice to be given ofthe time and place ofthe Public Hearing
by causing the publishing olthis Resolution once in the local paper not less than ten (10) days
before the date ofthe hearing and by posting a copy ofthis Resolution on the official bulletin board
customarily used by the City Council for the posting of notices.

Section 9: The Mayor. City Clerk, the City Manager. the City Council and such olficers and
employees ol the City as are appropriate. are authorized and directed to execute such other
documents and take such further action as shall be consistent r.lith the intent and purpose of this
Resolution.

Landscaping improvements may include but are not limited to: turf. ground cover. shrubs
and trees, sprinkler and irrigation systems, omamental lighting. drainage systems. masonry
walls. entrywal monuments and associated appurtenances;

Section 5; The District Assessment Engineer has prepared and filed with the City Clerk. and the City
Clerk has presented to the City Council a Report. in connection with the proposed improvements. a
description ofan annual inJlationary adjustmenl that will be applied to the assessments in subsequent
fiscal years and lery and collection ofassessments against lots and parcels of land within the District
tbr FY 202512026 in accordance with Chupter l. Article J of the Act. and the City Council did by
Resolution approve such Report. Reference is hereby made to said Report tbr a detailed description
of improvements, the boundaries of the District, and the proposed assessments upon assessable lots
and parcels of land within the District.

Section 6: The District and the associated assessments as outlined in the Engineer's Report are in
compliance with the provisions of Califomia Constiturion Article XIIID.



APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Citl.Council held
on the 4th day ofJune. 2025.

JAMES TUCKER.
Mayor

ATTEST

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk

I, Kristina Shields, City Clerk of the City of Imperial, Califomia, hereby certify that the
foregoing Resolution No. 2025-20 was duly adopted at a meeting of the Imperial City Council at
its meeting held on the 41h day of June. 2O25.by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
Imperial. Califomia. on June 4, 2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS,
City Clerk



RESOLI.ITION NO. 2025.2I

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COTINCIL OF THE CITI'
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, FOR PRELIMINARY
APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER'S ANNUAL LEVY
REPORT REGARDING THE IMPERIAL LANDSCAPE
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO, 2, ZONE 2OO5-03 (SKY
RANCH); AND THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF
ANNI-IAL ASSESSMENTS RELATED THERETO FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

WHEREAS. the City Council has. by previous Resolution. ordered the preparation of the
Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Annual Engineer's Report (the "Report") in connection with the City of
Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2 (the "District"). and the levy and collection of
assessments against lots and parcels of land within the territory for the Fiscal Year ("FY")
commencing July l. 2025. and ending June i0. 2026. to pay the maintenance. sen,icing. and
operation ofthe improvements. pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act tf-
197 2. Part 2 oJ Dit,ision 15 ol the Streets and Highv al'.t C'ode ol Cali/brnia. beginningy'ith Section
22500 (the "Act"): and.

WHEREAS. the District Assessment Engineer has prepared and filed w.ith the Citl,Clerk
and the City Clerk has now presented to the City Council the Engineer's Report entitled "City of
Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2, Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch) Engineer's Report
Fiscal Year 202512026": and,

WHEREAS. the City Council has carefully examined and revieu,ed the Report as
presented. and is preliminarily satisfied with the District. the improvements described therein. each
and all of the budget items and documents as set forth therein. and is satisfied that the proposed
annual assessments. on a preliminary basis. have been spread in accordance r.l,ith the special
benefits received from the improvements, operation, administration. maintenance and services to
be performed within the District. as set forth in said Report.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 2: The Report as presented, consists ofthe following:

r A Description of Improvements;

o The Annual Budget (Costs and Expenses of Services. Operations and Maintenance);

o The Method of Apportionment and the proposed amount to be levied and collected against
each Assessor Parcel within the District for FY 202512026'.

Section l: The above recitals are all true and correct.



The District Roll containing the Levy for each Assessor Parcel Number within the District;
and

An exhibit showing the boundaries of the District.

Section 3: The District and the associated assessments as outlined in the Engineer's Report are in
compliance with the provisions of Califomia Constitution Articte XIllD.

Section,l: The Report is hereby approved on a preliminary basis and ordered to be filed in the
Ofilce of the City Clerk as a permanent record and to remain open to public inspection.

Section 5: The City Cterk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution. and the
minutes of this meeting shall so reflect the presentation of the Report.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held
on the 4'h day ofJune. 2025.

JAMES TUCKER.
Mayor

ATTEST

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk

I. Kristina Shields" City Clerk of the City of Imperial. Califomia. hereby certify that the
foregoing Resolution No. 2025-21 u'as duly adopted at a meeting of the Imperiat Citl.Council at
its meeting held on the 4th day of June. 2025.by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
lmperial. Califomia. on June 4. 2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
Cit\ Clerk



RESOLLTTTON NO. 2025-22

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, INITIATING
PROCEEDINGS FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE IMPERIAL LANDSCAPE
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO.2, ZONE 2OO5-3 (SKY
RANCH) FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026; AND ORDERING
THE PREPARATION OF AN ENGINEER'S REPORT IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City Council by previous Resolutions formed and approved maximum
annual assessment rates for the City of Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2 (the
"District"), pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping und Lighting Act of 1972, Port 2 of
Dit,ision l5 ol'the Streets and Highways Code of Cali/brnia. beginning with Section 22500 (the
"Act"): and,

WHEREAS. the Act provides the City Council the authority to annually levy and collect
assessments for the District on the lmperial County tax roll on behalf of the District to pay the
maintenance. services, and operation of lacilities and improvements related thereto. and.

WHEREAS. the City Council desires to initiate proceedings for the levy and collection of
annual assessments against lots and parcels ol land within the District for Fiscal Year ("FY")
202512026 pursuanl to provisions of the Act. and.

WHEREAS. the City Council has retained Koppel & Gruber Public Finance ("K&G
Public Finance") for the purpose ofpreparing and filing an Engineer's Report (the "Report") with
the City Clerk in accordance with the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section l: 'l'he City Council hereby appoints K&G Public Finance as the District Assessment
Engineer. and orders K&G Pubtic Finance to prepare the Report conceming rhe District and the
levy of assessments for FY 202512026. in accordance with Chapter l. Article 1. beginning with
Section 2 2565 olthe Act.

Upon completion olthe Report, said Report shall be filed with the City Clerk. who shall submit
the same to the City Council fbr its consideration pursuant to Section 22586 of the Act.

Section 2: The improvements include but are not limited to the operation. administration.
maintenance and servicing oflandscaping and appurtenant facilities and expenses associated with
the District that were installed as part of the property development within the District and will be
maintained by the City of Imperial or their designee through annual assessments. The Report
describes in more detail the items to be maintained and serviced.



Section 3: The City Council hereby determines that to provide the improvements described in
Section 2 ofthis Resolution. it is necessary to levy and collect assessments against lots and parcels
within the District.

Section 4: The Citl- Manager of the City'of Imperial is herebl' authorized and directed to take any
and all action necessary and appropriate in conneclion uith the annual levy and collection ol
assessments lbr the District.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held
on the 4rh day ofJune. 2025.

ATTEST:

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk

[. Kristina Shields. City Clerk of the City of Imperial. Califomia. hereby certifu that the
foregoing Resolution No. 2025-22 was duly adopted at a meeting ofthe Imperial City Council at
its meeting held on the 4th day olJune. 2025. by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
Imperial, Califomia. on June 4, 2025.

KRISTINA SHIEI-DS.
Citl'Clerk

.IAMES TUCKER.
Ma1'or



f''il
Cllifornia

City of Imperial

Landscape Maintenance District No. 2
(Sky Ranch)

Engineer's Report

Fiscal Year 202512026

Report Dated: May 27,2025

3t4 \'iaVeracn a:tuile 256

S1n Il,rr{r. Cditomia92078

76G5 | O-0290

lnf(€l(oa.nd

tlFtKo t, t, t)r &,
t, I ll t. I (

,-r.R
tr I

hr{



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I. OVERVIEW

A. lntrod uction

SECTION II. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT..........

A. Boundaries of the District

B. Description of the District lmprovements and Services

C. District Bou ndary Map

SECTION III. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

L

1

2

2

2

3

4

4

4

5

7

9

9

9

C. AssessmentMethodology...

D. Assessment Range Formula

SECTION IV. DISTRICT BUDGET

A. DirectCosts..............

B. Ad ministration Costs

EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT A: PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

EXHIBIT B: DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS



SECTION I. OVERVIEW

A. INTRODUCTiON

The City of lmperia | ("City") annually levies and collects special assessments in order to continue
the maintenance of the improvements within the lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No.

2 ("District"). The District was formed and annual assessments are levied, pursuant to the
Londscoping ond Lighting Act of 1972, Port 2 of Division 75 of the California Streets ond
Highwoys Code (L972 Act") and in compliance with the substantive and procedural

requirements of tlrc Colifornia Stote Constitution" Article XlllD l" Article XlllD"l.

This report constitutes the annual update of the Engineer's Report ("Report") which provides

updated information regarding the budget and factors that affect the assessment. The annual
budget for the maintenance and operation of the improvements is based on estimated
expenses for the upcoming fiscal year. Parcels within the District are assessed proportionately
for only those improvements and services that are a special benefit as determined in the
original formation Engineer's Report.

The word "parcel," for the purposes of th is Report, refers to an ind ividual property assigned its

own Assessor's Parcel Number by the lmperial County Assessor's Office. The lmperial County
Auditor/Controller uses Assessment Parcel Numbers and specific Fund Numbers, to identify on

the tax roll, properties assessed for special district benefit assessments.

Following consideration of all public comments and written protests at a noticed Public

Hearing, the City Council will confirm the Report as submitted or amended and order the levy

and collection of assessments for Fiscal Year ("FY") 2025/2026 pursuant to the 1972 Act. The

assessment information approved will be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller and

included on the property tax roll for each benefiting parcel.

ln September 2005, the District was formed comprising of one zone of improvement, Zone

2005-03 (Sky Ranch). The formation was pursuant to City Council resolution following a

property owner protest ballot proceeding, conducted in compliance with the provisions of
Article XlllD Section 4, to approve and confirm the Maximum Assessments and an Assessment

Range Formula (inflationary factor). Although the City Council must consider all property owner
comments or protests prior to levying an annual assessment each year, the Council may

approve any proposed assessment that is less than or equal to the adjusted maximum

assessment rate previously approved for each zone.

The Constitutional provisions of Article XlllD do not alter the non-conflicting provisions of the
1972 Act and this Report and the method of apportionment contained herein utilize commonly
accepted assessment engineering practices consistent with the Act and the provisions of the
Constitution. All new or increased assessments (including any annexations) will be sub.iect to
the substantive and procedural requirements of Article XlllD Section 4. Changes in land use or
parcel subdivisions resulting in an increase to a particular parcel or group of parcels are not
considered an increased assessment.

Page 1City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance Dist.ict No.2
Engineer's Report FY 202512026



SECTION II DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

A, BOUNDARIES OF THE DISTRICT

The boundaries of the District consist of all parcels with the Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch). A map
showing the boundaries of the District has been previously filed with the City Clerk and by

reference is made part of this Report.

zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch): Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch) is located in the west portion of the
City, generally south of lndustry Way, north of Aten Road, and east of the Dandelion Canal
(Austin Road). Zone 2005-03 consists of all assessable parcels located in the Sky Ranch

su bd ivision.

B, DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVICES

Landscape improvements provided in the District may include but are not limited to: turf,
ground cover, shrubs and trees, sprinkler and irrigation systems, ornamental lighting, drainage
systems, masonry walls, entryway monument, and associated appurtenances. These

improvements include all necessary service; operations; administration; and maintenance
required to keep the above-mentioned improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and satisfactory
working condition. The City utilizes the services of landscape maintenance contractors and City

crews for all regularly scheduled landscape maintenance. The specific locations of
improvements within each zone of the District are described in the following section.

The District provides and ensures the continued maintenance, servicing, administration, and

operation of various landscape improvements and associated appurtenances located within
the District.

Landscaped Easements - The location of landscaped easements, including street trees, may

include, but are not limited to: sidebars on interior streets, easements along Aten Road and a

9.S-acre park retention basin on the north side of the development.

The assessable parcels receive special benefit from the ongoing maintenance of the
landscaping, irrigation and drainage systems within the boundaries of the District. Specific

improvements include all ground cover, turf, shrubs, trees, and associated appurtenances. The

services provided include all necessary operations, administration, and maintenance required

to keep the above-mentioned improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and satisfactory condition.

The District through annual assessments budgeted and reviewed each fiscal year, funds the
continued maintenance of these improvements. All assessable parcels identified as being

within the District, share in both the cost and the benefits of the improvements. The costs

associated with the improvements are equitably spread among all benefiting parcels within the
Oistrict in proportion to the benefit received. The funds collected are dispersed and used for
only the operation and servicing of the District improvements.

The detailed plans and specifications for the improvements are on file in the office of the City

Clerk where they are available for public inspection. The plans and specifications for the
improvements are voluminous and are not bound in this Engineer's Report but by this
reference are incorporated herein and made a part of this Engineer's Report.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026
Page 2



C, DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP

Assessment District boundary maps have been prepared for the Landscape Maintenance
Assessment District in the format required by the L972 Act, and are on file with the City Clerk,
and, by reference, are made part of this Report. A subdivision map showing each of the
parcels included within the boundaries of the District and subject to the annual assessment
charge is incorporated as Exhibit "B" to this Report.

Citv of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026
Page 3



A, GENERAL

Ihe 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies for the purpose

of providing certain public improvements which include the construction, maintenance and
servicing of landscaping and appurtenant facilities. The 1972 Act further requires that the
cost of these improvements be levied according to benefit rather than assessed value:

'The net omount to be ossessed upon londs within on ossessment district moy be
opportioned by any formulo or method which fairly distributes the net amount
omong oll ossessoble lots or porcels in proportion to the estimoted benefits to be
received by eoch such lot or porcel from the improvements."

The formula used for calculating assessments in this District therefore reflects the
composition of the parcels, and the improvements and services provided, to fairly apportion
the costs based on benefit to each parcel.

ln addition, pursuant to Article XlllD Section 4 a parcel's assessment may not exceed the
reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel. Only special
benefits may be assessed and the District must separate the general benefits from the special
benefits. Therefore, the District assesses only for improvements that provide special benefit
and any improvements considered general benefit have been eliminated from the District
Assessments.

B, BENEFIT ANALYSIS

Special Benefits

The method of apportionment (method of assessment) is based on the premise that each
assessed parcel receives benefit from the improvements maintained and funded by the
assessments. Specifically, landscape improvements installed in connection with the
development of these parcels. The desirability of properties within the District is

enhanced by the presence of well-maintained landscaping and amenities in close
proximity to those properties.

The improvements generally include landscaped parkways, entryways, and appurtenant
facilities. The an nual assessments outlined in this Report are based on the estimated costs
to provide all necessary service, operation, administration, and maintenance required
each year to keep these improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and satisfactory condition
and benefit the properties. The special benefits associated with the local landscaping
improvements are specifically:

. Enhanced desirability of properties through association with the improvements.

. lmproved aesthetic appeal of properties within the District providing a positive
representation of the a rea.

o Enhanced adaptation of the urban environment within the natural environment from
adequate green space and landscaping.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2
Engineer's Repoft F\ 202512026

Page 4

SECTION III. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT



Environmental enhancement through improved erosion resistance, and dust and

debris control.

o lncreased sense of pride in ownership of property within the District resulting from
well-maintained improvements associated with the properties.

o Reduced criminal activity and property-related crimes (especially vandalism) against
properties in the District through well-maintained surroundings and amenities.

o Enhanced environmental quality of the parcels by moderating temperatures,
providing oxygenation and attenuating noise.

All of the preceding special benefits contribute to a specific enhancement and desirability
of each of the assessed parcels within the District and thereby provide a special

en hancement to the property.

2. General Benefits

It has been determined that the lots or parcels within this District receive unique and
special benefits from the maintenance of the improvements within the District. The
improvements maintained by the District were installed and constructed in connection
with the development of properties within the District and were neither required nor
necessarily desired by properties outside the District boundaries. lt has been determined
that these improvements and the ongoing maintenance of those improvements provide
special benefits to the parcels within the District and no parcels outside the District area
benefit from the maintenance of the improvements within the District. Therefore, there
are no benefits of a general nature to properties outside the District boundaries or the
public at large.

C. ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Pursuant to the Act, the costs of the District may be apportioned by any formula or method,
which fairly distributes the net amount to be assessed, among all assessable parcels in

proportion to the estimated special benefits to be received by each such parcel from the
improvements. The special benefit formula used within the District should reflect the
composition of the parcels, and the improvements and services provided, to fairly proportion
the costs based on estimated special benefit to each parcel.

This District utilizes an Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) method of apportionment. The EDU

method of apportionment uses the single-family residential parcel as the basic unit of
assessment. The typical single-family residential parcel is assigned one (1.0) Equivalent
Dwelling Unit. Every other land-use or property type is converted to EDU's based on an

assessment formula that equates the property's specific development status, type of
development (land-use), and size of the property, as compared to typical single-family
residential parcel.

Single Family Residential - This land use is defined as a fully subdivided residential home site
with or without a structure. This land use is assessed 1..0 EDU per lot or parcel. This is the base

value that all other properties are compared and weighted against (i.e. Equivalent Dwelling
Unit EDU).

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026
Page 5



Multifamily Residential- This land use is defined as a fully subdivided residential parcel that
has more than one residential unit developed on the property. This land use is assessed 1.0
EDU per u nit.

Planned-Residential Development - This land use is defined as any property not fully
subdivided with a specific number of proposed residential lots to be developed on the parcel.
This land use type is assessed at 1.0 EDU per planned (proposedlresidential lot.

Vacant Multi-Residential -This land use is defined as property currently zoned for residential
development, but a tentative or final tract map has not been submitted and/or approved.
This land use is assessed at 1.0 EDU per acre. Parcels less than 1 acre are assigned a minimum
of 1.0 EDU. Parcels over 50 acres are assigned a maximum of 50 EDU.

Exempt Parcels - This land use identifies properties that are not assessed and are assigned
0.00 EDU. This land use classification may include but is not limited to lots or parcels identified
as public streets and other roadways (typically not assigned an APN by the County); dedicated
public easements, rights-of-way, public greenbelts and parkways; utility rights-of-ways;
common areas, sliver parcels and bifurcated lots or any other property that cannot be
developed, publicly owned properties that are part of the District improvements or that have
little or no improvement value. These types of parcels are considered to receive little or no
benefit from the improvements and are therefore exempted from assessment.

The following table provides a listing of land use types, the Equivalent Dwelling Unit factor
applied to that land use type, and the multiplying factor used to calculate each parcel's
ind ividual EDU.

TABLE 1
Land Uses and Equivalent Dwelling Units EDU)

The EDU method of apportioning benefit is typically seen as the most appropriate and
equitable assessment methodology for calculating benefit in Districts formed under the 1972
Act, as the benefit to each parcel from the improvements are apportioned as a function of
land-use type, size and development. The following outlines the EDU applied to the various
parcels and properties within this District:

. Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch) - Four hundred forty-nine (2149) single-family residential
parcels, each receiving full and equal special benefit from the improvements. These
parcels are assigned an Equivalent Dwelling Unit of 1.0 EDU to reflect their special
benefits.

The Total Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU) for Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch) in Fy 2025/2026 is
449 EDU's.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

Pla n ned-Residential Development 1.000

. per Acre or portion thereof
per Parcel

1.000

1.000

1.000

0.000

per Planned Residentia I Lot

Vacant M u lti-Residentia I

Exem pt

per Un itlLot/Pa rcel

per Unit

EDU Multiplier

PaBe 6

Property Type

5ingle Family Residentia I

Multi-Family Residentlal



The Levy per Equivalent Dwelling Unit, or Rate, applied to each parcel is the result of dividing
the total Balance to Levy for each Zone, by the sum of the Zone EDU'S, for the fiscal year. This

Rate is multiplied by each parcel's individual EDU to determine the parcel's levy amount.

The following formulas are used to calculate the assessment for each parcel:

Formula

Total Balance to tevy / Total EDU = LeW per EDU

Parcel EDU x LeW per EDU = Parcel LeW Amount

D. ASSESSMENT RANGE FORMULA

Any new or increased assessment requires certain noticing and meeting requirements by law.

Prior to the passage of Proposition 218 (California Constitution Articles Xlllc and XlllD),

legislative changes in the Brown Act defined a "new or increased assessment" to exclude

certain conditions. These conditions included "any assessment that does not exceed an

assessment formula or range of assessments previously adopted by the agency or approved

by the voters in the area where the assessment is imposed." This definition and conditions
were later confirmed through Senate Bill 919 (Proposition 218 implementing legislation).

The purpose of establishing an Assessment Range Formula is to provide for reasonable

increases and an inflationary adjustment to annual assessments without requiring costly

noticing and mailing procedures, which could add to the District costs and assessments. As

part of the District formation, a property owner protest ballot proceeding was conducted
pursuant to the California State Constitution Article XlllD Section 4. This property owner
protest ballot proceeding includes the establishment of an initial Maximum Assessment as

well as an Assessment Range Formula.

Generally, if the proposed annual assessment (levy per EDU) for the current fiscal year is less

than or equalto the calculated Maximum Assessment, then the proposed annual assessment

is not considered an increased assessment. The Maximum Assessment is equal to the initial
Assessment (approved by property owners) increased each year, based upon the latest

composite percentage change in the Consumer Price lndex, All Urban Consumers, for the
Riverside-San Bernard ino-Ontario Area ("CPl"), as determined by the United States

Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, or its successor.

The Engineer shall compute the percentage difference between the percentage change each

year in CPI for March and the CPI for the previous March. The Engineer shall then adjust the
previous maximum assessment rate by an amount not to exceed the percentage change for
the upcoming fiscal year. Should the Bureau of Labor Statistics revise such index or

discontinue the preparation of such index, the Engineer shall use the revised index or a

comparable system as approved by the City Council for determining fluctuations in the cost

of living.

Beginning in the second fiscal year (FY 2006/2007l, for Zone 2005-03 (Sky Ranch) and each

fiscal year thereafter, the Maximum Assessment will be recalculated and a new Maximum
Assessment established. The Maximum Assessment is adjusted annually and is calculated

independent of the District's annual budget and proposed annual assessment. Any proposed

annual assessment (rate per EDU) less than or equal to this Maximum Assessment is not

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No.2
Engineer's Report FY 202512026

Page 7



considered an increased assessment, even if the proposed assessment is much greater than
the assessment applied in the prior fiscal year.

Although the Maximum Assessment will increase each year, the actual District assessments

may remain virtually unchan8ed. The Maximum Assessment adiustment is designed to
establish a reasonable limit on District assessments. The Maximum Assessment calculated

each year does not require or facilitate an increase to the annual assessment and neither
does it restrict assessments to the adjustment maximum amount. lf the budget and

assessments for the fiscal year do not require an increase, or the increase is less than the
adjusted Maximum Assessment, then the required budget and assessment may be applied

without additional property owner balloting. lf the budget and assessments calculated
require an increase greater than the adjusted Maximum Assessment then the assessment is

considered an increased assessment. To impose an increased assessment the City must

comply with the provisions of the Constitution Article XlllD Section 4(c) that requires a public

hearing and certain protest procedures including mailed notice of the public hearing and
property owner protest balloting. Property owners, through the balloting process, must
approve the proposed assessment increase. lf the proposed assessment is approved, then a

new Maximum Assessment is established for the District. lf the proposed assessment is not
approved, the City may not levy an assessment greater than the adjusted Maximum
Assessment previously established for the District.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2

Engineer's Report F\ 2025/2026
Page 8



The following is a brief description of the costs associated with the improvements and services

to be funded through the District.

A DIRECT COSTS

lvlaintenance costs/Labor

This includes all regular scheduled labor, contractors and general maintenance costs

including wages, salaries, benefits and contract services required to properly maintain
and ensure the satisfactory condition of all improvements and appurtenant facilities.

2. Utilities

The furn ishing of water and electricity required for the operation and maintenance of the
improvements and facilities.

3. Equipment and Supplaes

This item includes all materials, supplies, and equipment required to operate, maintain,
and ensure the satisfactory condition of all improvements and appurtenant facilities.

4. Repair and Miscellaneous Expenses

lncludes repairs to the improvements and faculties that are not included in the yearly

maintenance costs. These costs may include repair of damaged amenities due to storms,

vandalism, etc. Also included may be planned upgrades or replacement of improvements
and equipment that provides a direct benefit to the District.

B, ADMINISTRATION COSTS

1 District Administration

This item may include all or a portion of the administration and professional service costs

associated with the coordination of District services and operations including response to
public concerns and education, and procedures associated with the levy and collection of
assessments. This item also includes the costs associated with professionals to provide

administrative, legal, or engineering services specific to the District.

2. County Administration Fee

This is the cost to the District for the County to collect assessments on the annual property

tax roll.

City of Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2

EnBineer's R€port FY 2025/2026

Page 9

SECTION IV. DISTRICT BUDGET



TABTE 2

Pro Bud

The proposed FY 2075/2026 annual assessment is 5547.70 per EDU.

DIRECT COSTS

5161,000Maintenance Costs and Labor

60,7L1Capital lmprovement Expenditures

522L,L17DIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAL

tNctDENTAL COSTS/EXPENSES

s24,800
0Special Administration Costs

tNcTDENTAL COSTS/EXPENSES s24,8oO

tE55: FUNDS ON HAND 5o

524s,9L7TOTAT ASSESSMENT

DISTRICT STATISTICS

449Total Parcels
449Total Parcels Levied

449Total Equivalent Dwelling U nits

5s47.7OApplied Rate per EDU

5976.27Maximum Rate per EDU

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 2

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

Page 10

Zone 2(x)1{3
Slq RanchDescription

District Administration



CITY OF ITVIPERIAL

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2
(SKY RANCH)

ENGINEER'S REPORT
FISCAL YEAR 202512026

Report Submitted by:

Scott Koppe

Koppel & Gruber Public Finance

Registered
Exoq Dd rrl

,
No 20903o P

c

q
O
(-

OF \(

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No.2
Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

Page 11



EXHIBIT A
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL

FOR FISCAL YEAR 202512026

Parcel identification for each lot or parcel within the District, shall be the parcel as shown on
the lmperial County Secured Roll for the year in which this Report is prepared and reflective of
the Assessor's Parcel Maps.

The following pages contain a listing of parcels assessed within this District, along with the Zone
designation and proposed assessment amounts.



f) CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2

(SKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Situs Address
Residential

LJnitsZone
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005'03
2005-03

200s-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03

200s-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03
200s-03
200s-03
2005-03
200s-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03

064'311-001,000
064-311-002-000
064-311-003-000
064-31r.-004-000
064-311-005,000
064-311-006-000
064-311-007-000
064-311-008-000

064-311-009-000
064-311-010,000
064-311-011-000
064-311-012-000
064-311-013-000

0&-311,014,000
064,311-015-000
064-311-016-000
064,311,017-000
064-311-018-000
064-311'019-000
064-311-020-000
054,311-021-000
064-311-022-000
054-311-023-000
064-311-024-000
064-311-025-000

064-311-025-000
054-311-027,000
064-311-028-000
064-311-029-000

064-311-030-000
054,311-031,000
064-311-032-000

064-311-033-000
064-311-034-000
064-311-03S-000

064'311-036-000
064-311-037-000
064-311-038-000
054-311-039-000
064-311,040,000
064-311-041,000
064-311-042-000
0M,311-043-000
054-312-001,000
064-312-002-000
064,312-003-000
064-312-004-000
064-312-005-000
064-312-006-000
064-312-007-000

668 FTYING CLOUD DR

670 FLYING CLOUD DR

672 FTYING CLOUD DR

674 FLYING CLOUD DR

676 FI-YING CLOUD DR

578 FTYING CLOUD DR

680 FI-YING CLOUD DR

582 FTYING CLOUD DR

683 FtYIN6 CLOUD DR

681 FTYING CI-OUD DR

679 FTYING CLOUD DR

677 FTYING CLOUD DR

675 FLYING CLOUD DR

673 FLYING CTOUD DR

671 FLYING CTOUD DR

669 FLYING CTOUD DR

667 FLYING CLOUD DR

668 MC CARRAN CT

570 MC CARRAN CT

672 MC CARRAN CT

674 MC CARRAN CT

676 MC CARRAN CT

678 MC CARRAN CT

680 MC CARRAN CT

682 MC CARRAN CT

683 MC CARRAN CT

681 MC CARRAN CT

679 MC CARRAN CT

677 MC CARRAN CI
675 MC CARRAN CI
673 MC CARRAN CI
671 MC CARRAN CT

669 MC CARRAN CT

667 MC CTRRAN CI
568 BOLEY FIELD DR

670 EOLEY FIELD DR

572 BOLEY FIETD DR

674 BOLEY FIELO OR

676 BOLEY FIETD DR

678 BOLEY FIELD DR

680 BOLEY FIETD DR

682 EOLEY FIELD DR

684 EOLEY FIELD DR

2458 EARHART AVE

2456 EARHART AVE

2454 EARHART AVE

2452 EARHART AVE

2450 EARHART AVE

2448 EARHART AVE

2447 EARHART AVE

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAT

R€SIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENIIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

R ESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RE5IOENTIAL

Preoared by ..

54''.70
547.70

547.10
547.70

541.10
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70

547.10
547.70

547.10
547.70
547.70

547.10
s47.70
541.10
547.70

541.10
547.70

541.10
547.70

541.10
547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.10
547.70
s47.70
547.10
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
347.70
s47.70
s47.70
54-r.70

s47.70

547.70
541.10
547.70
s47.70
547.70
s47.70

Page 1 of 10

Land Use

code EDU Assessment



CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2

(sKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

Code

Residential
UnitsZone APN Situ5 Address EDU Assesrment

2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
200s-03
2005,03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03
2005,03
2005-03

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI,

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENIIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESID€NTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIOENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI"

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70

547.10
541.70
341.70

547.70
547.70

547.10

547.10
547.70
s47.10

547.70
s47.10
547.70
547.'tO

547.70

541.70
547.70
s47.70
547.70
547.10
547.70

547.70
s47.10

547.70
s47.70

547.70
547.10

547.70
547.70
s47.70

541.70
547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
547.70
v7.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
341.70
547.70

547.70
541.70
547.70

064-312-008-000
064-312-009-000
064-312-010-000
064,312-011-000
0 -312-012-000

064-312-013,000
0&-312-014-000
064-312,015-000
064-312-016-000
0g-312-017-000
054-312-018-000
054-312-019,000
064-312-020-000
064-312-021-000

064-312,022-000
054,312-023-000
0&-312-024-000
064-312-025-000
064-312-026-000
064,312-027,000
0&-312-028-000
064-312,029-000
0&-312-030-000
064-312-031-000
064-312-032-000

0g-312-033-000
064-312-034-000

064-312-035-000
064-312-036-000
064-312-037-000
054-312-038-000
064-312-039-000
064-312-040-000
064-312-041,000
064-312,042-000
064-312-043-000
064,312,044-000
0&-312-045'000
064-312-046-000
064-312,047,000
064,312-048-000
054-312-049,000
064-312-050-000
064,312-0s1-000
064-312-052-000
064,314-001-000
064-314-002-000
064-314-003-000

064-314-004-000
0a-314-005-000

2/149 EARHART AVE

2451 EARHART AVE

2453 EARHART AVE

2455 EARHART AVE

2457 EARHART AVE

2459 EARHART AVE

2458 LA GUARDIA AVE

2456 LA 6UARDIA AVE

2454 LA GUARDIA AVE

2452 LA GUARDIA AVE

2450 LA GUARDIA AVE

2448 TA GUARDIA AVE

2447 I.A GUARDIA AVE

2449 tA GUARDIA AVE

2451 LA GUARDIA AVE

2453 LA GUARDIA AVE

2455 LA GUAROIA AVE

2457 I.A GUARDIA AVE

2459 LA GUARDIA AVE

2458 O'HARE AVE

2456 O'HARE AVE

2454 O'HARE AVE

2452 O'HARE AVE

2450 O'HARE AVE

2iM8 O,HARE AVE

2iT47 O,HARE AVE

2449 O'HARE AVE

2451O'HARE AVE

2453 O'HARE AVE

2455 O'HARE AVE

2457 O'HARE AVE

2459 O'HARE AVE

2458 STAPLETON AVE

2456 STAPLETON AVE

2454 STAPLETON AVE

2452 SIAPLETON CT

2450 STAPTETON AVE

2!M8 STAPLETON AVE

2i147 STAPLETON AvE
2i'49 STAPLEION AVE

2451STAPLETON AVE

2453 STAPLETON AVE

2455 STAPLEION AVE

2457 STAPLETON AVE

2459 SlAPTETON AVE

2451STAPLETON AVE

2453 STAPLETON AVE

2465 STAPIETON AVE

2467 STAPLETON AVE

2469 STAPLETON AVE

5

5

5

5

s
S

s

5

5

)
5

s
S

5

s
5

5

S

5

5

s
s
5

5

S

s
s
s

S

s
5

s
5

5

s
s
s
$

S

s
5

5

5

5

5

5

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Prepared by N Page 2 of 10

A f\,,r,uywl(w



f!

Situs Address

Land us€
code

Residential

UnitsZone APN

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
200s-03
2005-03

2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
200s-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005,03
200s-03
200s-03
2005-03
200s-03
2005-03
200s-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESID€NTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIOENTIAL

541.70
y7.70
547.70

547.'tO
547.70

547.'10
547.70
s47.70

547.70
547.70

547.70

547.'?O

547.70
s47.70

541.70
541.70

547.10
547.70
547.70

547.J0
s47.70

541.70
547.70
s47.70
547.70
547.70

547.70
s47.70

547.70

347.70
s41.70

547.70

547.70
547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70

547.70
547.70
s47.70
s47.70
347.70
547.70
547.70
547.70

547.10
547.70
547.10
547.70

064-314-006-000
064-314-007-000
064-314-008-000

064-314-009-000
054-314-010-000

064-314-011-000
0&-314,012"000
064-314-013-000
064-314-014-000
064-314-015-000
064-314-016-000
054-314-017,000
064-314-018-000

064-314,019"000
064,314-020-000
064-314-021,000
064,314-022-000
0&-314-023-000
064-314-024-000

064-314-025-000
054-314-026-000
064-314-027-000
064,314-028-000
064-31.4-029-000
054-314-030-000

064-314-031-000

064-314-032-000
064-314-033-000

064,314-034-000
064-314-035-000
064-314,036-000
064-314-037-000
054-314-038,000
064-314-039-000
064-314-M0-000
064-314-041-000
064-314-042-000
064-314-043-000

064,314-044-000
054-314-045-000

0&-314-046-000
064-314-047-000
064-314,048-000
064-314-049-000
0&-314'050-000
064-314-051-000
064-314-052-000
064-314-0s3-000
064,314-054,000
064-314-055-000

2471 STAPLETON AVE

2473 STAPLETON AVE

2475 STAPLETON AVE

2475 STAPLETON AVE

2474 STAPLETON AVE

2472 STAPTETON AVE

2470 STAPLETON AVE

2468 sTAPLETON AVE

2465 STAPLETON AVE

2464 STAPLETON AVE

2462 STAPTETON AVE

2460 STAPI-ETON AVE

2461O'HARE AVE

2463 O'HARE AVE

2465 O'HARE AVE

2467 O'HARE AVE

2469 O'HARE AVE

2471O'HARE AVE

2473 O'HARE AVE

2475 O'HARE AVE

2476 O'HARE AVE

2474 O'HARE AVE

2472 O'HARE AVE

2470 O'HARE AVE

2468 O'HARE AVE

2466 O'HARE AVE

2454 O'HARE AVE

2462 O'HARE AVE

2460 O'HARE AVE

2451 LA GUARDIA AVE

2463 TA GUARDIA AVE

2465 LA GUARDIA AVE

2457 tA GUARDIA AVE

2469 LA GUARDIA AVE

2471 LA GUARDIA AVE

2473 LA GUARDIA AVE

2475 LA GUARDIA AVE

2476 LA GUARDIA AVE

2474 LA GUARDIA AVE

2472 LAGUARDIA AVE

2470 LA GUARDIA AVE

2468 LA GUARDIA AVE

2466 LA GUARDIA AVE

2464 TA GUARDIA AVE

2462 LA GUARDIA AVE

2460 LA GUARDIA AVE

2461 EARHART AVE

2463 EARHART AVE

2465 EARHART AVE

2467 EARHART AVE

5

s

s

5

5

s
s
S

5

s

s

s
s
S

s

s
s
5

S

s
s

5

s
5

5

s

s

s
s
s

s
s
5

S

s

s
5

5
s
s
s
s
5

s
s
s

s
s
S

5

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Preparedby \ 1,1.t. Page 3 of 10

CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO 2

(sKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR 202512026 TAX ROLL

EDU Assessment



CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2

(SKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

code
Residential

UnilsZone APN

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005,03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03
200s,03
200s-03
200s-03
2005-03
200s-03
2005-03
200s-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI,

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI,

RE5IDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

547.10

547.70
547.70

541.70
547.70
547.70

547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.10
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
s41.70

341.10
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
541.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
s47.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

541.70
547.70
547.10
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
547.70

064-314-056-000

064-314-057-000
064-314-058-000
064-314-059-000
064-314-060-000
064-314-062-000
064-314-063-000
064-314-064-000
064-314-055-000

064-314-065-000
064-314-057-000
064-314-068-000
054-314-073-000

064-315-014,000
064,315-015-000
064-315-016-000
054,315-017-000
054-315-018-000
064-315-019,000
0g-315-020-000
064,315-021-000
064-315-022-000
064-315-023-000
0g-315-033-000
064,315-034-000
064-315-035-000
064-315-035-000
054,315-037-000
064-315-038-000
054-315-039-000
0a-315-040-000
064-315-041-000
064-315-045-000
064-315-046-000
0&-315-047-000
064-315-048-000
064-316-001-000

064-316-002-000
064-316-003-000
054-316-004-000

064-316,005-000
064-316-006-000
064-316,007"000
064-316-008-000
064-316,009-000
054-316-010-000
064-3r.6-011,000
064-316-012-000
064,316-013-000
064,316-014-000

2469 EARHART AVE

2471 EARHART AVE

2473 EARHARTAVE

2475 EARHART AVE

2476 EARHART AVE

2472 EARHART AVE

2470 EARHART AVE

2468 EARHART AVE

2465 EARHART AVE

2464 EARHARTAVE

2452 EARHART AVE

2460 EARHART AVE

2474 EARHART AVE

625 EOTEY FIELD DR

623 EOLEY FIELD DR

62180LEY FIELD DR

619 BOLEY FIETD DR

617 BOLEY FIELD DR

615 BOTEY FIELD DR

613 BOTEY FIELD DR

611 BOLEY FIELD DR

609 BOLEY FIETD DR

507 EOLEY FIELD DR

2464 SKY HARBOR WAY

2462 SKY HARBOR WAY

2450 SKY HARBOR WAY

2458 SKY HARBOR WAY
2456 5(Y HARSOR WAY

2454 SKY HAREOR WAY

2452 SKY HAREOR WAY

2450 SKY HARBOR WAY

2448 SKY HAREOR WAY

2iI4O SKY HAREOR WAY

2442 SKY HAREOR WAY

2!T44 SKY HAREOR WAY

2445 SKY HARBOR WAY

624 EOLEY FIELD DR

622 EOLEY FIELD DR

620 BOLEY FIELD DR

618 BOLEY FIELD DR

616 BOLEY FIELD DR

614 BOLEY FIELD DR

612 BOLEY FIELD OR

610 BOLEY FIELD DR

608 BOLEY FIELD DR

606 EOLEY FIELD DR

607 MC CARRAN DR

509 MC CARRAN DR

611 MC CARRAN DR

613 MC CARRAN DR

5
5

)
s
)
5

s
s

s
s
5

5

s

s
s

s
s

s
5

s

s
5

S

s
s
s

5

5

s
S

s

5

5

s
s

s
s
S

s
s
s

5

5

5

5

5

S

s

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Prepared by f, Page 4 of 10

"w
Situs Address EDU Assessment



CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2

(SKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Iand Use

Code

Residential

UnitsAPN Situs Address EOU Assessmeat
2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005'03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
200s,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

200s-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005,03
200s-03
2005,03
2005,03

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESID€NTIAI,

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI"

RESIDENIIAI.

RESIOENTIAI"

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI,

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

547.70

547.J0
547.70

541.70
547.70

547.70
s47.70
547.70
541.70
547.10

541.70

547.70
547.70

541.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
541.70

547.70
s41.70
547.70
s47.10
547.70
547.70

547.70
54't.10

541.70
547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
541.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
547.10
547.70
547.70
547.70
541.70
54J.70
541.70
547.70

547.70
541.70
547.70

09,316-015-000
064-316-016-000
064,316-017-000
064-315-018-000
0&,316-019-000
064-316-020-000
064-317-001-000
0&-317-002-000
064-317-003-000
064-317-004-000
064-317-005-000
064-317-006-000
064,317-007-000
064-317-008-000
064-317-009-000

064-317-010-000

064-317-011,000
064,317-012-000
064-317-013-000
054-317-014-000
064-317-015-000
064-317,016-000
064-317-017-000
064,317-018-000
064-317-019-000
064-317-020-000
064-318-001-000
064-318-002-000
054,318-003-000
064-318-004-000
064-318-005-000

064-318-006-000
064-318,007-000
0&-318-008-000
064-318-009-000

064-318-010-000
064,318-011-000
0&-318-012-000
054-318-013-000
0&-318-014,000
064-318-015-000
054-318-016-000

064-318-017-000
064-318,018-000
064-318,019-000
064-318,020-000
064-319-001-000
064-319-002-000
064-319-003-000

064-319-004-000

515 MC CARRAN DR

517 MC CARRAN OR

619 MC CARRAN DR

621 MC CARRAN DR

623 MC CARRAN DR

625 MC CARRAN DR

524 MC CARRAN DR

622 MC CARRAN DR

620 MC CARRAN DR

618 MC CARRAN DR

516 MC CARRAN DR

614 MC CARRAN DR

612 MC CARRAN DR

610 MC CARRAN DR

608 MC CARRAN DR

605 MC CARRAN DR

607 FLYING CLOUD OR

609 FIYING CTOUD DR

611FLYING CLOUD DR

513 FTYING CLOUD DR

615 FI"YING CI-OUD DR

617 FLYING CTOUD DR

519 FLYING CLOUD DR

621FLYING CLOUD OR

623 FLYING CLOUD DR

625 FLYING CLOUD DR

624 FTYING CLOUD DR

622 TLYING CLOUD DR

520 FTYING CLOUD DR

618 FLYING CTOUD DR

616 FLYING CLOUD DR

614 FLYING CIOUD OR

612 FTYING CLOUD OR

610 FLYING CTOUD DR

608 FLYING CLOUD DR

506 FI.YING CLOUD DR

607 DULLES DR

609 DUI.LES DR

611 DUTLES OR

613 0UU-ES DR

61S DULTES DR

617 DULTES DR

619 DULLES DR

621DULtES DR

623 OULLES DR

52S DULLES DR

624 DULLES DR

622 DULLES DR

620 DULLES DR

6lE DUI.LES OR

s
)
5

)
5

5

5

s
s

s
5

5

S

5

5

s
s

s
5

5

S

s
5

s

5

5

)
5

5

s
s

s
s

5

s

5

5

5

s

s
s

5

s

5

5

5

5

5

5

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Prepared by [, . .] .1'::t Page 5 of 10

Zone

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I



f! CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2

(sKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Ure
code

Re5idential

UnitsSitus Address EDU Assessment

2005-03

2005"03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005,03
2005,03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

200s-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005,03
2005,03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005'03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03
2005-03
2005,03

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESID€NTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESID€NTIAt

RESIDENTIAL

064,319-005'000
0@-319-006-000
064-319-007-000
064-319-008-000
064-319-009-000
064-319-010-000
064-319,011-000
064-319-012-000
064-319-013-000
064-319-014-000
064-319-015-000
064,319-016,000
064-319-017-000
054-319,018-000
064-319-019-000
064-319-020-000
064-321-001-000

064-321-002-000
064-321-003-000
064-321-004-000
064-321-005-000
064-321-006-000
054-321-007-000
064-321-009-000
064-321-010-000
054-321-011-000
064,321-012,000
064-321-013-000
064,321-014,000
064-321-015-000
064,321,016-000
064-321-017-000
0&-321-018-000
064-321-019-000
064-321-020-000

064-321-021,000
0&-321-022-000
064-321-023,000
064-321-024,000
064-321-025-000
0@-321-026-000
064-321-027-000
064-321-028-000
064-321-029-000
064-321,030-000
064-321-031-000
064-321-032'000
064,321,033-000
064-321,034-000
064,321,035-000

616 DULLES DR

614 DULLES DR

512 DULLES DR

610 OULLES DR

608 OULLES DR

506 OULLES DR

607 SHEFFIELD DR

509 SHEFFIETD DR

6ll SHEFFIELD DR

613 SHEFFIETD DR

615 SHEFFIEI.D DR

617 SHEFFIELD DR

619 SHEFFIELD DR

621 SHEFFIELD DR

623 SHEFFIELD DR

625 SHEFFIELD DR

658 SKY VIEW CT W
670 Sr(Y VrEW CT W
672 S(Y VIEW CT W
674 SKY VIEW CT W
676 SKY VIEW CT W
678 SKY VIEW CT W
580 SKY VtEW CT W
683 SKY VIEW CT W
581 SXY VIEW CT W
679 SKY VIEW CT W
577 SKY V|EW Cr W
675 SKY VIEW CT W
573 SKY V|EW Cr W
671 SKY VIEW CT W
669 S(Y VIEW CT W
667 SKY VIEW CT W
668 KITTY HAWX CT

670 KITTY HAWK CT

672 KITTY HAW( CT

674 XITW HAWK CT

676 KITTY HAWK CT

678 KITW HAWK CT

580 KITTY HAWK CT

682 KITry HAWK CT

683 KITTY HAWK CT

681 I(ITTY HAW( CI
679 KITTY HAWK CT

677 KITTY HAWK CT

675 KITTY HAWK CT

673 KITTY HAWK CT

571 KITTY HAWK CT

669 KITTY HAWK CT

667 KITW HAWK CT

658 DULLES CT W

Prepared by \ Page 6 of 10

s47.70

547.70

541.70
547.70

541.70
547.70

541.10
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
s47.70
547.70

547.70
547.10

547.10
547.10
547.70

547.10
s47.70

547.10
547.70

541.10
547.70

541.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

541.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.10
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
s47.70
547.70
s47.'to
547.70

Zone



CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO, 2

(sKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

codeZone Situs Address EDU Asses5ment

2005-03

200s-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03

200s-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03

200s-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03

200s-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03
2005-03

2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
200s,03
2005-03
2005,03

200s-03
200s,03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005,03
200s-03
200s-03

2005-03

0&-321-036-000
064-321-037-000

064-321,038,000
064-321-039-000
064-321-040,000
064-321,M1,000
064-321-042-000
064,321,043-000
064-321-044,000
064-321-045-000

054-321-046-000
064-321-047-000

064-321-048-000
064 32r.,049-000
064,321-0s0-000
064-321-051-000
064-321,054-000
044-322-001-000
064-322-002,000
064-322-003-000
064-322-004-000
064-322-005-000
0&-322-006-000
064-322-007-000
064-322-008,000
064-322-009-000
064 322,010,000
064-322-011,000
064-122-O12-OOO

064-322-013-000
064 322,014,000
064-322-015-000
064-322,016-000
o64-322-Ot7 -O00

064,322,018,000
064-322-019-000
064-322-020-000

064-322-021-000
o@-322-022-000
0@-322-023-000
064-322,024,000
0&'322'025-000
064 322,026,000
064-322-027 -000

064,322,028,000
064-322 029-000
064,322-030,000
064-322-031-000
064-322-032-000
064-322-033-000

670 DULLES CT W
672 OUTLES CT W
674 DUTLES CT W
676 DULLES CT W
678 DU|-LES CT W
580 DULLES CT W
682 DUTLES CT W
683 DULLES CT W
681 DULLES CT W
679 DULLES CT W
677 DULTES CT W
675 DULTES CT W
673 DULLES CT W
671 DULLES CT W
669 DULLES CT W
667 OULLES CT W

582 sKY VIEW CT W
2438 EARHART cT
2436 EARHART CT

2434 EARHART CT

2432 EARHART CT

2430 EARHART CT

2428 EARHART CT

2426 EARHART CT

2424 EARHART CT

2425 EARHART CT

2427 EARHART CI
2429 EARHART CT

2431 EARHART CT

2433 EARHART CT

2435 EARHART CT

2437 EARHART CI
2439 EARHART CT

2438 LA GUARDIA CT

2436 LA GUAROIA CT

2434 LA GUARDIA CT

2432 LA GUARDIA CT

2430 LA GUARDIA CT

2428 LA GUAROIA CI
2426 LA GUARDIA CT

2424 LA GUARDIA CT

2423 LA GUARDIA CT

2425 tA GUAROIA CT

2427 LA GUARDIA CT

2429 LA GUARDIA CT

2431 tA GUARDIA CT

2433 LA GUARDIA CT

2435 LA GUAROIA CT

2437 LA GUARDIA CT

2439 LA GUAROIA CI

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

Page 7 of 10

s47.70
547.10

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.10
547.70

547.10
547.70

547.'rO

s47.70

541.10
547.70

347.70
547.70
s47.70
547.70
547.70

547.70

547.10
547.70

547.70
547.10
s47.70
547.10
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.10
547.70

547.70
547.'lO

547.70
547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70
547.10

547.70
547.70
547.70
547.10
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70

'j'ffi-#

Residential
Units

Prepared by r' 1. ,1..(,:: L



f\ CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2

(SKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

code
Residential

UnitsZone 5itu5 Address EDU Assessment

200s-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03

200s-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
200s-03
2005-03

2005-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005 03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005-03
2005,03
2005-03
200s-03
2005-03
200s-03
2005-03

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENIIAT

RESIDENTIAI,

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI,

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RE5IDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI,

RESIDENTIAI-

541.70
s47.70

547.70

541.70
547.70

541.70
v7.70
541.70
547.70
s47.70

547.70

54't.70
541.70

547.10
541.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

54?.70
547.70

547.10
547.70
s47.70
541.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

541.10
547.70

541.10
547.70
s41.70

541.70
547.70

541.10
s47.70

54J.70
s47.10

541.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
s41.70
547.70
s47.70

064-322-034-000
064-322-035-000
064-322-036-000
064-322-037-000
064-322-038-000
064-322-039-000
064-322-040-000
064-322-041-000
064-322-042-000
064-322-cE3-000
064-322-044-000
064-322-04s-000
054-322-046-000
064-322-047 -OOO

064-322-048-000
054,322-049,000
064-322-050-000
054-322-051-000
064-322-052-000
054-322-053-000
064-322-054-000
064-322"055-000

064-322-0s5-000
064-322-057-000
064-322-0s8-000
064-322-059-000
064-322-050-000
064-322-063-000
054,322-054-000
064-322-065-000
054,322-056-000
064-322-067 -OOO

054'322-068-000
054-322-069-000
054-324-001-000
064-324-002-000
064-324-003-000
054-324,004-000
064,324-005-000
064-324-006-000
064-324-007-000
064-324-008-000
064-324-009-000
064-324-010-000
064-324-011-000
064-324-012-000
064-324-013-000
064-324,014,000
064,324-015-000
064-324,016'000

2438 0 HARE CT

2436 O'HARE CT

2434 O'HARE CT

2432 O'HARE CT

2430 O'HARE CT

2428 O'HARE CT

2426 O'HARE CT

2424 O'HARE CT

2423 O'HARE CT

2425 O'HARE CT

2427 O'HARE CT

2429 O'HARE CT

2431O'HARE CT

2433 O'HARE CT

243S O'HARE CT

2437 O'HARE CT

2439 O'HARE CT

2438 STAPLETON CT

2436 STAPLETON CT

2434 STAPLETON CT

2432 STAPTEION CT

2430 STAPTETON CT

2428 STAPTETON CT

2426 STAPLETON CT

2424 STAPTETON CT

2423 STAPLETON CT

2425 STAPtETON CT

2431STAPTETON CT

2433 STAPI-ETON CT

2435 STAPLETON CT

2437 STAPI-ETON CT

2439 STAPTETON CT

2427 STAPLETON CT

2429 STAPTETON CT

624 SKY VIEW DR

622 SKY VIEW DR

620 SKY VIEW DR

618 sKY VIEW DR

516 S(Y VIEW DR

614 SKY VIEW DR

612 S(Y VIEW DR

610 SKY VI€W DR

608 SKYVIEW DR

606 SKY VIEW DR

604 sKY VIEW DR

602 sKY VIEW DR

2414 5KY HAREOR WAY

2416 SKY HAREOR WAY

2418 sKY HAREOR WAY
2420 sKY HAREOR WAY

frepared by [ .,.,l Page 8 of 10



f} CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2

(sKY RANCH)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

code
Residential

UnitsZon e APN Situs Address EDU Alsessment

2005,03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005 03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
200s-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005,03
200s-03

2005-03
2005,03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03

2005-03
2005-03
2005 03
2005-03
2005 03
2005 03
2005-03
200s-03
2005,03
200s-03
2005-03
2005-03

064-324-017-000
064-324-018-000
054-324-019-000
064-324-020-000
064-324-021-000
064-324-022-000
064-324-023-000
064-324-024-000
054,324-025,000
064-32S-001,000

064-325-002-000
064-325-003-000
064-325-004-000

064-325-005-000
064-325-006-000
064-325-007,000
064-325-008-000
064,325,009-000
064-325-010-000
064-325-011-000

064-325-012-000
064-325-013-000

064-325-014-000
064-325-015-000

064-325-016-000
0&-325-017-000
064-325-018-000
064-325-019-000

054-325,020,000
064-326-001-000
064,326,002,000
064-326-003-000
064-326'004-000
064-326-005-000
064-326,006-000
064-326-007-000
064-326-008-000

064-326-009-000

054-326-010,000
064-326-011-000
064-326-012-000
064-326-013-000
064-326-014-000
064-326-015-000
054,326-016,000
064-326'017-000
054-326,018,000
064-326-019-000
064-326-020-000

2422 SKY HARBOR WAY

2424 SKY HAREOR WAY
2426 SKY HARSOR WAY

2428 SKY HARBOR WAY

2430 SKY HARBOR WAY
2432 S(Y HAREOR WAY

2434 sKY HARBOR WAY

2436 SKY HAREOR WAY

2438 SKY HAREOR WAY
625 S(Y VIEW OR

623 5(Y VIEW DR

62l SKY VIEW DR

619 SKY VIEW DR

617 SKY VIEW DR

615 S(Y VIEW DR

613 S(Y VIEW DR

611 Sr(Y VrEW DR

609 SKY VIEW OR

607 SKY VIEW DR

506 KITTY HAWK DR

608 KITry HAWK DR

610 KITTY HAW( DR

612 KITTY HAWK DR

614 KITTY HAWK DR

516 KITTY HAWK DR

618 KITTY HAW( DR

620 XITTY HAWK DR

622 KITTY HAWK OR

624 (ITTY HAW( DR

625 KITTY HAWK OR

623 KITTY HAWK DR

621 KITTY HAWK OR

619 KITTY HAWK OR

517 KITW HAWK DR

615 KITTY HAWK DR

613 KITTY HAWK DR

611 KITTY HAWK DR

609 KITTY HAWK DR

607 KITTY HAWK DR

606 SHEFFIELD DR

608 SHEFFIELD DR

610 SHEFFIELD DR

612 SHEFFIELD DR

614 SHEFFIELD DR

616 SHEFFIELD OR

618 SHEFFIELO DR

620 SHEFFIETD DR

622 SHEFFIELD DR

624 SHEFFIELD DR

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIOENTIAT

RESiDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RE5IDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

547.70

547.70

547.70
547.70

547.10
547.70

541.70
547.70

341.70
547.70
s47.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.70
547.10
547.70

547.70
547.70

547.10
547.70

547.10
547.70

547.10
547.70

547.10
541.70

547.10
547.70

547.10
547.70
s47.70
547.10
547.70

547.'10
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70
547.10

547.70
547.70
547.70
547.70

Prepared by f, Page 9 of 10



/1 f\nuwy
CITY OF IMPERIAL

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 2
(sKY RANCH)

FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

code
Residential

UnitsZone APN Situs Address EDU Assessment

Total Levy
Total ParcelCount

S 24s,917.30
449

Page 10 of 10Prepared by li :' .,1 i,i:,. '



EXHIBIT B
DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS



6
!

E

-)

._<-l

4hq"ynII Arr.qf lqC

Eat'rl O

La osda G

Ollee O

Sbpbll O

Srddrod Gbn Ave

lbrvE GEY Td

otge Ale

S@!er A\e

N

i
z
3(J
-&
F.o

--<c
-dFiE
i,z2
223
XE;;ztFi<\J
-EiOA

-il
a
QA
-z
s

At

B

B

--r

I

I

+-
I

I

I

-i---

--{-



DATE SUBMITTED

SUBMITTED BY

DATE ACTION REQUIREI)

5i21/2025
SPECIAI- IAX

ADMINIS I RATOR

6r-li 2025

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda Item No. b-,
COUNCIL AC IION (r
PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED (

RESOI,UTION (X

ORDINANCI] IST READINC (

ORDINANCI] 2ND READINC (

CITY CLERK'S INITIALS (

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION:
IMPERIAL l./G/rZ.VG MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I (Paseo del Sol and
Wildflou'er Subdivisions)

DEPARTMIIN I INVOLVED; t'INANCE

BACKCR( )t iNI),SLil\,lMARY

The Ciry" Councilu'ill adopt these three resolutions for intenl Io initiate, levy an assessment for fiscal ;-ear
(*FY*') 2025/2026, order an engineer's report, and set a public hearing. Following the intent meeting and
adoption ofthe resolutions, a public hearing will be held on June 18, 2025 to take testimony and adopt
resolutions to accept the engineer's report and approve a levy for FY 202512026.

The proposed FY 202512026 annual assessment is $100.86 per Parcel ($50.43 per EDU) for Wildflower
and $97.70 per Parcel ($48.85 per EDU) for Paseo del Sol, rvhich are equal to the maximum assessment
rates allowed.

FISCAL IMPACT: NOT TO EXCEED

The funds generated are used tbr the purposes stated in the original formalion ofthis
district- Each )ear the assessments on individual parcels may be increased up to the
Consumer Price Index.

ADMIN
SERVI('IJS SICN
INITIAI-S

STAFF RI:( ( )l\'11\IENDATION

Staffrecommcnds that the Cit) Clouncil adopt the three resolutions initiating thc
FY 2025/2026 annual a-ssessmcnts.

I)F-PI,INIIIAI,S U

MANAGER'S RECOMMENDAI'ION

Approve as presented.

CITY
MANACER's
INITIALS

MOTION To ADOPT

IMPI]RIAL LIGHTINC MAINTENANCE I)ISI-RICT NO, I

( l) Res. No. 2025-25. Initiating Proceedings lbr thc Annual l.cr1:
(2) Res. No.2025-2,1. Preliminarl Appro!al ofthe Engineer's Rcponi and.
(3) Res. No. 2025-23. lntention to Conducl a Public Hearing and ordcr the Levl olAsscssments.

,.\I'PR0\'L I)
I)IS \PPROvI- D

( )

)

REJECTI]D
DEFERRFT)

(

I

)

)(

SECONDED
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT: RI]t]I:RRED TO

S[,TBJEC I l

uv\i

A*.a



RESOLT- TIO\ NO. 2025-2-3

A RESOLUTION oF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CIT}'
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING ITS
INTENTION TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
MATTER OF ASSESSMENTS AND ORDER THE LEVY OF
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE CITY OF IMPERIAL LIGHTING
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I, FOR FISCAL YEAR
2025t2026

WHEREAS, the City Council has by previous Resolution. initiated proceedings for the
levy and collection of assessments against lots and parcels of land within the City of Imperial
Lighting Maintenance District No. I (the "District") for Fiscal Year ("FY") 202512026. pursuant

Io the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972. Part 2 ol Division l5 ofthe Streets

und Highu'ays Code ol'Californiu, beginningwith Section 22500 (the "Act'"); and.

WHEREAS. the Act provides for the City Council to levy and collect the amual
assessments for the District on the Imperial County tax roll on behall of the District to pay the

maintenance. services, and operation of tacilities and improvements related thereto; and.

WHEREAS. the City Council has retained Koppel & Gruber Public Finance as the District
Assessment Engineer for the Annual Levy of the District. and to prepare and file an Engineer's
Report (the "Report") u'ith the City Clerk in accordance with the Act. and that said Report has

been prepared and filed with the City Clerk and presented to the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORI,, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 2: l he City Council hereby declares its intention to levy and collect assessments against

lots and parcels of land within the District for the Fiscal Year commencing July I . 2025, and ending
June 30. 2026. to pay the costs and expenses ol the improvements which are described in the
Report. The City Council finds that the public's best interest requires such levy and collection.

Section 3: The territory of the District is within the boundaries and jurisdiction of the District.
and the City of lmperial within the Countl' of Imperial. State ol California. The boundary map

describing the District is on file with the City Clerk and is hereby incorporated b1-'reference into
this Resolution. The District is designated as the "City ollmperial Lighting District No. 1."

The boundaries of the District are non-contiguous and consist of all parcels with the Zone 2001-
0l (Wildflower) and Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol). A general description of each Zone is as

follows:

Section l: The above recitals are lrue and correct.



a

a

Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) is located in the west portion olthe City of Imperial. generally
South of Joshua Tree Street and West of La Brucherie Road. Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower)
consists of all assessable parcels located in the Wildflower No. 8 subdivision in the City;

Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) is located in the northeast portion of the City of Imperial.
generally North of Aten Road. and East ol Highway 86. Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol)
consists ofall parcels located in the Paseo del Sol subdivision within the City.

Local streetlights in close proximity, within approximately 90 feet, to certain lots and

parcels;

Arterial streetlights. which provide a special benefit to all the assessable parcels in the

District.

Section 5: The District Assessment Engineer has prepared and filed with the City Clerk. and the
City Clerk has presented to the City Council a Report, in connection with the proposed
improvements. a description of an annual inflationary adjustment that will be applied to the
assessments in subsequent fiscal years and levy and collection ofassessments against lots and parcels

of land within the District for FY 202512026 in accordance with Chapter L Article J of the Act. and

the City Council did by Resolution approve such Repo(. Reference is hereby made to said Report for
a detailed description of improvements. the boundaries ofthe District. and the proposed assessments

upon assessable lots and parcels of land within the District.

fu!!q.!1 The District and the associated assessments as outlined in the Engineer's Report are in
compliance with the provisions of Califomia Constitution Article XIIID.

Section 7: The Citv Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a Public Hearing conceming
the improvements and the levy of assessments lor the District in accordarce with Chaprer 2. Article
l. Secrions 22590 olthe Act. Notice is hereby given that on Wednesday, June 18, 2025, at 7:00
p.m. the City Council *'ill hold a Public Hearing lor the District for Fiscal Year 202512026. or as

soon thereafter as feasible. The Public Hearing will be held in the City Council's regular meeting
chambers located at 220 West 9th Street. Imperial. Califbmia, at the time so fixed. At the hearing,
all interested persons shall be afforded the opportunity to hear and be heard.

Section 8: The City Clerk shall cause notice to be given ofthe time and place ofthe Public Hearing
by causing the publishing of this Resolution once in the local paper not less than ten (10) days

before the date ofthe hearing and by posting a copy of this Resolution on the offlcial bulletin board
customarily used b1'the City Council for the posting ofnotices.

Section 4: The improvements ofthe District are briefly described as the operation. administration.
maintenance and servicing ofall streetlight improvements and appurtenant facilities and expenses

associated with the District that were installed as part of the property development u'ithin the

District and will be maintained by the City of Imperial or their designee through annual
assessments namely:



Section 9: The Mayor. Cit.v Clerk, the City Manager. the City Council and such officers and

employees of the City as are appropriate. are authorized and directed to execute such other
documents and take such further action as shall be consistent with the intent and purpose of this
Resolution.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held
on the 4'h day ofJune, 2025.

JAMES TUCKER.
Mayor

ATTEST:

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
Citl,Clerk

I. Kristina Shields, City Clerk of the City of Imperial, Califomia, hereby certify that the
foregoing Resolution No. 2025-23 was duly adopted at a meeting of the Imperial City Council at

its meeting hetd on the 41h day ofJune, 2025. by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
Imperial. California. on June 4, 2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS,
City Clerk



Iil \()t.t t'l()\ \(). 2(t25-l-l

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, FOR PRELIMINARY
APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER'S ANNUAL LEVY
REPORT REGARDING THE IMPERIAL LIGHTING
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I; AND THE LEVY AND
COLLECTION OF ANNT]AL ASSESSME,NTS RE,LATED
THERETO FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

WHEREAS, the City Council has. by previous Resolution. ordered the preparation of the
Fiscal Year (*FY") 202512026 Annual Engineer's Report (the "Report") in connection with the
City of lmperial Lighting Maintenance District No. I (the "Districf'). and the levy and collection
of assessments against lots and parcels of land within the territory for the Fiscal Year commencing
July l. 2025. and ending June 30, 2026. to pay the maintenance. servicing. and operation of the

improvements. pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972. Part 2 o/
Division l5 ol the Steets and Highways ('ode of California, beginning v'ith Section 22500 (Ihe
"Act")l and,

WHEREAS. the District Assessment Engineer has prepared and filed with the City Clerk
and the City Clerk has now presented to the City Council the Engineer's Report entitled "City of
Imperial Lighting Maintenance District No. I (Paseo del Sol and Wildflower) Engineer's Report
FY 2025/2026": and.

WHEREAS. the City Council has carefully examined and reviewed the Report as

presented. and is preliminarily satisfied with the District. the improvements described therein. each

and all of the budget items and documents as set forth therein. and is satisfied that the proposed

annual assessments. on a preliminary basis. have been spread in accordance with the special
beneflts received lrom the improvements, operation, administration, maintenance and services to
be performed within the District. as set forth in said Report.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, AS FOLLOWS:

Section l: The above recitals are all true and correct

Section 2: The Report as presented. consists ofthe follou'ing:

o A Description of Improvements:

r The Annual Budget (Costs and Expenses of Services, Operations and Maintenance)l

o The Method ofApportionment and the proposed amount to be levied and collected against

each Assessor Parcel within the District for FY 2025/2026:

o The District Roll containing the Levy for each Assessor Parcel Number within the Districu
and



o An exhibit showing the boundaries of the District.

Section 3: The District and the associated assessments as outlined in the Engineer's Repon are in
compliance with the provisions of Catifomia Constitution Article XIIID.

Section {: 'l'he Report is hereby approved on a preliminary basis. and ordered to be filed in the

Office of the City Clerk as a permanent record and to remain open to public inspection.

Section 5: The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution, and the

minutes of this meeting shall so reflect the presentation olthe Report.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held
on the 4th day ofJune.2025.

JAMES TUCKER.
May'or

ATTEST:

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk

I, Kristina Shields. City Clerk of the City of Imperial. Califomia. hereby certify that the

foregoing Resolution No. 2025-24 was duly adopted at a meeting of the Imperial City Council at

its meeting held on the 4th day ofJune.2025. by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
Imperial, Califomia. on June 4.2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk



RESOLI. TION NO. 2025-25

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF IMPERIAL, CALIFORNIA, INITIATING
PROCEEDINGS FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE IMPERIAL LIGHTINC
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. I. FOR FISCAL YEAR
2025/2O26: AND ORDERING THE PREPARATION OF AN
ENGINEER'S REPORT IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City Council by previous Resolutions formed and approved maximum
annual assessment rates for the City of Imperial Lighting Maintenance District No. I (the
"District"), pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping und Lighring Act d 1972, Part 2 oJ

Division 15 of the Streets and Highways Code o/ California, beginning u,ith Section 22500 (the
"Act"): and,

WHEREAS. the Act provides the City Council the authority to annually lery and collect
assessments for the District on the Imperial County tax roll on behalf of the District to pay the

maintenance. senices. and operation of facilities and improvements related thereto: and.

WHEREAS. the City Council desires to initiate proceedings fbr the levy and collection ol
annual assessments against lots and parcels of land within the District for Fiscal Year (''FY")
202512026 pursuant to provisions ofthe Act: and.

WHERf,AS. the City Council has retained Koppel & Gruber Public Finance ("K&G
Public Finance") for the purpose ofpreparing and filing an Engineer's Report (the "Report") with
the City Clerk in accordance with the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The City Council hereby appoints K&G Public Finance as the District Assessment

Engineer. and orders K&G Pubtic Finance to prepare the Engineer's Report conceming the District
and the levy ofassessments for FY 202512026. in accordance with Chopter l. Article J. beginning
tirh Section 22i6i ol the Act.

Upon completion of the Report. said Report shall be fited with the City Clerk. who shall submit

the same to the City Council for its consideration pursuant to Section 225t16 of the Act.

Section 2: The improvements include but are not limited to the operation" administration.
maintenance and servicing ol streetlights and appurtenant facilities and expenses associated with
the District that were installed as part of the property development within the District and will be

maintained by the City of Imperial or their designee through annual assessments. The Report

describes in more detail the items to be maintained and sen'iced.



Sectio n -1: The City Council hereby determines that to provide the improvements described in
Section 2 ofthis Resolution, it is necessary to levy and collect assessments against lots and parcels

within the District.

Section 4: The City Manager ofthe City of Imperial is hereby authorized and directed to take any

and all action necessary and appropriate in connection with the annual levy and collection of
assessments for the District.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held
on the 411'day ofJune. 2025.

JAMES TUCKER.
Mayor

ATTEST

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk

I. Kristina Shietds, City Clerk of the City of Imperial, California, hereby certify that the

foregoing Resolution No. 2025-25 was duly adopted at a meeting of the Imperial City Council at

its meeting held on the 4th day of June. 2025,by the lbllowing vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the City of
Imperial. Califomia, on June 4. 2025.

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk



C*l d

California

City of Imperial

Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

(Paseo Del Sol and Wildflower)

Engineer's Report

Fiscal Year 202512026

Report Dated: lday 27,2025

{it;

Koeeur&Gnumurn
trt Bt-r(' t.'t\.\\( ti

J34 \'ia \-€ ra (l ruz, Suite 256

Sfl llx€{){. ( ;ditomia s2o78

760-5 t O-OzqO

inI(€l(gp[n€t



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I. OVERVIEW

A. lntroduction

SECTION II. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT.........

A. Boundaries of the District

B. Description of the District lmprovements and Services

C District Boundary Map...................

sEcTtoN t. METHOD OF APPORT|ONMENT................................

L

1

z

2

z

3

4

4

4

5

7

9

B. Benefit Ana 1ysis............

C. AssessmentMethodology...............

D. Assessment Range Formula

SECTION IV. DISTRICT BUDGET

EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT A: PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026

EXHIBIT B: DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS



SECTION I. OVERVIEW

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026
Page 1

A, INTRODUCTION

The City of lmperial ("City'') annually levies and collects special assessments in order to
continue the maintenance of the improvements within the lmperial Landscape Maintenance
District No. 1 ("District"). The District was formed and annual assessments are levied,
pursuant Io the Landscaping ond Lighting Act of 7972, Port 2 of Division 15 of the Colifornio
Streets ond Highwoys Code ("1972 Act") and in compliance with the substantive and
procedural requirements of the Colifornia State Constitution" Article XlllD (" Aftide XlllD").

This report constitutes the annual update of the Engineer's Report ("Report") which
provides updated information regarding the budget and factors that affect the assessment.
The annual budget for the maintenance and operation of the improvements is based on
estimated expenses for the upcoming fiscal year. Parcels within the District are assessed
proportionately for only those improvements and services that are a special benefit as

determined in the original formation Englneer's Report.

The word "parcel," for the purposes of this Report, refers to an individual property assigned
its own Assessor's Parcel Number by the lmperial County Assessor's Office. The lmperial
County Auditor/Controller uses Assessment Parcel Numbers and specific Fund Numbers, to
identify on the tax roll, properties assessed for special district benefit assessments.

Following consideration of all public comments and written protests at a noticed Public
Hearing, the City Council will confirm the Report as submitted or amended and order the
levy and collection of assessments for Fiscal Year ("FY") 2025/2026 pursuant to the 1972
Act. The assessment information approved will be submitted to the County
Auditor/Controller and included on the property tax roll for each benefiting parcel.

ln November 2001, the District was formed comprising of one zone of improvement, Zone
2001-01 (Wildflower). The formation was pursuant to City Council resolution following a

property owner protest ballot proceeding, conducted in compliance with the provisions of
Article XlllD Section 4, to approve and confirm the Maximum Assessments and an
Assessment Range Formula (inflationary factor) for Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) District. ln
February 2002, a second zone of improvement, Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del 5ol), was annexed
into the Oistrict following a similar property owner protest ballot proceeding, conducted in

compliance with the provisions of Article XlllD Section 4, to approve and confirm the Zone
2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) Maximum Assessments and an Assessment Range Formula
(inflationary factor). Although the City Council must consider all property owner comments
or protests prior to levying an annual assessment each year, the Council may approve any
proposed assessment that is less than or equal to the adjusted maximum assessment rate
previously approved for each zone.

The Constitutional provisions of Article XlllD do not alter the non-conflicting provisions of
the 1972 Act and this Report and the method of apportionment contained herein utilize
commonly accepted assessment engineerinB practices consistent with the Act and the
provisions of the Constitution. All new or increased assessments (including any annexations)
will be subject to the substantive and procedural requirements of Article XlllD Section 4.

Changes in land use or parcel subdivisions resulting in an increase to a particular parcel or
group of parcels are not considered an increased assessment.



SECTION II. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

A, BOUNDARIES OF THE DISTRICT

The boundaries of the District are non-contiguous and consist of all parcels with the Zone

2001-01 (Wildflower) and Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol). A map showing the boundaries of
the District has been previously filed with the City Clerk and by reference is made part of
this Report.

Zone 2001 -01 (Wildflower)

Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) is located in the west portion of the City, generally South of
Joshua Tree Street and West of La Brucherie Road. zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) consists
of all assessable parcels located in the Wildflower No. 8 subdivision.

2. Zone 2001-02 (Paseo Del Sol)

zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) is located in the northeast portion of the City, generally

North of Aten Road, and East of Highway 86. Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) consists of all
parcels located in the Paseo del Sol subdivision.

B. DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT IMPROVEIVENTS AND SERVICES

Landscape improvements provided in the District may include but are not limited to: turf,
ground cover, shrubs and trees, sprinkler and irrigation systems, ornamental lighting,

drainage systems, masonry walls, entryway monument, and associated appurtenances. These

improvements include all necessary service; operations; administration; and maintenance

required to keep the above-mentioned improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and satisfactory
working condition. The City utilizes the services of landscape maintenance contractors and

City crews for all regularly scheduled landscape maintenance. The specific locations of
improvements within each zone of the District are described in the following section.

The District provides and ensures the continued maintenance, servicing, administration, and

operation of various landscape improvements and associated appurtenances located within
the District.

Landscaped Easements - The location of landscaped easements, including street trees, may
include, but are not limited to: Joshua Tree Street, La Brucherie Road in Zone 2001-01
(Wildflower) and Cross Road in Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol).

Storm Drain Basin Maintenance - The location of the storm drain basin to be maintained
by the assessments is located at the south side of the Wildflower development in Zone

2001-01 (wildflower) and the east end of the Paseo del 5ol development in zone 2001-02
(Paseo del Sol).

The assessable parcels receive special benefit from the ongoing maintenance of the
landscaping, irrigation and drainage systems within the boundaries of the District. Specific

improvements include all ground cover, turf, shrubs, trees, and associated appurtenances.
The services provided include all necessary operations, administration, and maintenance
required to keep the above-mentioned improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and

satisfactory condition.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025l2026
Page 2



The District through annual assessments budgeted and reviewed each fiscal year, funds the
continued maintenance of these improvements. All assessable parcels identified as being
within the District, share in both the cost and the benefits of the improvements. The costs

associated with the improvements are equitably spread among all benefiting parcels within
the District in proportion to the benefit received. The funds collected are dispersed and

used for only the operation and servicing of the District improvements.

The detailed plans and specifications for the improvements are on file in the office of the
City Clerk where they are available for public inspection. The plans and specifications for the
improvements are voluminous and are not bound in this Engineer's Report but by this
reference are incorporated herein and made a part of this Engineer's Report.

C DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP

Assessment District boundary maps have been prepared for the Landscape Maintenance
Assessment District in the format required by the 1972 Act, and are on file with the City
Clerk, and, by reference, are made part of this Report. A subdivision map showing each of
the parcels included within the boundaries of the District is incorporated as Exhibit "B" to
this Report.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 202512026
Page 3



SECTION III. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

A, GENERAL

The 1972 Act permits the establishment of assessment districts by agencies for the purpose

of providing certain public improvements which include the construction, maintenance and
servicing of landscaping and appurtenant facilities. The L972 Act further requires that the
cost of these improvements be levied according to benefit rather than assessed value:

"fhe net omount to be ossessed upon londs within an assessment district moy be
opportioned by ony formulo or method which foirly distributes the net omount
among all ossessoble lots or porcels in proportion to the estimoted benefits to be
received by eoch such lot or parcel from the improvements."

The formula used for calculating assessments in this District therefore reflects the
composition of the parcels, and the improvements and services provided, to fairly apportion
the costs based on benefit to each parcel.

ln addition, pursuant to Article XlllD Section 4 a parcel's assessment may not exceed the
reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel. Only special
benefits may be assessed and the District must separate the general benefits from the
special benefits. Therefore, the District assesses only for improvements that provide special
benefit and any improvements considered general benefit have been eliminated from the
District Assessments.

B. BENEFIT ANALYSIS

1. Special Benefits

The method of apportionment (method of assessment) is based on the premise that
each assessed parcel receives benefit from the improvements maintained and funded
by the assessments. Specifically, landscape improvements installed in connection with
the development of these parcels. The desirability of properties within the District is
enhanced by the presence of well-maintained landscaping and amenities in close
proximity to those properties.

The improvements generally include landscaped parkways, entryways, and appurtenant
facilities. The annual assessments outlined in this Report are based on the estimated
costs to provide all necessary service, operation, administration, and maintenance
required each year to keep these improvements in a healthy, vigorous, and satisfactory
condition and benefit the properties. The special benefits associated with the local
landsca ping improvements are specifically:

o Enhanced desirability of properties through association with the improvements.

o lmproved aesthetic appeal of properties within the District providing a positive
representation of the area.

o Enhanced adaptation of the urban environment within the natural environment
from adequate Breen space and landscaping.

Page 4City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026



Environmental enhancement through improved erosion resistance, and dust and
debris control.

o lncreased sense of pride in ownership of property within the District resulting from
well-maintained improvements associated with the properties.

o Reduced criminal activity and property-related crimes (especially vandalism) against
properties in the District through well-maintained surroundings and amenities.

o Enhanced environmental quality of the parcels by moderating temperatures,
providing oxygenation and attenuating noise.

All of the preceding specaal benefits contribute to a specific enhancement and
desirability of each of the assessed parcels within the District and thereby provide a
special enhancement to the property.

2 General Benefits

It has been determined that the lots or parcels within this District receive unique and
special benefits from the maintenance of the improvements within the District. The
improvements maintained by the District were installed and constructed in connection
with the development of properties within the District and were neither required nor
necessarily desired by properties outside the Oistrict boundaries. lt has been
determined that these improvements and the ongoing maintenance of those
improvements provide special benefits to the parcels within the District and no parcels

outside the District area benefit from the maintenance of the improvements within the
District. Therefore, there are no benefits of a general nature to properties outside the
District boundaries or the public at large.

C, ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Pursuant to the Act, the costs of the District may be apportioned by any formula or method,
which fairly distributes the net amount to be assessed, among all assessable parcels in
proportion to the estimated special benefits to be received by each such parcel from the
improvements. The special benefit formula used within the District should reflect the
composition of the parcels, and the improvements and services provided, to fairly
proportion the costs based on estimated special benefit to each parcel.

This District utilizes an Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU) method of apportionment. The EDU

method of apportionment uses the single-family residential parcel as the basic unit of
assessment. The typical single-family residential parcel is assigned one (1.0) Equivalent
Dwelling Unit. Every other land-use or property type is converted to EDU's based on an
assessment formula that equates the property's specific development status, type of
development (land-use), and size of the property, as compared to typical single-family
residential parcel.

Single Family Residential - This land use is defined as a fully subdivided residential home
site with or without a structure. This land use is assessed 1.0 EDU per lot or parcel. This is

the base value that all other properties are compared and weighted against (i.e. Equivalent
Dwelling Unit EDU).

PaBe 5City of Imperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 202512026



Multifamily Residential - This land use is defined as a fully subdivided residential parcel

that has more than one residential unit developed on the property. This land use is assessed

1.0 EDU per unit.

Planned-Residential Development - This land use is defined as any property not fully
subdivided with a specific number of proposed residentlal lots to be developed on the
parcel. This land use type is assessed at 1.0 EDU per planned (proposed) residential lot.

Vacant MultFResidential - This land use is defined as property currently zoned for
residential development, but a tentative or final tract map has not been submitted and/or
approved. This land use is assessed at 1.0 EDU per acre. Parcels less than 1 acre are

assigned a minimum of 1.0 EDU. Parcels over 50 acres are assigned a maximum of 50 EDU.

Exempt Parcels - This land use identifies properties that are not assessed and are assigned

0.00 EDU. This land use classification may include but is not limited to lots or parcels

identified as public streets and other roadways (typically not assigned an APN by the
County); dedicated public easements, rights-of-way, public greenbelts and parkways; utility
rights-of-ways; common areas, sliver parcels and bifurcated lots or any other property that
cannot be developed, publicly owned properties that are part of the District improvements
or that have little or no improvement value. These types of parcels are considered to
receive little or no benefit from the improvements and are therefore exempted from
assessment,

The following table provides a listing of land use types, the Equivalent Dwelling Unit factor
applied to that land use type, and the multiplying factor used to calculate each parcel's

ind ividual EDU.

TABLE 1

Land Use Desi nation

The EDU method of apportioning benefit is typically seen as the most appropriate and

equitable assessment methodology for calculating benefit in Districts formed under the
1972 Act, as the benefit to each parcel from the improvements are apportioned as a
function of land-use type, size and development. The following outlines the EDU applied to
the various parcels and properties within this Oistrict:

o Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) - One hundred nineteen (119) single-family residential
parcels, each receiving full and equal special benefit from the improvements. These
parcels are assigned an Equivalent Dwelling Unit of 1.0 EDU to reflect their special
benefits.

. Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) - One hundred thirty (130) single-family residential
parcels, each receiving full and equal special benefit from the improvements. These

Citv of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 202512026

1.000

1.000 per Unit

Single Family Residentia I

Multi-family Residential

per Pla nned Residential Lot

1.000

0.000

Planned-Residential Development 1.000

Vaca nt M ulti-Residentia I

Exempt per Parcel

EDU

Page 6

Property Type Multiplier
per Un itllot/Pa rcel

per Acre or portion of an Acre



parcels are assigned an Equivalent Dwelling Unit of 1.0 EDU to reflect their special

benefits.

The Total Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU)for zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) in FY 202512025 is
119 EDU's.

The Total Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU) for zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) in FY 2025/2026
is 130 EDU's.

The Levy per Equivalent Dwelling Unit, or Rate, applied to each parcel is the result of
dividing the total Balance to Levy for each Zone, by the sum of the Zone EDU's, for the fiscal
year. This Rate is multiplied by each parcel's individual EDU to determine the parcel's levy
amount.

The following formulas are used to calculate the assessment for each parcel:

Formula

Total Balance to LeW / Total EDU = tevy per EDU

Parcel EDU x Levy per EDU = Parcel Levy Amount

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Repon FY 2025/2026
Page 7

D, ASSESSMENT RANGE FORMULA

Any new or increased assessment requires certain noticing and meeting requirements by
law. Prior to the passage of Proposition 218 (Colifornio Constitution Articles Xlllc ond XlllD),
legislative changes in the Brown Act defined a "new or increased assessment" to exclude
certain conditions. These conditions included "any assessment that does not exceed an

assessment formula or range of assessments previously adopted by the agency or approved
by the voters in the area where the assessment is imposed." This definition and conditions
were later confirmed through Senate Bill 919 (Proposition 218 implementing legislation).

The purpose of establishing an Assessment Range Formula is to provide for reasonable
increases and an inflationary adjustment to annual assessments without requiring costly
noticing and mailing procedures, which could add to the District costs and assessments. As

part of the District formation, a property owner protest ballot proceeding was conducted
pursuant to the California State Constitution Article XlllD Section 4. This property owner
protest ballot proceeding includes the establishment of an initial Maximum Assessment as

well as an Assessment Range Formula.

Generally, if the proposed annual assessment (levy per EDU) for the current fiscal year is

less than or equal to the calculated Maximum Assessment, then the proposed annual
assessment is not considered an increased assessment. The Maximum Assessment is equal
to the initial Assessment (approved by property owners) increased each year, based upon
the latest composite percentage change in the Consumer Price lndex, All Urban Consumers,
for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario Area ("CPl"), as determined by the United States
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, or its successor.

The Engineer shall compute the percentage difference between the percentage change

each year in CPI for March and the CPI for the previous March. The Engineer shall then
adjust the previous maximum assessment rate by an amount not to exceed the percentage

change for the upcoming fiscal year. Should the Bureau of Labor Statistics revise such index
or discontinue the preparation of such index, the Engineer shall use the revised index or a



comparable system as approved by the City Council for determining fluctuations in the cost
of living.

Beginning in the second fiscal year (FY 2OO2/2OO3\, for Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) and
beginning in the second fiscal year IFY 2OO3/2OO4\, for Zone 2001-02 (Paseo del Sol) and
each fiscal year thereafter, the Maximum Assessment will be recalculated and a new
Maximum Assessment established. The Maximum Assessment is adjusted annually and is

calculated independent of the District's annual budget and proposed annual assessment.
Any proposed annual assessment (rate per EDU) less than or equal to this Maximum
Assessment is not considered an increased assessment, even if the proposed assessment is
much greater than the assessment applied in the prior fiscal year.

Although the Maximum Assessment will increase each year, the actual District assessments
may remain virtually unchanged. The Maximum Assessment adjustment is designed to
establish a reasonable limit on District assessments. The Maximum Assessment calculated
each year does not require or facilitate an increase to the annual assessment and neither
does it restrict assessments to the adjustment maximum amount. lf the budget and
assessments for the fiscal year do not require an increase, or the increase is less than the
adjusted Maximum Assessment, then the required budget and assessment may be applied
without additional property owner balloting. lf the budget and assessments calculated
require an increase greater than the adjusted Maximum Assessment then the assessment is

considered an increased assessment. To impose an increased assessment the City must
comply with the provisions of the Constitution Article XlllD Section 4(c) that requires a

public hearing and certain protest procedures including mailed notice of the public hearing
and property owner protest balloting. Property owners, through the balloting process, must
approve the proposed assessment increase. lf the proposed assessment is approved, then a

new Maximum Assessment is established for the District. lf the proposed assessment is not
approved, the City may not levy an assessment greater than the adjusted Maximum
Assessment previously established for the District.

Page 8City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026



SECTION IV. DISTRICT BUDGET

TABLE 2

Proposed Budget

The Maximum Assessment per EDU for Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower) and for Zone 2001-02 (Paseo
del Sol) shown above is based on the lnitial Maximum Assessment and the Assessment Range
Formula approved by the property owners within the District at the time of formation.

Zone 2001-01 (Wildflower): The proposed FY 2025/2026 annual assessment is 5504.24 per EDU.

Zone 200L-02 (Paseo del Sol): The proposed FY 2025/2026 annual assessment is 5488.50 per
E DU.

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Engineer's Report FY 2025/2026

DTRECT COSTS

Maintenance Costs, Labor and Utilities s6,7oo S86,3oo
Capital lmprovement Expenditures 46,305 0

DIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAT Ss3,oos s86,300

tNcTDENTAL COSTS/EXPENSES

Engineering/Oistrict Administration s 7,000 s7,400
Special Administration Costs 0 0

tNctDENTAL COSTS/EXPENSES s7,4oo

LESS: FUNDS ON HAND So s(30,1es)

TOTAL ASSESSMENT 550,oos s53,s05

DISTRICT STATISTICS

Total Parcels 119

119 130
Total Equivalent Dwelling Un its 119 130

Applied Rate per EDU ss04.24 5488.50

Maximum Rate per EDU 5s04.2s s488.s1

Zone 2001{1
Wildflower

Zone 2@1-02
Paseo del Sol

Page 9

Description

130
Total Parcels Levied

s7,OOO



CITY OF IMPERIAL

LANDSCAPE TVIAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WTLDFLOWER)

ENGINEER'S REPORT
FISCAL YEAR 202512026

Report Subm itted by:

Scott Koppe I

Koppel & Gruber Public Finance

Registered E ( Exo.ql<,r 16

a

ttt
No 20903 P

c L

a
o
tll
6.

a

z
mg

OF c

City of lmperial Landscape Maintenance District No. 1

Enginee/s Report FY 202512026
Page 10



Parcel identification for each lot or parcel within the District, shall be the parcel as shown on

the lmperial County Secured Roll for the year in which this Report is prepared and reflective
of the Assessor's Parcel Maps.

The following pages contain a listing of parcels assessed within this District, along with the
Zone designation and proposed assessment amounts.

EXHIBIT A
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL

FOR FISCAL YEAR 202512026



CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WILDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Situs Addrers
Land Use

Code

Residential
UnitsZone EDU Atrcssment

2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENIIAT

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI,

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

064-421-001-000
064-421-002-000
064-421-003-000
064-421-004-000

064-421-005-000
064-421-006-000
064-421-007-000
064-421-008-000
054-421-009-000
054-421-010-000
064-421-011-000
064-421-012-000
064-421-013-000

064,421-014-000
064,421-015-000
064-421-016-000
054-421-017,000
064-421-018-000
064-421-019-000

064-421,020-000
064-421-021-000

064-427-022-000
064-421-023-000
064-421-024-000

064-421,025-000
064-421-025,000
064-421,027-000
064-421-028-000
064-421-029-000
064,421-030-000
054-421-031-000
064-421-032-000
064-421-033,000
064-421-034-000
064-421-035-000
064,421-036-000
064-421-037-000
064-421,038-000
054-421-039,000
064-421-040,000
064-421-041-000
064-42r-042-O00
064-421-043-000
064,421-044-000
064-421-045-000
054-422-001-000
064-422-O02-O00
064-422-003-000
064-422-004-000
064-422-005-000
064,422-005-000

551 MESQUITE ST

555 MESQUITE ST

559 MESQUITE ST

563 MESQUITE ST

567 MESQUITE ST

571 MESqUITE ST

575 MESQUITE ST

579 MESQUITE 5T

583 MESQUITE 5T

582 MESQUITE ST

578 MESQUITE ST

574 MESQUITE ST

570 MESQUITE ST

566 MESQUITE 5T

562 MESQUITE 5T

558 MESQUITE ST

554 MESQUIIE ST

550 MESQUITE ST

551sAGEBRUSH ST

555 SAGEERUSH ST

559 sAGEBRUSH 5T

563 SAGEERUSH 5T

567 SAGEBRUSH ST

5Tl SAGEBRUSH ST

575 SAGEERUSH ST

579 SAGEERUSH ST

583 SAGEERUSH 5T

582 SAGEBRUSH ST

578 SAGEBRUSH ST

574 SAGEBRUSH ST

570 SAGEERUSH ST

566 SAGEBRUSH ST

562 SAGEERUSH ST

558 SAGEBRUSH ST

554 SAGEBRUSH ST

550 SAGEBRUSH ST

551 SITVERWOOD ST

555 SILVERWOOD 5T

559 SILVERWOOD ST

563 SILVERWOOD ST

567 STTVERWOOD Sr
s71 STTvERWOOD ST

575 SILVERWOOD ST

579 SILVERWOOD ST

583 SILVERWOOD ST

549 MESQUITE ST

545 MESQUITE ST

541 MESQUITE 5T

537 MESQUITE ST

533 MESQUITE SI
529 MESQUITE ST

Prepared by ( . :l J.:.

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
5M.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
5M.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

s04.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
s04.24
s04.24

504.24
504.?4
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
5M.24
504.24
5M.24
504.24
so4.24
504.24
5M.24
sM.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

Page 1 of 5



CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WILDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026 TAX ROLL

[and Use

code
Residential

UnitsSitus Address EOU As5essment

2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01
2001,01
2001-01

2001'01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001 01

2001,01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001 01
2001-01
2001'01
2001,01
2001,01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01
2001,01
2001 01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001 01

2001,01

064-422-007 -000

064-422-008-000

064-422-009-000
064-422-010-000
0 -422-011-000
064-422,012-000
064-422,013-000
064-422-014-000
064-422-015-000
064-423-001-000
054-423-002-000
0&-423,003-000
064-423-004-000
064-423-005-000
064-423-006-000
064-423-007-000
064-423,008-000
054-423-009-000
064-423-010-000
064-423-011-000
064,423-012-000
064-423-013,000
054-423-014-000
064-423-015-000
064-423-016-000
064,423-017-000
064-423-018-000
054,423-019-000
054-423-020-000
064-424-001,000
064-424-002-000
064-424-003-000
064-424-004-000
0&-424-005-000
064-424-006-000
064-424,007-000
064-424,008-000
064-424,009'000
064-424-010-000
064-424-011-000
064-424-012-000
064-424-013-000
064-424-014,000
064,424'015-000
064,424'016-000
064,424-017-000
064-424-018,000
054,424,019-000
064-424-020-000
054,424-021.-000
064-424-022-OOO

525 MESQUITE 5T

521 MESQUITE ST

517 MESQUITE ST

513 MESOUITE ST

509 MESQUITE ST

2342 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2338 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2334 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2330 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2328 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2324 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2320 TUMBLEWEED AVE

508 SILVERWOOD 5T

512 SILVERWOOD ST

516 SILVERWOOD ST

520 SILVERWOOD ST

524 SILVERWOOD 5T

528 SILVERWOOD ST

s32 STLVERWOOD 5T

536 STLVERWOOD ST

540 SILVERWOOD ST

544 SILVERWOOD ST

S48 SILVERWOOD ST

550 SILVERWOOD 5T

554 SILVERWOOD 5T

558 SILVERWOOD ST

562 SILVERWOOD ST

566 SILVERWOOD ST

570 SILVERWOOD ST

521sAGEBRUSH ST

525 SAGEERUSH ST

529 SAGEERUSH 5T

533 SAGEBRUSH ST

537 SAGEBRUSH ST

541 SAGEBRUSH ST

545 SAGEERUSH ST

549 SAGEERUSH 5T

548 MESQUITE 5T

544 MESQUITE ST

540 MESQUITE ST

536 MESQUITE ST

532 MESQUITE ST

528 MESQUITE ST

524 MESQUITE 5T

520 MESQUITE 5T

2343 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2339 TUMBLEWEED AVE

2335lUM8TEW€ED AVE

2331TUMBI-EWEED AVE

2329 TUMEI-EWEED AVE

2325 TUMSI-EWEED AVE

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESID€NTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIO€NTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI"

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

R€SIDENTIAI"

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

Prepared by (' I Page 2 of 5

5c/.24
5M.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
sM.24
sc4.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
5M.24
504.24
s04.24
5U.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
5M.24
5M.24
s04.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
s04.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
304.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
5U.24
504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

/r f\n^*,tfw

Zone

r (i



f') CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WILDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

Land Use

code
Residential

UnitsZone APN Situs Address EDU Assessment

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001,01

2001-01
2001-01
2001-01
2001-01

2001-01
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001'02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001"02
2001-02
2001-o2
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001"02
2001'02
2001-02
2001-o2
2001,02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02

064-424-023-000
064-424-024-000
064-424-O25-O00
064-424,026-000
064-424-021 -OO0

064424-028-000
064424-O29-OO0
064-424,03G000
064,424-031-000
054-424,032-000
064-424-033-000
064-424-034-000
064-424-035-000
064-424-036-000
064-424-037-000
064-424-038,000
054-424-039-000
0ir4-611-001-000
044-611-002-000
044-611-003-000
044-611-004-000
044-611-005-000
0,r4-611-006-000
044,511-007-000
0ir4-611-008-000
0ir4-611-009-000
0ir4-611-010-000
044-612-001-000
0jl4 612-002-000
0?r4-612'003'000
044-612-004-000

044-512,005,000
M4-512-006-000
044'612-007-000
044-612-008-000
044,612-009-000
044-612-010-000
044-612,011,000
044-612-012-000
0il4-512-013-000
044-612-014-000
044-612-015-000
044-612-016-000
044,612-017,000
044-612-018,000
044-612-019-000
044-612-020-000
044,613,001,000
044-613-002-000
044-613-003-000
044-613-004-000

2321TUM8LEWEED AVE

521StLVERWOOo ST

525 SILVERWOOD ST

529 SILVERWOOD ST

533 STLVERWOOD ST

537 SILVERWOOD ST

541 sLVERWOOD ST

545 StIVERWOO0 5T

549 SILVERWOO0 ST

548 5A6EERUSH ST

544 SAGESRUSH ST

540 SA6EERUSH ST

536 SAGEBRUSH ST

532 SAGEBRUSH ST

528 5A6EBRUSH ST

524 SAGEERUSH ST

520 SAGEBRUSH ST

201 W ACAPULCO OR

203 W ACAPULCO DR

205 W ACAPULCO OR

207 W ACAPULCO DR

209 W ACAPULCO DR

211 W ACAPULCO DR

213 W ACAPULCO DR

215 W ACAPULCO DR

217 W ACAPUTCO DR

219 W ACAPULCO DR

2OO W ACAPULCO DR

202 W ACAPULCO DR

204 W ACAPULCO DR

206 W ACAPUTCO DR

208 W ACAPULCO DR

210 W ACAPULCO DR

212 W ACAPULCO DR

214 W ACAPULCO DR

216 W ACAPULCO DR

218 W ACAPULCO DR

219 MAZATTAN DR

217 MAZATLAN DR

215 MAZATLAN DR

213 MAZATI.AN OR

2ll MAZATTAN OR

209 MAZATLAN DR

207 MAZATTAN OR

205 MAZATLAN DR

203 MAZATI"AN DR

201 MAZATLAN DR

2OO MAzATTAN DR

202 MAZATTAN OR

204 MAZATI.AN DR

205 MAZATI.AN DR

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIOENTIAL

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RE5IDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

Prepared by ^ .l .r,t.

504.24

504.24
504.24
504.24
504.24

504.24
504.24

50d,.24

504.24

504,.24

5U.24
504..24

5M.24
5M.24
504.24

5M.24
5U.24
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.S0
4E8.50

488.s0
488.s0
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

Page 3 of 5



Land use
code

Reridential
UnitsZone APN 5itus Address EDU Assessment

2007-02
2007-02
2001,02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
2001-02
200t-02
2001-o2
2001-02
200L-02
2001-02
2007'02
200L-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001'02
2001-02
200t-02
200t-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
200t-02
200t'02
2001-02
2001-02
200t-02
2001-02
2001-02

200L-02
2001-02
2001-02
200t-02
200t-02
200r-02
200t-02
2001-02
200L-02
2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
200t-02
2001-02
200t-02
200r-02

044-613-005-000
044-613-005-000
044,613 007-000
044-613-008-000
044-613-009,000
044-613-010-000
044-613-011-000
044-613-012-000
044-613-013-000
044,613-014-000
0,r4-613-015-000
044-613-016-000

044-613-017-000
044-613 018-000
044-613-019-000
044-613-020-000

044-614-001-000
044-614-002-000
044-614-003-000
044,614-004-000
044,614,005-000
044-614-006,000
044-614-007-000
044-614-008-000
0,14-614'009'000

044-614-010-000
044-614-011,000
044-615-001-000
044-615-002-000
044 615-003-000
044,615-004-000
044 615-005-000
0,r4-615-006-000

044-615-007-000
044-515-008-000
044-615-009-000
044-615-010,000
044,615,011-000
0ir4-61s-012'000
044-615,013 000
044-515-014-000
044-616-001-000
044-616-002,000
044-616-003-000
044-616-004-000
044-616-005-000
044 616 006'000
044-616-007-000
0ir4-616-008-000
044-515-009-000

044-616-010-000

208 MAZATLAN DR

210 MAZATLAN DR

212 MAZATLAN DR

214 MAZATLAN DR

216 MAZATLAN DR

218 MAZATLAN DR

219 sAN FELIPE DR

217 SAN FELIPE DR

215 SAN FELIPE DR

213 SAN FELIPE DR

211SAN FETIPE DR

209 SAN FELIPE DR

207 sAN FELIPE DR

205 SAN FELIPE DR

203 sAN FELIPE DR

2O1SAN FELIPE DR

2OO SAN FELIPE DR

202 SAN FELIPE DR

2442 LORETO CT

2444 LORETO CT

2446 LORETO CT

2448 TORETO CT

2447 TORETO CT

2445 LORETO CT

2443 LORETO CT

206 SAN FELIPE DR

208 SAN FELIPE DR

220 ACAPULCO DR

222 ACAPULCO DR

224 ACAPULCO DR

226 ACAPULCO DR

228 ACAPULCO DR

230 ACAPULCO DR

232 ACAPULCO DR

233 MAZATLAN OR

231 MAZATLAN DR

229 MAZATLAN DR

227 MAZATLAN OR

225 MAZATLAN DR

223 MAzATLAN DR

221 MAzATLAN OR

22l ACAPULCO DR

223 ACAPULCO DR

225 ACAPULCO DR

227 ACAPULCO DR

229 ACAPULCO DR

231 ACAPULCO DR

233 ACAPULCO DR

235 ACAPULCO DR

2421 ENSENADA DR

2423 ENSENADA DR

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

Prepared by I\ ..ll-.(,:':

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.S0
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.s0
488.s0
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.s0
488.s0
488.50

Page 4 of 5

CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WTLDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL



CITY OF IMPERIAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

(PASEO DEL SOL AND WTLDFLOWER)
FISCAL YEAR202512026 TAX ROLL

[and use
code

Residential
UnitsAPN Situs Address EOU Assessment

2001-02

200L-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
200t-o2
2001-o2
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
200t-02
2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
200t-o2
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02

2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
2001,02

2001-02
2001-02
200L-02
2001"02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
2001-02
200r-02
2001-o2

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

R€SIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDEN-TIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIOENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI-

R€SIDENTIAI.

RESIDENTIAT

RESIOENTIAT

RESIDENTIAT

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAI

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL

488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.S0
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50
488.50

044-616-011-000
044-616-012-000
044,616-013-000
044-616-014-000
044,616,015-000
044,516-016-000
044-516-017-000

0114-616-018-000

0,r4-516-019-000

044-616-020-000
044-616-021,000
044-616-022-O00
044,616,023,000
044,617-001-000
044,617,002,000
044-617-003-000

044-617-004-000
044-617-005-000
044-617-006-000
044,617-007-000
044,617-008-000
044-617-009-000
044-617,010-000
044-617-011-000
044,617,012,000
044-617-011-000

0,r4-617-014-000

0ir4-618-001-000
0,r4-518-002-000

044-618-003-000
044,618'004'000
044-618-005-000
044-618-006-000
044-618-007-000
044-618-008-000
044-618-009-000
044-618-010-000
044-618-011-000
044-618-012,000
044-518-013-000
oiM-618-014-000
044-618-015-000
044-618-016-000
0ir4'618'017-000
0ir4-618-018-000

2425 ENSENADA DR

2427 ENSENADA OR

2429 ENSENADA OR

2431ENSENADA DR

2433 ENSENADA DR

2435 ENSENADA DR

2437 ENSENADA DR

2439 ENSENADA DR

2441 ENSENADA DR

2443 ENSENADA DR

2445 ENSENADA OR

2447 ENSENADA DR

2449 ENSENADA OR

220 MAZATLAN DR

222 MAZATTAN DR

224 MAZATTAN DR

226 MAZATLAN DR

228 MAZATLAN DR

230 MAZATLAN DR

232 MAZATLAN OR

233 SAN FELIPE DR

231sAN FELIPE DR

229 SAN FELIPE DR

227 SAN FELIPE DR

225 SAN FETIPE DR

223 sAN FELIPE DR

221SAN FELIPE DR

2447 CAEO sAN LUCAS AVE

2445 CABO sAN LUCAS AVE

2443 CAEO SAN TUCAS AVE

220 SAN TELIPE DR

222 SAN FELIPE DR

224 sAN FELIPE DR

2444 VERACRUZ CT

2446 VERACRUZ CI
2448 VERACRUZ CT

2447 VERACRUZ CT

2445 VERACRUZ CT

2443 VERACRUZ CT

228 sAN FELIP€ OR

230 SAN FETIPE DR

232 sAN FEI-IPE DR

2444 ENSENADA DR

2446 ENSENADA DR

2448 ENSENADA OR

s

s
5

s
5

s
s

S

I
5

s
s

s
S

5

5

s
s
5

5

s
s
5

s
)
s
s
S

I
S

s
s

5

5

s
s

s
s
5

s
S

S

s
5

1

1

1

1

7

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

L

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Prepared by N' I

Total Levy

Total ParcelCount

Page 5 of 5

$123,5(x).s6
249

"&rfu

Zone



EXHIBIT B
DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAPS



7

z

:

/,

'!

6
q

6
8I
3

6

E
3

E
i
=.

d

B

6
s

;,

L, BndE E fu

pl e€lAteftE€

6

!

6
E
E

0t
E

T
A

-$r'!ta sr

t(

i
z
F
9aEHtr>.,o<

?E:H ,_., E
HUea.Z=
E'E,
rr.P t.rot ?

E? Eti- l/
OA N

EH*z
tR
lli

z
3

nqsaq

J



Z.

z

if

-i

.

rR
''/'t

g

6
.E
5

s
n

6
t
H

i

6
!
$

5
,a

3
2

5
s

-
E
aI
II

6
*

LcrelD Cl

C€bo San LUG Ar€

Vsa Clllz q

,0 epeuEafl

6

r.l

coo
z
tsa
QFIl-l Atd
Fr-(,Ei-ll<na

Encrdvtda-za
E*fl7-r V

=i.jNv> ox. F.t r,r - trF( o
-- ^Qa x

Fc)z
TR
l.l
z
i Alelb Escdtro O

I



DATE SUBMITTED 

SUBMITTED BY 

DATE ACTIO REQUIRED 

05/27/2025 

Human Resources 

06/04/2025 

Agenda Item No. C, ✓I 
COU CIL ACTIO (~ 
PUBLIC HEARi G REQUIRED ~ 
RESOLUTIO ( ) 
ORDrNANCE 15

T READING ( ) 
ORDl1 A CE 2''D READ! G ( ) 
CITY CLERK·s I ITIALS ( ) 

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM 

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION: 

1 _ Receive and File Report for Public Hearing on Vacancies to 
Comply with AB 2561 . 

DEPARTM ENT INVOLVED: Human Resources 

BACKGROU D/SUMMA RY: 

The City of Imperial is requesting the Council's consideration to receive and file this 
report for public hearing on vacancies to comply with AB 2561 which requires one public 
hearing each fiscal year before the adoption of the budget to report on vacancy levels, 
recruitment and retention efforts. This report includes information for the 2024 calendar 
year. 

The City's bargaining groups are below the 20% vacancy threshold that would trigger 
additional reporting under AB 2561 . 

FISCAL IMPACT: OT TO EXCEED 

There is no fiscal impact associated with receiving and 
filing this report. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommendation to receive and file this report. 

MA /\GER·s RECOMME DATIO : Approve Staff Recommcnda1ion 

MOTIO 

Fl A CE , I c__ 
I ITIALS V ~ ).,., 

DEPT. I IT IALS '?1..,0S-

CITY 
MA AGER·s 
I IT IA LS #JWJ 

SECO DED: 
AYE : 

A PPROVED ( ) REJ ECTED () 

AYES: 
DISAPPROVED () DEFERR.ED () 

ABSE T : REFERRED TO: 



CITY OF IMPERIAL 
AB 2561 
2025 ANNUAL REPORTING 

Presented by Kristen Smith, Human Resources Manager 

~ ....... Date: June 4, 2025 



• AB 256 1 Overview 
• City-Wide Information 

• Workforce Overview 
• Vacancy Information 
• Recruitment Information 
• Hiring Issues 
• Retention Information 

• Bargaining Unit Specific Information 
• Vacancy Information 

• Current Vacancy Update 
• Current Vacancy Status 

• Conclusion 

AGENDA 

• Labor Presentations 
• City Council Questions & Discussion 
• Final Comments 
• Public Comment 



WHAT IS AB 2561? 
• Effective January 1, 2025 
• Government Code Section 3502.3 was added to the Meyer-Milias-Brown Act 

(MMBA), imposing new obligations on public sector agencies related to tracking 
and presenting information on job vacancies. 

• AB 2561 declares that job vacancies are a widespread and significant problem 
for the public sector. 

• MMBA, authorizes local public employees, as defined, to form, join, and 
participate in the activities of employee organizations of their own choosing for 
the purpose of representation on matters of labor relations. 

• There is statewide interest in ensuring that public agency operations are 
appropriately staffed and that high vacancy rates do not undermine public 
employee relations. 

• CA Legislature found that high employee vacancy rates contribute to: 
• Negative impacts on public service delivery to citizens 
• Increased workloads for public sector staff leading to burnout and increased turnover 



PURPOSE OF AB 2561 

• Requires annual public hearing before budget adoption 

• Invites input from recognized bargaining units during the public hearing 
• The City has two recognized bargaining groups 

• Teamsters Local Union #542 
• Imperial Police Officer's Association (IPOA) 

• Public Hearing Notice was provided to bargaining groups on May 21 , 2025 

• Public Hearing Notice was advertised on the City of Imperial website and at City Hall on May 21, 2025 



CITY'S AB 2561 OBLIGATION 

The City shall present information on the following during a public hearing 
before the governing board at least once per fiscal year. 

• The status of vacancies 
• Recruitment and retention efforts 
• Any necessary changes to policies, procedures, and recruitment activities that 

may lead to obstacles in the hiring process. 

• The presentation shall be made prior to the adoption of the final budget. 
• If the vacancy rate is at least 20% in any bargaining unit, additional 

obligations apply. 
• For the City of Imperial, no bargaining unit meets that threshold. 



PURPOSE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

• To increase transparency on staffing shortages in a public setting. 

• To address recruitment and retention challenges 
• Provides an avenue to discuss challenges to maintaining a stable workforce. 

• The obligations under the law apply to all public agencies (cities, counties 
and special districts) that are subject to the MMBA. 

• This presentation satisfies the obligations of Assembly Bill ("AB") 2561 that are 
codified in Government Code section 3502.3 of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act 
("MMBA") 



WORKFORCE OVERVIEW 
Positions reviewed for calendar year 2024 
(January 1, 2024 - December 31, 2024) 
• Total Budgeted/ Authorized Full-Time Positions: 124 

• Overall Vacancy Rate: 6.7% 
• IPOA Vacancy Rate: 3.6% 
• Teamsters Vacancy Rate: 13.6% 
• MSPC Unrepresented: 9.7% 

No groups meet or exceed the 20% vacancy threshold 

CONTRACT 

Represented Employees with ====== 
MOU Labor Contracts = 87 
Teamsters = 59 IPOA = 28 ==== ' 



VACANCY INFORMATION 
CITYWIDE 

Calendar Year 2024 - - -■+-# of Vacancies 
Created 

# of Vacancies Filled 

# of Remaining 
Vacancies 

# of Budgeted FTEs 

% of Vacancies 

3 

7 

120 

5.8% 

2 

8 

120 

6.7% 

3 

4 

7 

120 

5.8% 

0 2 8 

5 0 

3 3 4 1 1 

120 120 120 124 

2.5% 2.5% 3.3% 8.9% 

• Average % of Vacancies a t the End of Each Month: 6.7% 
• Highest % of Vacancies at the End of a Month: 9.7% 
• Lowest % of Vac ancies a t the End of a Month: 2.5% 

2 

2 

11 

124 

8.9% 

2 4 3 1 

3 2 4 0 

10 12 11 12 

124 124 124 124 

8.1% 9.7% 8.9% 9.7% 



Recruitment/ Hiring Process Step 

Vacancy Created 

Recruitment Review 

Determine Recruitment Activity 
Type 

Job Posting 

Applicant Screening 

Candidate Oral Exam 

Eligibility List 

Candidate Selection 

Conditional Job Offer 

Pre-Placement Process 

Job Placement 

RECRUITMENT PROCESS 
Description 

Voluntary Separation, Retirement, Involuntary Separation, Internal Movement, Newly Budgeted Position 

Department Head submits a request to fill the vacancy to HR 

Utilize existing eligibility list/ongoing recruitment, recruit external & internal, or recruit internal only 

Advertise job openings and recruitment on websites and the City's social media. The City uses NeoGov to track and 
store recruitments and applications to ensure a systematic process. 

HR conducts an initial screening of the applications and passes applicants who meet minimum qualifications. 
Department Heads have an opportunity to complete an SME review of the passed applicants. 

Determine the level of the oral exam for the position. The Department Head selects the panel and rating questions. 
HR reviews and approves the panel and questions. 

Applicants are placed on an eligibility list based on their oral exam scores. Department Heads can choose to select 
from an eligibility list for up to one year. 

HR recommends hiring the top candidate on the eligibility list to the Department Head, but the Department Head 
has the discretion to select from the top three applicants. 

Conditional offer is made to the applicant selected by the Department Head 

Selected candidate accepts conditional job otter, HR processes all applicable background check and physical 
requirements for the position. 

Selected candidate passes background check and physical, selected candidate is given an employment start 
date 



2024 RECRUITMENT STATISTICS 

Total# of Full-Time Vacancies Filled During 2024 

# of Vacancies Filled by Existing Eligibility List /Ongoing Recruitment: 

Average # of Calendar Days to Fill Vacancies: 71 Days 

# of Vacancies Fi lled by New Externa l/ Internal Recruitment: 22 

Average # of Calendar Days to Fill Vacancies: 101 Days 

# of Vacancies Filled by New Internal Only Recruitment: 1 

Average # of Calendar Days to Fill Vacanc ies: 39 Days 

2024 Recruitment Activity from January 1 - December 31, 2024 
• 28 Full-Time a nd 9 Part-Time/Seasonal recruitments were he ld 
• 1485 Applic ations for Employment Received 

• 1351 Applications for Full-Time Employment Opportunities 
• 134 Applications for Part-Time and Seasonal Employment Opportunities 



HIRING CHALLENGES 
The City reviewed applicable policies, procedures, and recruitment activities to identify any 
potential obstacles in hiring processes. 

The City identified the following potential obstacles: 
• Salary Expectations: Misalignment between applicant salary demands and 

available compensation for some positions. 

Strategic Solutions: 
• The City hired a third-party consultant to complete a comprehensive 

Classification and Compensation Study, which concluded in December 2024. 
• The City is currently in discussions with labor groups to discuss study 

recommendations and next steps for implementation. 



RETENTION EFFORTS 
THE CITY OFFERS: 

• Competitive Benefit Package 
• (Medical, Dental, Vision, Life Insurance, EAP, Supplemental Benefits) 

• Three-Year Contracts with Labor with COLA increases of 15% over three years 
• FY 23-24 -10%, FY 24-25 - 2.5%, FY 25-26 - 2.5% 

• Opportunity for Annual Merit Increase 

• Competitive Pension Plan with Contributions to both CalPERS and Social Security 
• Competitive Assignment Pay, Certificate Pay (Teamsters) 
• Competitive Specialty Assignment Pay and Education Pay (IPOA) 
• Bilingual Pay 
• Voluntary 9/80 Work Schedule 
• 14 Holidays Observed 

• Generous Paid Time Off 
• Vacation Cash-Out 
• Tuition Reimbursement 
• Gym Reimbursement 
• Employee Training and Development 

• Promote a positive workplace culture with the Em[)loyee Engagement Committee Activities, 
Teambuilding Events, and Employee Recognition Programs 



2024 RETENTION STATISTICS 
Total# of Vacancies Created in 2024 

Annual Staffing Turnover Rate: 

# of Vacancies Created by Newly Budgeted Positions: 

% of Vacancies Resulting From Staffing Growth: 

# of Vacancies Created by Internal Promotion: 

# of Vacancies Created by Internal Transfer: 

% of Vacancies Resulting From Internal Opportunity: 

# of Vacancies Created by Retirement: 

# of Vacancies Created by Involuntary Separation: 

% of Vacancies Resulting From Attrition: 

# of Vacancies Created by Voluntary Separation: 

% of Vacancies Resulting From Turnover: 

4 

8 

6 

0 

3 

10% 

10 

32% 



VACANCY INFORMATION 
BARGAINING UNITS 

12/31/2024 # of Vacancies # of Budgeted FTEs 

IPOA 1 

Teamsters 8 

MSPC (Unrepresented) 3 

Contracted Employees 0 

• Bargaining Units at or exceeding 20% vacancy rate : 
• None 

28 

59 

31 

2 

% of Vacancies 

3.6% 

13.6% 

9.7% 

0% 



Employee Group 

IPOA 

Teamsters 

CURRENT VACANCY DATA 
JUNE 4, 2025 

FTE's Budgeted Vacancies Vacancy Rate 

28 1 3.6% 

59 2 3.3% 

Management, Supervisory, Professional, 35 2 5.7% 
Confidential (Unrepresented) 

Contracted Employees 2 0 0% 

City Overall 124 5 4.0% 



CURRENT STATUS OF VACANCIES 
• Police Officer- 1 Vacancy (IPOA) 

• Open recruitment held, interviews conducted, and applicant selected, pending 
clearance process. 

• Crew Leader (Parks) - 1 Vacancy (Teamsters) 
• On hold for position review. 

• Information Technology Technician Ill - 1 Vacancy (Teamsters) 
• Open recruitment held, interviews conducted, and applicant selected, pending 

clearance process and scheduled start date. 

• Public Services Supervisor- 1 Vacancy (MSPC) 
• Internal recruitment held, interviews conducted, and applicant selected, pending 

start date. 

• Fleet and Facilities Supervisor- 1 Vacancy (MSPC) 
• On hold for position review. 



CONCLUSION 

• This presentation satisfies the obligations of Assembly Bill ("AB") 2561 that are 
codified in Government Code section 3502.3 of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act 
("MMBA") 

• All groups are under the 20% vacancy threshold, with the overall vacancy 
rate for 2024 at 6.7%. 

• No Council action is needed at this time. 

• We will now offer the opportunity for employee organization presentations. 



IPOA PRESENTATION 

---- ....,...... I -- - ... ......_.__ ,· •· 



TEAMSTERS 
PRESENTATION 

------ .. =...., ._ .,, t 5 7 t tttllf/l"- • 



GOVERNING BODY 
QUESTIONS & DISCUSSION 



FINAL CITY COMMENTS 



FINAL COMMENTS FROM 
EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS 



PUBLIC COMMENT 



THANK YOU 



DATE SUBMITTED

SUBMITl'F]D BY

DATE ACTION REQUIRED

5t2't t25

Parks and Recreation

6t1125

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda ltem No.

COUNCII- ACI'ION
PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED
RESOLUTION
ORDINANCE IST READINC
ORDINANCE 2ND READING
CIl'Y CLERK'S INITIALS

x

], AWARD CONTRACT FOR THE CA IRVING PARKING LOT PROJECT BID 2025-
04 TO PYRAMID CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $105,959.17

2. APPROVE 20olo CONTINGENCY

DISCUSSION/ACTION:

DEPAR'I MEN'T INVOLVED
PARKS AND RECREATION

BACKCROUND/SUMMARY

In 2021 staff applied for funding through the Imperial County Air Pollution Control Districtt (ICAPCD)
Rule 310 grant. In late 2024 the City's proposed project was selected and awarded in the amount
$149,625.00. The Parks and Recreation Department identified a need for paved parking at the CA Irving
Baseball park. This poect will bring 12,533 SF of much needed parking areas to the south and west
sides of the park and mitigate the dust created by high wind. City Council authorized staff to seek bids for
this project. Staff has concluded the competitive bid process and we received 2 bids:

1. SLA Paving in the amount of $123,700.00

2, Pyramid Construction in the amount of $106.969.17

After careful staff review of the submitted Bids we request City Council award this project to Pyramid
Construction and Aggregates, Inc.

Please see attached Project Map and lmprovements plans

I.'INANCE
INITIALS t{s
DEPT, INITIAI,S

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: lt is the department's
recommendation for Ciiy- Council to award the contract to Pyramid

Construction and Aggregates, Inc. and approve 20olo contingency

awa4lubL

MO.nON

(

{

)

)

RET'ERRED TO

SECONDED
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT;

APPROVED ()
DISAPPROVED 0

D-l

SUBJECTi

CITY
MANAGER S

INITIALS

MANACER'S RECOMMENDATION:

R I.: IF](' I'F,D

DEFLRREI)



Dt

I a)

I

I
tr,

mIE
E''
6))

I

- E

a

EIff,t
I

I

T

-

\

,E II
\'r-)

r7i.r

IDlJ

I
r

-a,/,l
\

-

I/
{

(

\

$l

T
I

I \

t
l

r

I

\

't ETIf;

\-----

\
i

1
t
+
bF

l
I# ,r

Iil

E

j
(l,
o-
E'

E

o

a

A
'l

o.
g
CJ
0)'d
I r.Ii-r

ll

a

I\..,

ri
\

4f,t

{

|.
F

I

*

h.

i

I

-F*)
t t

IL-
tn.

I,,
I

)

Ft.

\I t:



zo
tr

o
Lr

o

.

t

!
izlo

E

G

|-

oz

I
I

oz
o

i
C]
4

2,
(,

t

,F

E

z
U

zo
tr

co

F
C)
tFa
oFr(J5

TJJ O',-FJ la =2 
(n<E5e

tLa3
UJ(9<LLn z.=r
5)=?
={--lrlrLd(9oEL=
){=u-r
l-O---J

a 9,;az,_ 
-__)>otrO_J

E.
LU
o_

6

!r$
id;
5E!
ir

-):<.. t(ri 3
LII 3;P[:!:
> ii:'
l.! 

=:qo; 3+
>:-3E

c5
d

,aii
@

u nltil
lttu lilri

iilriiEi

Iti
!ti;,i

Fo
z
5

o
Fzo

aF

I lt

.,

t
!

I
I

I
I

ri
II
t:
It!ri:
IJ



I.! !-
!ii itirlit:;Sr

iiiiiii
iiiiiiilii: iir

iliilii
iiiriii!l

a
t

i;
EI

i!
!r
,i
:l

,!l
l:s!ittt!
1I;
:I!
ai!

ili

ir! i :,
!ititii
i. !; i:!!!!l t;!
iliiiiii
litr-.a Er

riir!ii ii
i!ii!!l ii
:iiitiiii
iil:i!itii

iiiiiiliii:

i
,
{
i
t

ti

!l
a?
,i

,iirt!
it

N

n

1a
,ITt: t
;;t1i

a

z
5
|=

3

t

!

(,

T
I

I
d,
s

z
I

t

I

t(
t)

I

2

I

I

I

I

e- ):-
ti 1
Ul !;P[:!:
2 i5:
LJ-E:a
ojs"4
)-R aF' !
Of

[:
r=

icii
@

I
!
i
t
I
I

Ii
!i
ir

ii

TL
l(
t)

!

I
I

.L

---

fu!"(

?*
B

ti'

a-D.

1-

T
\/

-.1

/

et
e

*.1
s

(

tl

il
--;(

li:tl



DAl'E SUBMIT-TED

SUBMITTED BY

DATE ACTION REQUIRED

5t28t25

Public Services

6t4t25

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda Item No, D-1( 
COUNCIt, ACTION
PUBLIC TIEARING REQUIRED
RESOI,UTION
oRDINANCE lt' READtNc
oRDINANCE 2,, READINc
CITY CI,I:RK'S INITIAI-S

SI IIUECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION:

1 Approve Sidewalk Survey Proposal from Precision Concrete
Cutting through a Master Services Agreement with JPIA

DLI'ARl Vl N I INV()LVl l): Public Servtces

BA('KCROI.IN D/St]MNlARY:

On April 2, 2025,lhe City Council approved and adopted the Sidewalk lnspection and Maintenance
Program, which split the city into live grids. According to the program, one grid will be inspected
each year, starting with Grid one. CJPIA has a Master Services Agreement with Precision Concrete
to inspect and identify sidewalk areas that are deemed trip hazards. The contractor will inspect Grid
one and provide the results in Geographic lnformation System (GlS) format. The contractor can
repair any areas that require grinding or slicing at the costs identified in the Master Agreement.
Areas that need to be removed or replaced will be handled by another party.

FISCAL IMPACT: NOT TO EXCEED
Funds to crver associated costs will be expended from budgeted street
funds.

streets 01-320-5330 - $5,000.00
Streets 0'1-320-5442 - $5,328.50

FINANCE
INITIAI,S \/fn1

STAII REC()I\4M ENDAI ION

approve request DEPI . INI I IAI S

CTTY
MANA(iER's
INITIAI.S

{ttu
------f----

W1-u/t-
M(II'ION

SECONDED
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT:

APPR0VI:D ( )

I)ISAPPI{oVED 0
(

(

)

)

Rl,lrt,RRl t) I O

MANACER'S RECOMN'IENDATION:

REJE( l LI)
DEFERR Ii I)



- '' - _ t
I

!-
I

I

SIDEWALK
GRID INSPECTION

.IYOF

IMPERIAL
C ALIFOI NIA

I

I

{
!l

I

I

2

.r
L

ji ::
I

I

GR|D l -FY2025i26
GR\D2-FY2426i27
GR\D3-FY2a272A
catD4-F'f2A2A;29
GR|D5-FY2029,30

a

//

I
.,',/

2
7r' ././

,/,

2
J'11- J

/,

7

z/-//)



,4-'
Removal Specialists

Sidewalk Survey Proposal
City of lmperial (Grid 1)

The information in this summary and proposal is confidential and proprietary. This document is exempt from
release under the Freedom of lnformation Acl and may not be distributed under any circumstances.

Trip



Services a nd Resp_g-nS.ib![lteg

'1. The City of lmperial shall provide maps of specified areas to Precision Concrete Cutting.

2. Precision Concrete Cutting shall inspect public right-of-ways designated on the maps.

3. Precision Concrete Cutting shall use current ADA standards and Member standards in
determining tripping hazards. These hazards shall include, but not be limited to:

a) Differential displacement between sidewalk sections 3/8 inch or greater
b) Spall surfaces, holes in surfaces, and cracks above 1 inch wide or greater
c) Deteriorated .ioints that have an eroded condition and are 112 inch wide or greater

4. Precision Concrete Cutting shall record location of damaged sections in a GPS device.

5. Data entered anto the GPS device shall be provided in writing to the The City of lmperial

6. Precision Concrete Cutting shall provide written inspection report that shall include, but not be
limited to:

a. ldentification and description of each problem condition
b. Physical address and location including GPS location data
c. Size of the hazards in height, length, and square foot
d. Probable cause of the hazard, if evident
e. Pictures of damaged areas
f. Priority for repair; high, medium, low
g. Recommended action to be taken.

7. Precision Concrete Cutting shall report to the The City of lmperial the results of the inspection
upon completion.



ITEM - Sidewalk Survey Breakdown

The table below outlines the options available for the sidewalk survey.

Our evaluation will focus on vertical displacements of 3/8 inch or greater to ensure compliance with
ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) standards and improve pedestrian safety throughout the
community.

Sidewalk Survey Options:

Path of Travel Only - lncludes the assessment and GIS data collection of hazards that fall
within the main path of travel.

Transverse - lncludes the assessment and GIS data collection of hazards that fall wathin the
main path of travel along with panels with vertical displacements parallel to the walkway.

S u rvey_..1Q pljsn_[

S u rvey_..]Q plli e n-2

Path Of Travel Only
Path of travel ha2ards
within ADA stardards

22.7 $455 $10,328.50

Total $10,s28.s0

Path Of Travel Only
Path of travel hazards
wilhin AOA standards

22.7 $4ss $10,328.s0

Transverce
Added survey of hazards
parallel to main path of
travel

21 .95 $2s0 $5,487.50

Total $15,816.00

Survey Option # of Sidewalk Miles Cost per Sidewalk
Mile

Price

Survey Option # of Sidewalk Miles Cost per Sidewalk

Mile

Price



Customer assistance is requested for the following:

Notification to residents that Precision Concrete Cutting will be in the area performing

sidewalk assessments.

CLARIFICATIONS

Vvhere bonds are necessary for a particular clienUproject, all bonding costs incurred by

Precision Concrete Cutting will be forwarded lo the client for full reimbursement.

ln the event of inclement weather, there will be a temporary suspension of work to protect

our employees or materials against any damage/injury from the weather conditions.

Project to be completed on weekdays. Client to ensure that work area will remain clear of

foot traffic where possible. lf weekend days are requested, additional fees will be applied.

Project will take time to complete. Your business representative will work with you in

providing a start date, along with the full estimated time to complete work.

WARRANTY

Precision Concrete Cutting guarantees that all work is completed according to lndustry
standards. We agree to correct, repair, or replace any of our work that proves to be defective
in workmanship or material within a period of one year from the completion of the project

without expense to the Owner, ordinary wear and tear and unusual abuse or neglect excepted



Date

Parker Yocum, Business Manager
Direct: 9517601945
parker@pcctriphazardremoval. com

Signature

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL. The forgoing proposal is accepted and is intended to be a
binding contract for the performance of the work identifled herein. Additional Terms Apply.

Pro,iect: City of lmperial (Grid 1)

TOTAL APPROVED CONTRACT PRICE

opliorl

$10,328.50 (NET 30)

oplrron2

s1s,816.00 (NET 30)

ln the event of inclement weather, there will be
a temporary suspension of work to protect
our employees or materials against any
damage/injury from the weather conditions.
Your business representative will wot* with you
to reschedule on the next available worl< day.

Date

tgnature

(Please print name and title)

\,l-
0'tfi,

PRECISION CONCRETE CUTTING
csLB# 925449

www.sandiegosidewalks.com



ADDITIO AL TERiIS

1 . Expiration of this Proposal. The ofier to perform the work for the price and terms set forth in this Proposal
and Contract is valid for ninety (90) days. After ninety (90) days, there may be an increase due to
materials cost, which Precision Concrete Cutting has no control over.

2. Permits and Fees. This quotation excludes any permits, fees, bonds, enganeering, or inspeclions. Any
exclusionary costs will be canied over to the Client.

3. Limitations. The parties agree that Precision Concrete Cutting is not responsible for, and may not be held
liable for any loss, expenses, delays, or consequential damages resulting from natural disasters, inclement
weather, strikes, lockouts, boycotts, material shortages, material stolen from the work site, national
emergency, civil unrest, government shutdowns, slay-at-home orders, pandemics, acls of God, or other
factors and causes reasonably beyond the control of Precision Concrete Cutting.

4. Failure to Make Timely Payments. Full payment on invoices is due thirty (30) days after completion of
the assessment, unless stated otherwise on the proposal. Unpaid balances will accrue interest at the rate
of one and on-half percenl (1.5olo) per month until paid. Client will also pay contraclor filing fees and court
fees. lt is the responsibility of the owner to review all completed \ oIk prior to invoice due date. Any
disputes after the due date will only be addressed after payment has been made to Precision Concrete
Cutting, and the issue to be addressed has been submitted to your account manager, in writing. A
mechanics lien will be placed on all projecls whose billing reaches and exceeds 70 days.

5. Complete Agreement This Agreement is not a "standard form contracl." Each party has participated in the
negotiations leading to this document. Any presumption that an ambiguity in this Agreement should be
construed against the drafring party is hereby waived. These 'additional terms' supersede any conflicting
terms in any other documentation.

6. Warranty. One-year warranty on materials and workmanship

NOTICE TO OWNER

lf bills are not paid in full for the labor, services, equipment, or materials fumished or to be fumished, a
mechanic's lien leading to the loss, through court foreclosure proceeding, for all or part of your property
being so improved will be placed against the property for any past due invoice thal reaches and exceeds 70

days.

Contraclors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors State License Board. Any
questions conceming a contract may be referred to the registrar of the board whose address is: Contractor
State License Board. 9835 Goethe Road, Sacramento, California 95826.



MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Master Services Agreement (AGREEMENT) made as of this date, February, 15.2023, by
and between Precision Concrete Cutting (-CONTRACTOR") and The Califomia Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (-AUTHORITY').

l'his AGREEMENT is created for the sole purpose ofestablishing an agreed-upon set of services
and related costs in order to allow California JPIA members ("MEMBER') access to
profbssional sidewalk inspection and maintenance services.

Further, this AGREEMENT creates no obligation or expectation that any work will result from
this agreement. The CONTRACTOR's specific services are defined belou and are available to
members on as as-needed basis: the exact terms and conditions of such services are to be
arranged between CONTRACTOR and MEMBER. MEMBERS are responsible for initiating
and requesting any work of CONTRACTOR.

Service Option I

SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT SERVICES

CONTRACTOR will inspect sideu'alks and provide a w'ritten inspection report in the fbrmat
approved by the MEMBER (optional curbs and gutters can be included in the scope ofwork).
The inspection reports shall include the identification, location. and description ofeach problem
and recommended action to be taken. The lormat and infbrmation required may be changed at
the request of MEMBER with the agreement of both parties.

Sidewalk Assessment Fee Schedule

SamDle Scr\ iccs and Responsibilities

l. MEMBER shall provide maps of specified areas to CONTRACTOR.

2. CONTRACTOR shall inspect public right-of-ways designated on the maps.

3. CONTRACTOR shall use current ADA standards and Member standards in determining
tripping hazards. These hazards shall include, but not be limited to:

a) Differential displacement between sidewalk sections 3/8 inch or greater

b) Spall surfaces, holes in surfaces. and cracks above I inch wide or greater

c) Deteriorated joints that have an eroded condition and are l12 inch wide or greater

4. CONTRACTOR shall record location of damaged sections in a CPS device.

S.155.00 TBT) s l .000 TBD S TBD

Cost Per
Sidewalk Mile

Total Sidewalk
Miles

Estimated Cost
per Day

I Estimated

I n,t* nuyt
Total Estimate
Assessment Cost



5. Data entered into the GPS device shall be provided in writing to the MEMBER.

6. CONTRACTOR shall provide written inspection report that shall include, but not be

limited to:

a. Identification and description ofeach problem condition

b. Physical address and location including GPS location data

c. Size ofthe hazards in height. length, and square foot

d. Probable cause ofthe hazard. ifevident

e. Pictures of damaged areas

f. Priority for repair; high. medium, low

g. Recommended action to be taken.

7. CONTRACTOR shall repon to the MEMBER the results of the inspection upon
completion.

Service Option 2
SIDEWALK TRIP HAZARD REMOVAL

CONTRACTOR shall be paid a fee for specialized trip-hazard repair service on lifted sidewalk
with a diflerence in vertical elevation above t/t" to 2 Yz".

The fte paid to CONTRACTOR lbr trip-hazard removal shall be charged on a cost per hazard
category per 5 lineal f'eet location. A removal ofa trip hazard greater than 5 lineal feet shall be

charged incremental cost per 5 feet location for the hazard class as follows:

Example: A less severe hazard (3/8" to l/2" high) that is 7 lineal feet long shall be charged 2

locations (7 lineal feet - 5 feet+2 feet)=$31 x 2 locations = S62.00

Samtrle Serr ices and Resnonsibilities

l. CONTRACTOR shall repair sidew'alk trip hazards above %" and up to 2 %" in
designated work areas as determined by the MEMBER.

2. CONTRACTOR shall remove hazards completely. from one end of the raised sidewalk
joint to the other. ifapplicable. leaving a zero point ofdifferential between slabs.

3. CONTRACTOR shall not cause any damage to landscaping. trees, retaining walls. curbs.
sprinkler heads. utility covers or other objects adjacent to sidewalks. IfCONTRACTOR
and/or CONTRACTOR's equipment does cause damage to above. the MEMBER must

25 sq. ft.Price per Hazard s31.00 s62.00 s 125.00 5 lin. feet

Hazard Class Small
318" to l/2"

Medium
> l/2" to l"

Large
>1"

Lineal Foot
per Location

Square Foot
oer Location



be notified immediately and damages must be repaired at the CONTRACTOR's expense
within 24 hours of the time the damage occurred.

4. CONTRACTOR shall completely and immediately clean up all debris after each hazard
is repaired. All costs incurred for disposal of waste material shall be included in unit cost

and not paid for separately.

5. CONTRACTOR shall repair each sidewalk trip hazard without damage to adjacent
slab(s) or curb(s).

6. CONTRACTOR shall cut dry with dust abatement mechanism. No water-cooling is
allowed. which creates slurry and contaminates storm drains or causes excessive

environmental impact.

7. CONTRACTOR shall submit an itemized summary of all repaired hazards which
includes:

a. The specific hazard height - both high side and low side measurement - in 8ths ofan
inch

b. The actual length ofthe repair to the nearest % foot

c. The total width ofactual repair to the nearest % foot

d. The square feet ofthe effective panel from joint to nearestjoint or score line

e. The calculated unit for measurement shall be the square foot of the effected panel

f. The physical location (address) ofeach repair

g. Pictures ofeach repair as requested

h. Itemized cosl ofeach repaired trip hazard

8. CONTRACTOR shall submit a detailed invoice setting forth the services performed. in
accordance with the formula for saw.cutting calculations. All invoices must show the cut
depth. size. length. width. square feet, address. the number of locations. and the date

repaired for each hazard removal.

The billing unit for invoice calculation shall be the number of locations where one (l )
location is up to 5 lineal feet.

9. CONTRACTOR shall guarantee specified repair slope ( I : I 2 or I :8 based upon
requirements outlined by the Americans with Disabilities Act) is achieved. If defined
slope is not achieved. CONTRACTOR must repair to specification at no additional
charge within 24 hours ofdiscovery.

10. CONTRACTOR shall guarantee that the removed trip hazard will have a uniform
appearance and texture. The finished surface shall have a co-efficient of friction ofat
least 0.6.

I l. Method oftrip-hazard removal shall entail precise saw-cutting performed with hand-held.
electric-powered equipment. using a machined hub and flush-mounted. diamond-tipped
blades. Must be capable ofcuning at any angle and perform trip-hazard removal in hard-
to-reach areas. around obstacles. on narro*' walkways. and next to fences and retaining
walls or build ings.



12. CONTRACTOR shall make its best effort to notily residents 3 days in advance of any
work and schedule the operations so as to cause a minimum ofinterruption, interference
or disturbance to the operation of stores, businesses. office buildings, hotels, churches.
etc., and allow access by pedestrians and emergency, delivery and service vehicles at all
times.

Sidewalk repair equipment and all other items incidental to the work shall not be left or
stored on the sidewalk or on private property while not in use.

13. CONTRACTOR shall take precautions during saw-cutting operations not to disfigure.
scar, or impair the health ofany tree on public or private property.

Service Option 3

SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT AND TRIP HAZARD REMOVAL

See sample services and responsibilities under respective sections in Service Option I and
Service Option 2.

Service Option 4
FIVE-YEAR MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

Sample Side*alk Survev Services and Responsibilities

l. CONTRACTOR shall perform annual, semi-annual, or quarterly sidewalk inspection as

determined by the scope ofservices to be defined by terms mutually set between the
MEMBER and CONTRACTOR.

2. CONTRACTOR shall specify problems and recommend action to be taken.

3. CONTRACTOR shall prioritize the areas and problems to be resolved.

4. CONTRACTOR shall identi! repairs to be accomplished by saw cutting.

5. CONTRACTOR shall identify spall surfaces, holes in surfaces, and cracks above l" wide
or greater.

6. CONTRACTOR shall recommend areas to be demolished and replaced.

7. CONTRACTOR shall provide written inspection report that shall include, but not be
limited to:

a. ldentification and description ofeach problem condition

Price per Hazard s37.00 s74.00 s148.00 5 lin. Feet 2 5 sq. ft.

Price per Hazard s37.00 s74.00 s148.00 25 sq. ft.

Hazard Class Small
3/8" to lD"

Medium
>1D" ti l"

Large
>1"

Lineal Foot
oer Location

Square Foot
Der Location

Hazard Class Small
318" to l/2"

Medium
>lD" lo 1."

Large
>1"

Lineal Foot
per Location

Square Foot
per Location

5 lin. Feet



b. Physical address and location including GPS location data

c. Size ofthe hazards in height, length. and square foot

d. Probable cause ofthe hazard, ifevident

e. Pictures ofdamaged areas

f. Priority for repair: high. medium. low

g. Recommended action to be taken.

h. CONTRACTOR shall report to the MEMBER the results of the
completion.

inspection upon

l. CONTRACTOR shall make repairs and recommendations to achieve the lowest overall
cost to the MEMBER.

2. CONTRACTOR shall remove the existing trip hazards by saw cutling changes in
elevation between adjacent panels from above % inch tpto2 % inches in height as

specified in the scope of work defined by mutually set terns between the MEMBER and
CONTRACTOR.

3. The MEMBER shall set a fixed budget "not to exceed" per month, per quarter. or per
year.

4. CONTRACTOR shall provide in-depth report. audit-able for maintenance and risk
management

Sample Remove/Replacement Sun'ev Reporting Sen'ices and Responsibilities

l. CONTRACTOR shall survey and report all areas not recommended tbr saw cutting.

2. CONTRACTOR shall identifu remove and replacement locations to maximize the repair
of locations that truly need to be replaced.

3. CONTRACTOR shall provide a written report that identifies the location. length. width.
and square foot measurement ofthe effected panels to be replaced.

4. CONTRACTOR shall provide CPS locations. maps and photographs of areas
recommended lor removal and replacemenl.

5. CONTRACTOR shall provide monthly an in-depth report, audit-able for maintenance
and risk management.

Bondins Requirements

Direct cost associated with any specific bonding requirements beyond the required Contractors
License Bond including the cost of Performance Bond. Payment Bond. or any other additional
bonding requirements are not included in the fee schedule listed above and will be added to the
cost ofthe project.

Sample Sidewalk Trin Hazard Removal Scrvices and Resoonsibilities



Authorization

CONTRACTOR shall inspect and report only those sidewalk conditions andtriphazards as

specified in the performance in this AGREEMENT. and therefore makes no representation
that other trip hazards outside thescope ofwork have been identified. CONTRACTOR shall
not be responsible forconditions outside the control of CONTRACTOR that havechanged

after completion ofthe inspections dueto tree roots, water. settling. and othercauses. and
shall not beliable for any claims, losses. ordamages arising from known or unknown trip
hazards. Additionally, CONTRACTOR shall carry out authorized remediation and repair
work as specified in the performance ofthis AGREEMENT, and based on locations either
identified through theirinspection process or identified separately fromthe
CONTRACTOR'S inspection process. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for removal of
all trip hazards that have been identified and authorized through the performance ofthis
AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for trip hazards that arise after
completion ofthe remediation and repair work as specified in the performance ofthis
AGREEMENT due to conditions outside the control of the CONTRACTOR. such astree
roots. water. settling. and other causes.

FOR AUTHORITY:

Jonathan Shull

NAME

Chief Executive Officer

TITLE

SI TURE

February 7 , 2023

DATE

FOR CONTRACTOR:

Cary Beneduci

NAME

General Manager

TITLE

S GN RE

February 7 , 2023

DATE

CPI Escalation

The fees charged by Precision Concrete Cutting which are expressed as stated dollar amounts in
this schedule shall be increased annually commencing on the one-year anniversary date ofthe
Effective Date. Any increase must include written justification such as CPI figures and is subject
to approval if it exceeds the annual 3% allowable increase.

4a<-Fo-oZrz.



DATE SUBMITTED

SUBMITTF]D BY

DATE ACTION REQUIRED

05t28t25

Public Services

6t4t25

Agenda ltem No, -7
COUNCIL ACTION
PUALIC HEARINC REQUIRED
RESOLUTION
oRDtNANCE ltt READING
onorNeNCE z"D ttaorNc
CITY CLERK'S INITIALS

ST]BJ!C"I DISCUSS ION/ACTION:
, Adopt Plans and Specifications and Authorize Public Bidding for the 2025 City of
' lmperial Manhole and Gravity Sewer Collection System CCTV Video lnspection and

lnventory; Bid-2025{8

DEPAR I MhNT INVOI Vtrl): Public Servrces

BACK(JROUNI)/SUMMARY:

The city desires to obtain the services of a Contractor to perform a manhole inspection and a closed-caption
television (CCTV) video inspection of 12.0 miles of the city's gravity sewer mains in the older parts of the city.
The Contractor will temporarily plug the sewer pipes for the inspection. The Contractor will provide the full
range of services, including video inspection of sewer and manholes, and will provide a report describing the
condition of the City's sewer facilities. The contractor will report the size and material type of the pipes in each
manhole and provide measurements (in feet to the nearest hundredth) from the top of the manhole to each
inverl. There are approximately 1,700 sewer manholes to be inspected.

The project will bad an accordance with the Public Contract Code (PCC). The project plans and specifications
will be on file with the City Clerk at City Hall located at 420 S. lmperial Ave, lmperial, CA92251.

FlSCAt. IMPACT: NOT TO EXCEED

Funds to cover associated costs will be expended from enterprise
funds. Project is in the FY 24-25 Capital lmprovement Plan.

CIP Project No. 853, Wastewater Collection Survey - $350,000

FINA\('I
INITIAI.S 'J r'\ 5

STAFI' RI:COM]\4[NDAl'ION

approve request DEPT, INII'IAI-S

NIANA(i|R s RECOMMFNI)A IION

CITY
MANACT-R's
INITIALS

0ttyl
o.++1&)q-

MOTI0N

SECONI)tiI]
AYES:
NAYhSi
ABSI,N I':

APPROVED
DISAPPROVED

(

(

)

)

RLJtiC'll:l)
DEFt,RRLI)

(

(

)

)

REFIiRRIII) 1O

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM



,;.

CITY OF IMPERIAL

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

2025 CITY OF IMPERIAL MANHOLE AND
GRAVITY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM

CCTV VIDEO INSPECTION AND INVENTORY
Bid Number 2025-08

Contact:

David Dale. P.8., Public Services Director
City of Imperial
420 S. Imperial Ave
lmperial, CA 92251
(760) 3ss-3336
ddale@imoerial.ca.us

Non-Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting: July 9.2025, at l0:00 a.m.

Proposal Due Date: July 23,2025, at 3:00 p.m. P.S.T.

Award of Agreement: August 20, 2025

Projected Start Date: October 6, 2025

Projected Completion Date: February 9, 2026

Page I

.J
\\r

May 2025

Important Dates:



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRODTTCTION 5

5

5

5

6

6

A. Background...,..

B. Purpose of the Request.

II. SCOPE OF SER}'ICES

III. PROPOSAL FOR]T{AT

D. Scope of Work

IV. APPLICABLE LAWS AND PREVAILING WAGES

6

7

8C. Licensing.

Page 2



I.

EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF WORK l5

Sewer Main Cleaning. l5

2. SewerMainVideolnspection.....................

3. Manhole Inspection. ..........

L Allowable Depth of Flow

............. t6

.....19

2l

22

22

.......21

2. Plugging or Blocking and Pumping.

3. FlowControlPrecautions................

I. MeasurementandPayment.............

J. Contractor's CCTV Inspection Services Standard Operating Procedures'

l. CCTV Software ..........23

..........23

..........24

2. City's Review ofCCTV Submittals. .............

3. ApprovalGuidelines.

4. Videotaping Procedures and "STOP" Locations....... .... -----..--...................24

5. No Payment and Rejection for Partially Completed Work........................25

K. \ ork Hours..... .........'."'.-.--.25

L. Decrease/Increase in Service and Stop Work Due To Inclement
Weather............ ....................26

EXHTBTT B - SAMPLE CONTRACT..... ................,...........27

Page 3



EXHIBIT C. PRICE PROPOSAL FOR}I 42

Page 4



I. INTRODUCTION.

The City of lmperial ("City") is requesting Proposals from qualified firms ("Contractor" or
"Proposer") to assist the City in its 2025 Manhole and Gravity Sewer Collection System CCTV
Video Inspection ("Project").

A. Background.

The city supplies sanitary sewer services and maintains approximately 90 miles of gravity sewer

lines that transport 1.5 million gallons daily to treatment facilities for its residents.

B. Purpose of the Request.

The city desires to obtain the services of a Contractor to perform a manhole inspection and a
closed-caption television (CCTV) video inspection of 12.0 miles of the city's gravity sewer mains
in the older parr ofthe city. The city will clean its gravity sewer lines beflore the inspection. The

Contractor will temporarily plug the sewer pipes for the inspection. The Contractor will provide
the full range of services, including video inspection of sewer and manholes, and will provide a

report describing the condition ofthe City's sewer facilities. The contractor will report the size and

material type of the pipes in each manhole and provide measurements (in feet to the nearest

hundredth) from the top of the manhole to each invert. There are approximately 1,700 sewer

manholes to be inspected.

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES.

The attached Exhibit A contains a list ofsignificant work tasks that should be accomplished as part

ofthe scope ofwork. Proposers are asked to define the approach, scope ofwork. and methodology

used to achieve the objectives presented in this RFP. Proposers should include a refined scope of
work by developing a detailed description ofall project tasks and any proposed changes. additions'
or recommendations. The description ofeach project task should include a specification ofthe task

itself, the methodology or analytical process. scheduling. personnel, and costs. If you have any
questions, please contact:

Page 5

The City of Imperial, Califomia (the "City", "lmperial") is located in the heart of most urbanized
portions of Imperial County. Califomia, between the cities of Brawley (to the North) and El Centro
(to the South). Imperial was created by the lmperial Land Company and was named by George

Chaffey. The city was plotted in 1902 for home and commercial businesses. Over the years, it
became the location for the home of the Imperial lrrigation District (llD), the California Mid-
Winter Fair, and the Imperial County Airport (lPL). The City of Imperial was incorporated on July
12, 1904.lt is a Ceneral Law City that operates under a Council-Manager form of govemment. The
City of Imperial is committed to promoting and providing for its citizens'and business community's
safety, health, and welfare. The population ofthe City of lmperial, as ofJanuary 2024, is 22,141
(CA Department ofFinance). Imperial is a full-service city and encompasses an area of 6.29 square

miles.



III. PROPOSAL FORMAT.

All proposals shall include the following minimum information:

A. Approach.

A short discussion of the intended approach to the Project that demonstrates the proposer's
understanding ofthe issues and tasks and the proposer's ability to address them.

B. Description of Firm, Management, and Team Members,

A description ofl the proposer, its proposed team, and a work plan identifying the personnel
assigned to each task. The proposer's description should identifr who will be the project manager
and the day-to-day contact person forthejob. The proposal must identiry the legal name, address.
telephone number, and primary contact for each business entity providing services for the Project.
The proposal shall expressly indicate if it is ajoint proposal by more than one business entity. lf
a proposer intends to subcontract any of the work for the Project, the proposal shall identify and
describe the qualifications of each subcontractor proposed to be used. The proposer(s) shall
demonstrate that each business entity proposed to provide work for the Project is authorized to do
business in the State of Califomia and the City of lmperial. For any business enrity organized as
a corporation. limited liability company. or other entity under the laws of another state. the
proposal shall include evidence that such business entity is properly registered with the California
Secretary of State.

C. Qualifications.

Provide an outline ofthe proposer's qualifications indicating a minimum offive years ofrelevant
background experience and capabilities lor this Project. A list ofsignificant projects, both ongoing
and planned, to which the proposer is committed during the time frame of this Project should also
be provided. Include the staffresources devoted to those projects and the status ofthe projects.

D. Scope of Work

The proposal should describe each work task and explain how the proposer plans to approach it. It
should also include steps to complete the tasks, including analytical methods and tools. Proposers
must demonstrate that they understand the magnitude and importance of each individual task.
Tasks should be organized into phases constituting measurable deliverables.

E. Proposed Project Schedule.

Time is of the essence for this Project. The proposal shall include a schedule to undertake and
complete the work program. The project is anticipated to start by October 2025 and be completed
by February 2026. The proposed schedule shall include a time period for completion of any
cleaning and inspection of sewers and manholes over the estimated unit quantities stated herein.
Failure to complete the Project on schedule will subject the Contractor to the payment ofliquidated
damages. as described in the Sample Agreement (Exhibit B).

Page 6



F. Proposed Pricing.

All proposers must complete the Price Proposal Form included in Exhibit C. Proposers must
indicate a unit price for each item listed in the Price Proposal Form. The unit price shall include
all contractor costs to provide the services, as described in Exhibit A. Unit quantities listed are

best estimates. The contractor will be compensated based on the actual unit quantities inspected.

The stated unit prices shall apply to up to one hundred twenty percent (1207o) ofthe unit quantity
for any item. Unit Prices quoted must be binding for a minimum of 90 days and the term of the

Agreement.

G. References, Related Experience, and Examples of Work.

Include client references with phone numbers for relevant work. Specify the client, location,
proposer's members and participating individuals and roles on the team (principal. project director,
etc.), type of work, implementation results or status, examples of work. and other relevant
information as needed.

H. A Sample Report

Include a sample report and high-resolution photos for a segment ofa sewer main indicating the

location of all laterals and connections encountered. the location of any breaks. obstructions,
offsets. high points. sags. or other major defects.

Also include a sample report and high-resolution photos for a manhole indicating the location of
sewer main connections. the location ofany breaks. obstruclions. or other significant deGcts. and

the condition ofthe manholes.

t. A Sample Video Picture QualiQ

To establish criteria for maintaining video picture quality throughout the Project. the Contractor
shall furnish a thumb drive of a previous sewer inspection that meets the quality specifications.
This thumb drive shalt become the property ofthe City and will be used as a standard tojudge the

acceptability ofvideo inspections produced on this Project.

I. A Sample Geographic Information System (GIS) compatible file

Include a sample GtS file that includes the location of sewer mains, laterals and connections

encountered, the location of any breaks, obstructions, offsets, high points, sags, or other major
defects.

The GIS file should include the location of manholes indicating the location of sewer main

connections. the location ofany breaks. obstructions. or other significant defects, and the condition
ofthe manholes and how you link high resolution photos or video files to the GIS feature class.

For all feature classes include a data dictionary that describes each field, all the attributes that are

typically captured and their possible choice values. Also, indicate which fields are mandatory and

which fields are optional and ifcustom fields are allowed.

Page'7



Also, as defined in the PACP guidelines, the location of all laterals and defects, shall be
documented. Indicate in the proposal how segments of sewer line including laterals, connection
points, defects, or manholes that are not in the GIS file provided by the city are handled.

IV. APPLICABLE LAWS AND PREVAILING WAGES.

A, Laws To Be Observed.

The Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of all existing and future federal. state. and local
laws which in any manner affect those engaged or employed in the work. or the materials used in
the work, or which in any way affect the conduct ofthe work. and ofall such orders and decrees
of bodies or tribunals having any j urisdiction or authority over the Project.

Page 8



B. Prevailing Wages.

The city has determined that the Project requires work of labor categories that are subject to
Prevailing Wage Laws identified in the State of Califomia Labor Code. The selected Contractor
shall be aware ofthe requirements ofCalifomia Labor Code sections I 720 et seq. and 1770 et seq.,
as well as California Code of Regulations, Title 8, section 16000 et seq. ("Prevailing Wage
Laws"), which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other
requirements on certain "public works" projects. Specific requirements ofthe Prevailing Wage
laws that the Contractor will be expected to comply with are listed in the proposed Agreement in
Exhibit "B"

C. Licensing.

Belore submitting proposals, proposers shall be licensed in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 9, Division 3. ofthe Business and Professional Code ofthe State of California.

V. SELECTIONPROCESS.

A. Evaluation.

The assigned staffwill evaluate all proposals received by the due date. Based on this evaluation,
the Public Services Director will make a recommendation to the City Council. Only information
received in response to the RFP or via any subsequent interview will be evaluated. The City will
evaluate each proposer's responses in several critical areas. Selected proposers may be invited to
an oral interview.

The city will select the most qualified proposal based on the following factors. Responses to the
RFP should address the qualities and indicators that are listed below:

I . Per Unit Pricing and Cost.

2 Ability of the proposer to design an approach and work plan to meet the project
requirements, which will include an assessment of the overall quality of the proposal.

Qualities and indicators that will receive consideration include:

. The proposer's performance in converting the Scope ofServices into a work plan;

o The detail and clarity of the discussion as to the proposer's approach to undertaking the
Project;

. The proposer's performance in identifiing any special problems or concerns that may be
associated with the Project and preliminary ideas about how these obstacles should be
addressed;

B. Selection Criteria.

Page 9



The inclusion ofany unique approaches that are designed to save time and money or
increase the benefits or effectiveness ofthe proposed work; and

The demonstrated ability to work with governmental bodies and a full understanding of
applicable laws or regulations related to the Project.

The Proposer's ability to carry out and manage the Project, including an assessment ofthe
Proposer's general experience. Qualities and indicators that will receive consideration
include:

. The number and types ofprojects the proposer or its employees have completed;

o The variety of projects completed and a demonstration of the proposer's ability to
undertake this Project;

. The general level of experience in the areas of supervision, observing, and
monitoring projects;

. The proposer's ability to realize timetables and quality control objectives, and the
demonstrated ability to complete projects under the proposer's direction.

Capabilities ofthe proposer and/or its proposed team. which includes an assessment of the
capabilities of the proposer and individuals that will be engaged in the Project. Qualities
and indicators that will receive consideration include:

o What professionals will be doing/working on each task;

o The various professional, technical. and educational achievements and registrations of
each firm and individual involved:

. The applicable experience of the proposed assigned staff and the specific experience
gained on similar projects.

The current workload ofthe proposer, including an assessment ofthe perceived ability of
the proposer to devote the necessary human resources and management attention to the
Project. Qualities and indicators that will receive consideration include:

3

5

o The number and size ofthe projects presently being performed by the proposer and the
assigned staff;

. The status ofexisting projects;

. The past ability ofthe proposer to deliver projects on a timely basis;

o The nature ofexisting projects that are behind schedule or past the completion date.

6. Proximity ofthe proposer to the Project site. The application ofthis criteria will include an

assessment of the following:

4.

Page l0



. The proposer's geographic proximity to the Project site;

o The location of the office fiom which the Project will be administered;

. The perceived response time and general availability ofthe proposer's management to be
on-site:

. The perceived effect that Project management location will have on price and the ability
ofthe Project to be expedited on a timely basis; and

o The availability of special travel or communication plans that would effectively
mitigate difficulties associated with location.

C. Proposed Selection and Project Schedule.

7

Pre-Proposal Meeting:
Proposal Due Date:
Award of Agreement:
Projected Start Date:
Projected Completion Date:

July 9.2025. at l0:00 a.m.

July 23.2025. at 3:00 p.m.
August 20. 2025
October 6. 2025
March 7. 7026

D. Award of Contract.

It is anticipated that any award ofan agreement for services will be made by the City Council at its
August 20, 2025 reg ar meeting.

VI. PROPOSAL DUE DATE AND DELIVERY

Proposals shall be prepared according to the instructions contained in this RFP. including any
addenda hereto published by the City. Proposals must be delivered by email at:

i querrero@imperial.ca. gov

Jenell Guerrero
420 S. Imperial Ave
Imperial. C A.92251

On or befbre Jull 23.2025 at 3:00 p.m.. P.S.T

Proposals will not be accepted after this time

Page I I

Willingness to comply with the proposed Agreement terms. A sample Agreement is
attached in Exhibit B. Proposals will be rated based on the exceptions taken to the proposed
Agreement.



VII. GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE RFP.

A. General Conditions,

The City reserves the right to cancel or reject all or a portion or port;ons ofthe RFP without notice.
Further, the City makes no representations that it will enter into an Agreement with any proposer
submifting a proposal. The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals submitted in
response to this request or any addenda thereto, including without limitation the right to reject any
or all nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional proposals and to reject the
proposal ofany proposer that the City believes would not be in the best interest to hire. The City
also reserves the right to reject any subcontractor or individual working on a proposed team and to
replace them with a mutually acceptable replacement.

ln submitting a proposal, each proposer agrees that the City may reveal any trade secret materials
contained in such response to all City staff and officials involved in the selection process and to
any outside consultant or other third parties hired or appointed by the City to assist in the evaluation
process.

Any changes to the proposal requirements will be made by written addendum.

The City reserves the right to waive any and all defects or informalities in any proposal. lt

r To examine thoroughly the requirements of this RFP;

e To visit the City to become familiar with and satisfl the proposer as to the general, local,
and site conditions and obtain any additional or supplementary examinations,
investigations, explorations, tests, or other studies concerning conditions at the City;

o To study and carefully correlate the proposer's knowledge with this RFP and such other
related data: and

Page 12

Upon receipt by the City. proposals are considered a public record and subject to disclosure under
the Public Records Act, including within such information, without limitation. personal

identification information such as social security numbers, bank account numbers, and driver's
license numbers. Further, after the award ofthe Contract by the Cify, whether or not a proposer is
the successful Contractor. all material in proposals received by the City shall be subject to the right
ofthe public to inspect and obtain copies. The City shallretain all proposals submitted in response
to this RFP for as long as the City is required to do so under the law.

Each proposer may designate specified infbrmation as a trade secret and confidential and agrees

to indemnifo and hold harmless the City and each of its officers, employees. and agents from all
liability, damages. and expenses. including reasonable attorneys'fees, incuned by any ofthem in
connection with the City's refusal to disclose any material that the proposer has so designated. Any
Consultant designating its entire proposal as a trade secret will be disqualified.

shall be the responsibility ofeach proposer before submitting a proposal:



B. Liability of Costs and Responsibility.

The City assumes no liability for any cost incurred by proposers responding to this RFP or in
responding to any further requests for interviews or additional information before the issuance of
the Contract. All costs shall be borne by the person or firm responding to the request. Proposers
responding to the request shall hold the City harmless from any liability, claim, or expense incurred
by or on behalf of that person or firm. All submitted material becomes the property of the City.

Proposers agree to be bound by their proposals for ninety (90) days commencing on July 23,2025.
During this time, the city may request clarification or correction of the proposal for evaluation.
Amendments or clarifications shall not affect the remainder ofthe proposal but only that portion
amended or clarified.

D. Standard Agreement Terms.

The selected Contractor will be required to enter into the City's standard Agreement, a copy of
which has been provided in Exhibit B. Each proposer shall assume that the execution of this
Agreement, without changes. will be a required condition unless proposed modifications are

requested at the time of submittal of the proposal and then accepted by the City. If a proposer
wishes to take exception to any of the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement. these
should be explicitly identified; otherwise, it will be assumed that the proposer is willing to enter
into the Agreement as it is written. Failure to identify contractual issues ofdispute can later be the
basis for the City disqualifuing a proposer. Any exceptions to terms. conditions, or other
requirements must be clearly stated. Otherwise. the City will consider that all items oflered strictly
comply with the RFP. and the successful proposer will be responsible for compliance. The City
will consider such exceptions as part of the evaluation process, which may constitute grounds for
rejection of the proposal. The City will not execute the Agreement without first signing it with the
proposer.

E. Permits-

The Contractor and all of its subcontractors, at its and/or their sole expense, shall obtain and

maintain all appropriate permits required in connection with the performance ofthe Project during
the term of the Agreement.

Page 13

To promptly notiry the City ofall conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that the
proposer has discovered in this RFP.

The selected Contractor will be required to assume responsibility for all services offered in the
proposal. u'hether or not they possess them within their firm. The Contractor will be the sole point
ofcontact regarding contractual matters, including payment ofany and all charges resulting from
the Contract.

C. Validity.



F. Licenses and Certificates.

The Contractor and all of its subcontractors, at its and/or their sole expense, shall obtain and
maintain during the term of the Contract all appropriate licenses and certificates required in
connection with the performance ofthe Project.

The required Licenses and Certificates include:
l. NASSCO's Pipeline Assessment Certification Program (PACP) and Manhole Assessment

Certification Program (MAC P) are the trusted sources for proper and consistent assessment
condition coding ofpipelines and manholes.

2. General contractor license A, C36, or C42.
3. Any other Licenses and Certificates required by the local agency and the localjurisdiction.

G. Oral and Written Explanations.

Wriften responses to question(s) asked by one proposer will be provided to all proposers who
received the Request for Proposals.

H. Proposer'sRepresentative.

The person signing the proposal must be a legal representative ofthe firm authorized to bind the
proposer to an agreement in the event ofthe award.

I. Insurance.

General Liability, Automobile, and Worker's compensation insurance are required in the amount
outlined in the attached sample Contract.

J. Bonds.

Page 14

The required permits include:
l. Traffic control plans
2. A business license is required from the City of Imperial
3. The Contractor shall provide the necessary water for this task. The Contractor shall obtain

a temporary water meter from the City of Imperial or make necessary water provisions for
this Project. Use ofthe property owner's water for sewer cleaning is not permitted.

4. A Confined Space Permit is required to enter any City's manholes.
5. Any other permit the local agency andjurisdiction require.

Oral explanations or instructions given during the review process or after the award do not bind
the city. They become binding when confirmed in writing by an authorized City official.



The Contractor shall furnish the following bonds in a form and from a bonding company
acceptable to the City's Ceneral Counsel:

Faithful Performance: A bond in lhe amount of 100% ofthe total contract price
guaranteeing the faithful performance of this Agreement and

l-abor and Materials: A bond fbr labor and materials in the amount of I00% ofthe
total contract price

VIII. Erhibits.

Scope of Work
Sample Agreement
Price Proposal Form
Main Sewer Line and Manhole Location Maps

A.
B.
C.
D.

Page 15



EXHIBIT A. SCOPE OF WORK

A. General Procedures.

The Contractor shall perform CCTV inspections of sewer mains and manholes within the City's
sewer system. including capturing or verifying key asset atlributes. Using the CIS map provided
by the City. the Contractor shall identifly and document any unmapped sewer mains and manholes
within the designated project area. All newly identified assets shall be included in the scope of
inspection. The project is expected to include approximately l2 miles of sewer main inspections
and the cleaning and inspection of 1,700 manholes. City stalf will clean the sewer main pipelines
prior to the inspection; the contractor will be responsible for plugging the pipes for the inspection.

The Contractor shall assess and classify all maintenance and structural defects in accordance with
NASSCO's PACP and MACP rating systems. Additionally. the Contractor shall identify and
document all red flag areas, lateral connection locations. and the precise locations of observed
defects within the sewer mains.

All inspection. events. and inventory data. including video. condition assessments. newly
identified assets, and defect locations, shall be delivered in a GlS-compatible format suitable for
integration into the City's enterprise CIS. GIS deliverables shall include georeferenced asset
locations, attribute updates, PACP and MACP codes, and any newly mapped leatures with
appropriate metadata. Final deliverables must be reviewed and accepted by City staff prior to
project closeout.

The Contractor shall comply w.ith the detailed CCTV Inspection requirements below. The scopc
of work includes, but is not limited to, the following:

I . Sewer Main Vi n ction.

All pipeline inspections shall be conducted using the National Association of Sewer Service
Companies (NASSCO) Pipeline Assessment Certification Program (PACP) Standards and
NASSCO-certified softu,are. All CCTV operators shall be certified through the NASSCO
program.

The Contractor shall utilize the Ciry's GIS to pre-populate the session data. pipe and Manhole
IDs shall be used for each section of pipe. The contractor shall provide a file geodatabase or
shapefile with the following feature classes:

l. Sewerlnspection

The line feature class Sewerlnspection should contain the following fields to be populated with field
verified data found during the inspection along with any other industry standard fields:

page 16

Sewer main video inspection shall include producing and logging of the sewer main video
inspection as specified in the following paragraphs.



Note: If pipe size or any other attribute is prepopulated, then pipe size and other pre-populated
attributes must be verified. Ifpipe size is blank or Null value, then verifu and update pipe size along
with other critical attributes.

o Contract No.
. lnspection Date
. Inspection Time (Can include date and time in one field)
. Contractor name
r Contractor number
o Surveyor's name
. Street name
. Pipe ID
o Upstream manhole ID
. Downstream manhole ID
. Inspection direction
. Pipe size
o Pipe materiallnvert Pipe Elevation (in relation to top of lid of manhole in hundredths of

inch)
. Photo link
. Video link
. Audio link (unless it's part ofvideo)
. Red Flag Condition (Choice values)
o PACP Structural Grade
. PACP O&M Crade
. Recommendation Structural (See choices below:)

o No action needed
o Monitor
o Minor repair
o Rehabilitation
o Replacement
o Immediate Emergency Response

o Recommendation O&M (See choices below:)
o No action needed
o Monitor
o Cleaning
o Root remediation

r Comments

2. SewerLineObservations
The point feature class SewerlineObservations should contain the following fields to be
populated with field-verified data found during the inspection, along with any other industry
standard fields:

Contract No.

Page 17



. lnspection Date

. lnspection Time (Can include date and time in one field)

. Contractor name

. Contractor number

. Surveyor's name
o Street name
o Pipe ID
o NASSCO Defect Code
o Observation Type (Minimum choice values below)

o Defect
o Connection Point
o Red Flag
o Roots

o Defect type (choice values preferred)
r Defect Description
o Connection point size
o Connection point material
o Photo link
. Video link
. Audio link (unless it's pan ofvideo)
. Comments

3. Manh o le In spection

The point feature class Manholelnspection should contain the following fields to be populated
with field verified data found during the inspection along with any other industry standard
fields:

. Contract No.

. lnspection Date

. Inspection Time (Can include date and time in one field)

. Contractor name

. Contractor number

. Surveyor's name

. Street name

. Manhole lD (Primary Key)

. Upstream manhole ID

. Downstream manhole ID

. Lid Wpe
o Lid casing material
. Interior lining material
o Base material
o Photo link
r Video link

Page I 8



. Audio link (unless it's part ofa video)
r MACP Structural Grade
. MACP O&M Grade
o Recommendation Structural (See choices below:)

o No action needed
o Monitor
o Minor repair
o Rehabilitation
o Replacement
o Immediate Emergency Response

o Recommendation O&M (See choices below:)
o No action needed
o Monitor
o Cleaning
o Root remediation

. Comments

4. ManholeObservation table

The ManholeObservation table should be a related table that is tied with the primary key of
the Manholelnspection feature class and foreign key ofthe ManholeObservation table. The
related table should define each observation found in a manhole and should contain the
following fields to be populated with field verified data found during the inspection along
with any other industry standard fields:

. lnspection Date

. Inspection Time (Can include date and time in one field)

. Surveyor's name

. Manhole ID Inspection (Foreign Key)

. NASSCO Defect Code

. Defect type (choice values preferred)

. Defect Code Plain Text (Defect code in plain text)

. Defect SubType (iftoo many defect types exist. contractor should narrow the defect
classifications types down to 5-7 and add all the defect types into a sub type or sub
category)

o Photo link
. Video link
. Audio link (unless it's part ofvideo)
. Comments

The location ofall laterals and defects, as defined in the PACP guidelines, shall be documented.
The recorded digital files shall include a narrative description of all observations made by the
observer and shall be included in the log.

Page I 9



The initial text screen for each pipe reach shall be identified with text and voice recording,
including the following:

1 . City of Imperial and Contract No.

2. Date

3. Time

4. Contractor's name and number

5. Surveyor's name

6. Street name

7. Pipe ID
8. Upstream manhole ID
9. Downstream manhole lD
I 0. Inspection direction

I l. Pipe size

12. Pipe shape

13. Pipe material

During the CCTV inspection, the running screen shall show the running footage and the
following text:

I. CITY OF IMPERIAL
2. Upstream Manhole ID
3. Downstream Manhole ID
4. InspectionDirection
5. Street Location

6. Pipe Size

7. Pipe Material

8. Date

9. Time

The Contractor shall use a color pan and tilt camera or a side wall scanning (panoramic) camera
specifically designed and constructed for sewer inspection. Each sewer to be televised shall be
suitably isolated to control flow during the inspection. The Contractor shall provide a recording of
the televised sewer inspection. locating each sewer service connection entering the sewer.

Lighting for the pan and tilt camera or side wall scanning camera shall provide a clear picture of
the entire periphery ofthe existing sewer.

The pan and tilt camera shall pause, pan, and visually inspect all service connections, pipe ends,
and maintenance or structural defects. lf utilizing a camera with side wall scanning capabilities,
pausing and panning ofeach lateral is not necessary during the inspection if the image clearly
depicts the inside ofthe lateral for post-processing. Ifa blockage cannot be removed and hampers
the televising of the sewer in one direction. then the Contractor shall attempt to complete the

Page 20



section by televising from the other manhole to complete the section; this reversal should
immediately follow the initial direction. The Contractor must immediately report the obstruction
to the City.

Sidewall scanning inspection systems are imaging cameras that are capable ofa continuous 360-
degree image capture ofthe wall ofthe pipeline being inspected. These systems may have one or
multiple cameras to capture the complete interior view ofthe pipeline. Due to the high resolution
ofthe image quality, the inspections may be conducted at a higher speed than the color pan and

tilt CCTV method. Once the pipeline inspections are completed, the captured images can be linked
with a companion software package that allows for identifoing and coding defects and features in
the pipeline. Typically, these systems provide a fold-flat view and a perspective view (typical of
CCTV) of the pipeline.

Ifthe image quality is not adequate for post-inspection coding, the Contractor shall be required to
repeat the survey at the Contractor's expense.

The Contractor shall perform all CCTV inspections in accordance with NASSCO's Pipeline

Assessment Certification Program (PACP). CCTV inspections will be delivered entirely in
electronic format. The entire survey shall be recorded in an approved electronic format and

submitted with electronic links between the data and the video. All television inspection reports

shall be within +/- two (2) feet ofthe measured linear footage between manholes along the existing
sewer centerline from the start of the pipe to the end of the pipe. All City and PACP required

header information must be fully and accurately entered on all CCTV reports. Work not following
these specifications may be rejected for payment. and the Contractor may be required to redo the

work.

The Contractor shall provide a PACP certified operator on site at all times during the entire survey.

lf video is to be coded separately from the actual recording, both the onsite Operator and the

individual performing the PACP coding shall be PACP certified. The Contractor shall provide
proof of certification prior to commencement ofwork, prior to a change in personnel involved in

data collection. and as requested by the City.

The Contractor will document and perform an above-ground survey of each manhole' recording

along the alignment of the interceptor and surface cover, and a still photo of the exterior of the

manhole and surrounding area. The camera will start at the manhole rim in line with the largest

diameter outgoing pipe, rotating the camera clockwise until a 360-degree panorama is complete.

The camera shall be moved through the line at a moderate rate, stopping when necessary to permit
proper documentation ofthe condition ofthe sewer line, manhole, lateral wyes and lateral location.

In no event will the television camera be pulled at a speed greater than 30 feet per minute. Manual

winches, power winches, TV cable, and power rewinds. or other devices that do not obstruct the

camera view or interfere with proper documentation ofthe sewer line conditions shall be used to

move the camera through the sewer line. If, during the inspection operation. the television camera

will not pass through the entire sewer. the Contractor shall set up its equipment so that the

inspection can be performed from the opposing manhole.

When manually operated winches are used to pull the television camera through the line.

telephones or other suitable means of communication shall be set up between the tuo manholes of
Page2l



the section being inspected to insure good communications between members ofthe crew

The importance of accurate distance measurements is emphasized. Measurement for location of
defects shall be made by means of a camera-mounted transmitter and aboveground receiver.
Marking on the cable, which requires interpolation for depth of the manhole, will not be permitted.

To establish criteria for video picture quality to be maintained throughout the Project, the

Contractor shall furnish a thumb drive of a previous sewer inspection that meets these

specifications for quality. This thumb drive shall become the property ofthe City. It will be used

as a standard to judge the acceptability of video inspections produced on this Project.

The audio portion of the inspection report. recorded at the time of inspection, shall be intelligible
in its entirety. The information contained in the audio recording shall include (l ) the location of
the sewer, (2) the location of the manholes involved, (3) the direction of travel, (4) a description
of conditions in the sewer as they are encountered, and (5) the location and entrance condition ofl
service laterals.

Any Red Flag Conditions shall be reported immediately to the City. Red Flag Conditions are

things such as root ball or other large obstruction blocking flow path, large hole in pipe or other
defect that could lead to a collapsed pipe, collapsed pipes. large offsetjoint where sewage may be

leaving the system, etc.

Any assessments that cannot be inspected from manhole to manhole shall be listed as MSA
Survey Abandoned. Ifthe reason for the MSA is not a cause for a Red Flag Condition, it shall be

noted in the inspection report and conveyed to the City. Ifpossible, the Reverse Run shall be

completed from the opposite manhole. Ifthe camera fails to reach the same point in the pipe where
the initially discovered obstruction is located, the inspection of this reach shall be considered
complete and flagged. It should be noted that inspection of the entire sewer reach could not be
completed.

Ifa manhole not |isted in the database is found. a new inspection shall be started. The added

structures and inspections shall be noted and the missing manhole should be added to the proper
Manholelnspection feature class in GIS by the contractor.

Ifa sewer main is not listed in the database is found, a new inspection shall be started. The added
structures and inspections shall be noted and the missing sewer main should be added to the proper
Sewerlnspection feature class in GIS by the contractor.

Manholes shall be inspected in accordance with the NASSCO standards. The Contractor shall
determine the maintenance and structural deficiencies of the manholes in accordance with the
MACP rating system.

The contractor shall measure and report the size and material of each pipeline in the manhole.
Measurements shall be taken from the top ofthe manhole to the invert oleach pipe documented

Page 22

2. Manhole lnspection.



Page 23

in the report and in the CIS feature classes and tables and reported to the city.



B. Order of Work.

The Contractor shall coordinate its work with all other workers or utility companies working in
the work area designated for CCTV inspection.

Sewer video inspection ofeach segment ofa sewer main shall be done a maximum ofone week
afterthe cleaning ofthat segment (the City to clean the pipeline segments). Ifthe video inspection
of the sewer line is not done within the next week after the cleaning day. new line cleaning shall
be performed for the same segment by the contractor at no extra cost to the City before the video
inspection.

C. Sewer Mains and Manholes to be Inspected,

All sewer mains and manholes shall be visually inspected using CCTV and video. The inspections
shall be done one sewer section at a time. Flows shall be controlled as specified herein while the
inspection work is in progress. Sewer line and manhole location maps will be provided only upon
request to the City. The city's maps are not guaranteed to be 1007o accurate.

D. Submittals-

2. The Contractor shall furnish one color video recording, with the target. tbr each section of
the sewer inspected and JPEG files of all photographs taken during the inspection. The
videos shall show the date the work was performed and the location ofthe entry manhole.
Videos shall indicate cumulative footage from the entry manhole, as verified by the
camera-mounted transmitter and receiver. Video recordings shall be included in the
monthly report.

The video files shall be in standard MPEG/JPEG fbrmat. If the City approves a diifbrent
electronic file format to allow for a h igher-resolution video or photo file, the Contractor
shall also deliver a "viewer" program and support for the software used.

3. The Contractor shall furnish a report and high-resolution photos for every section ofthe
sewer mains indicating the location ofall laterals and connections encountered, the location
of any breaks. obstructions. offsets. high points. sags. or other major defects. and the
condition ofmanholes. All reports shall be neatly typed. Photos, thumb drives. hard drives.
reports, and all related work shall be included in various items and shall not be considered
for additional payment.

4. The Contractor shall deliver an extemal hard drive that contains comprehensive NASSCO
Data, including the following:

Page 24

l. The Contractor shall deliver monthl) video inspections and logs on a thumb drive or
external hard drive concurrenl with the submission ofan invoice.



a)

b)

c)

d)
e)

0
c)
h)

i)

i)

Standard PACP Exchange database;

An ESRI GIS file geodatabase with the feature classes, tables, and fields, and choice values

described in EXHIBIT A, Sections A and A.l. The file shall be provided using NAD 1983

State Plane Califomia VI FIPS 0406 (US Feet) coordinate system;

All video inspections and photographs:

Plots ofeach pipe inspected with the defects shown with distance in the pipe:

Observation reports with images;

List of all Red Flag Conditions found in the system;

List olall incomplete inspections with reasons for not completing them;

List of all areas where roots were removed:

Copy ofthe "viewer" program in support ofthe software usedl

The final report ofthe sewer system.

E. Safetv.

The Contractor shall have a documented safety program in place that meets all applicable
occupational safety and health standards. rules. regulations. and orders established by the State of
Califomia. The Site Safety Plan and all related work shall be included in various items and shall not
be considered for additional payment. This document shall be submitted to the City before the
beginning of the project.

F. Erperience.

The Contractor shall have at least five years' experience in the television inspection of sanitary
sewers. The thumb drive and/or video files shall be reviewed by someone with a minimum of five
years ofexperience in evaluating and repairing problems in sanitary sewer mains.

When the sewer line's flow depth at the upstream manhole ofthe section being inspected is above

the maximum allowable depth shown below, the flow shall be reduced by operating pump stations.
plugging or blocking the flow, or pumping and bypassing the flow. Reducing the flow depth and all
related work shall be included in various items and shall not be considered for additional payment.

I . Allowable DeplhofIlorry.

When performing CCTV inspection. the flow depth shall not exceed 5% ofthe pipe diameter or the

depth where the camera is not submerged. whichever is smaller. as measured in the manhole.

During video inspection. flow shall be reduced to the limits specified herein. When sewer flow
control is required, the Contractor shall fumish. install, and operate pumps, plugs, conduits. and other
equipment to divert the flow ofsewage around the pipeline reach where work is to be performed.

Page 25

G. Flou Control.

2. Plugeing or Blockins and Pumping.



A sewer plug shall be designed to release all or any portion of the sewage. A tagline shall be
provided for the plug, which shall be inserted into the line upstream ofthe section being inspected.

Sewage shall not be allowed to flow in gutters, streets, over sidewalks. etc.. nor shall it be allowed
to flow into the storm inlets or conduits. After the work has been completed, the flow shall be
restored to normal.

Plugging or blocking and all related work shall be included in various items and shall not be
considered for additional payment.

,- Flow Control Precautions

When the flow in a sewer is plugged, blocked, or bypassed, precautions shall be taken to protect
all sewers from damage that might result from sewer surcharging. Precautions shall also ensure
that flow control operations do not cause flooding or damage to public or private property being
served by the sewers involved. Sewer flow shall not be disrupted for any ofthe city's customers.

I. Measurement and Payment.

Payment for the work. as further specified herein, shall include all compensation to be received by
the Contractor for fumishing all tools. equipment, supplies, and manufactured articles and for all
labor. operations, mobilization, and incidentals appu(enant to the work being described, as
necessary to complete the various items ofthe work specified, including Occupational Safety and
Health Administration requirements for any item that is not specifically set forth in the proposal.
and the costs therefor shall be included in the prices named in the various bid items for the work.

The following items of work will not be measured for payment, but the cost thereof will be
included in the prices named in the various bid items for the work:

l. Data entry. computerized equipment. software. and hardware to submit the required
electronic submittals.

2. Completion of all electronic forms.
3. Photographic equipment and supplies used to show sewer pipe and manhole defects.
4. Bypass pumping and flow control where required by the Contractor to perform his or her

work.
5. Demobilization and mobilization.
6. Updates to the schedule as required by the City.
7. Right ofentry to private property.
8. Dye testing ofservice connections in order to meet the CCTV specification.

Page 26

The pumping system (if necessary) shall be suflicient to handle the existing flow plus additional
flow that may occur during a rainstorm. If pumping is required on a 24-hour basis, engines shall
be equipped to keep noise to a minimum. Standby pumps shall be provided as needed. The
Contractor shall do pumping so that it will not damage public or private property or create a
nuisance or health menace. The pumped sewage shall be in an enclosed hose or pipe and reinserted
into the sanitary sewer system.



Payment for maintenance oftraffic and detour barriers and for conforming to all ofthe provisions
ofthese specifications shall be considered to be included in the price for the various bid items for
various items of work wherein maintenance or traffic and detours is required and no additional
allouance *ill be made therefor.

In cases where the sewer is entirely cleaned and inspected manhole-to-manhole, payments for
CCTV inspection of sewer mains will be based on the measured linear footage between manholes
along the existing sewer centerline llom manhole wall to manhole wall at the agreed-upon unit
price.

All invoicing will be by sewer segment, and payment will be made when all punch list items and

rework are completed for each Sewer Segment.

The payment for inspecting the City's manholes will be based on the inspection, photo, and video
footage ofeach manhole at the agreed-upon unit price.

J. Contractor's CCTV Inspection Services Standard Operating Procedures.

To assure that all Project sewer pipes are thoroughly inspected and that a usable. quality product
is delivered to the city. the Contractor is to follow the following standard operating procedures at

all times during this Project. Ifany ofthe procedures and guidelines are unclear or ambiguous, the

Contractor is to seek guidance from the city before proceeding.

1. CCTV Software.

The Contractor shall use a digital CCTV data acquisition software program for the collection of
the CCTV data. lfthe program does not save the video file in standard MPEG format. the program
shall include a "viewer" program, which allows concurrent viewing ofthe CCTV data and video.
The aforementioned viewer program shall be provided to the City at no cost. CCTV observations
shall be recorded using NAASCO PACP and MACP standards. CCTV reports shall be provided
in PDF format.

Concurrent to submitting a monthly invoice by the Contractor, the Contractor shall provide quality
control ofthe submitted work producl and submit copies ofvideo, digital data. and image findings
in a format specified by the City. The City will perform a Quality Assurance review and no
payment shall be made for the submitted work until the City reviews and approves submitted
videos and quantities of estimated linear foot of sewer line videotaped.

The City shall confirm or reject the condition assessment results submitted by the Contractor
within two weeks of the submission. The city will retum work in need of correction or rework to
l.he Contractor on a bi-weekly basis.

Page 27

2. Citv's Review of CCTV Submittals.



C

The Contractor agrees to abide by the city's submission guidelines for electronic data, reports, and
quality standards. The City Engineer's decision is final except in cases where all City guidelines
are met and the interpretation ofacceptance is subjective.

The City will base its review of the submitted work product upon the following submission
guidelines:

All submittals rejected by the City shall not be considered for payment and shall be redone
by the Contractor. All hardships or irregularities during video inspection must be

thoroughly, clearly, and properly documented with photographs and comments for a pipe
to be considered uninspectable.

The proper videotaping procedures are outlined below in the Videotaping Procedures and

STOP locations section. All submittals with premature or improper STOP procedures will
be rejected.

The clarity of the video inspection shall be in a quality wherein the City may visually
confirm the pipe's condition with no obstruction or excessive wastewater flows. If the City
cannot positively confirm the condition ofthe pipe due to poor video quality, pipe flow or
obstruction, then the submittal may be rejected by the City if:

4. Videotaninq Procedures and "STOP" Locations.

Payment shall be at the unit price bid as noted in the specifications from the start manhole
structure to the end manhole structure or irom the start manhole to a STOP location.

lst condition - Ideally, the video inspection shall proceed from the start manhole
structure to the end manhole structure without obstruction, blockages, or
interference from excessive wastewater flows. lnspections shall proceed from
upstream to downstream unless access into the upstream structure is prevented or
the inspection is a reverse setup.

2nd condition - If a STOP location is encountered before reaching the end manhole
structure. then:

b

Page 28

b.

3. ApprovalGuidelines.

The pipe was improperly cleaned, or exiaustion ofapproved cleaning methods was
not properly documented.

The pipe flow was not stopped or controlled as per the specifications.

All video inspections submitted by the Contractor shall proceed only as detailed by the specific
situations outlined below:



Any STOP event shall be followed with a REVERSE SETUP fiom the
opposite end ofthe line segment.

If the reverse video inspection can proceed from the end manhole structure
to the point ofthe initial STOP causing event. then the video inspection
shall be considered complete.

3rd Condition - Proceeding from the REVERSE SETUP as outlined in the 2nd
Condition above, if a second STOP location is found before reaching the initial
STOP point during the cleaning procedure, its presence shall be confirmed by video
imaging from the start of the REVERSE SETUP run to the point of the STOP
causing event. Include appropriate observation coding and clear concise comments
in the report documenting the reason for the STOP event.

5. No Payment and Reiection for Partiall Com l) eted Work

2

3

The city will not pay and will reject partially completed work in the following situations

Line cleaning and incomplete inspection work is submitted without a picture and
thorough. clear, concise description ofthe STOP event.

A REVERSE SETUP and camera run is not attempted after a STOP is recorded

and when access by the camera at the opposite end ofthe selected line segment is
feasible.

Where REVERSE SETUPS are attempted but unsuccessful. thorough
documentation with videos. pictures and comments must be provided in

order for the area to be considered " Uninspectable".

c. Excessive wastewater is present in the line as described in these specifications.

d. In any instance where the city rejects the work or if the City determines that the
Contractor failed to follow the standard operating procedures.

Work Hours.

a.

b

2

K.

Page 29

All STOP locations shall be confirmed by video imaging from the start of
the run (first manhole structure) to the point of the STOP causing event.
lnclude appropriate observation coding and clear concise comments in the
report documenting the reason for the STOP event.

In any instance where the feasibility or acceptability of a REVERSE SETUP
or STOP event is in question. the Contractor shall contact the City, which
shall make the final decision on such matters.



The Contractor must complete all work such that no homeowner is without sewer service unless
otherwise directed by the city. Local noise ordinances or agencies controlling roadway closures
may control starting or stopping operations. Before staning operations, the Contractor shall advise
the City ofthe restrictions imposed by the local agencies.

The workdays are Monday to Friday, and the work hours are from 7 am to 7 pm. local time. Local
restrictions imposed by the local agencies supersede the workdays and the work hours. No work
will be allowed on weekends or holidays except at the discretion ofthe City.

L. Decrease/Increase in Service and Stop Work Due To Inclement Weather.

The unit quantities set forth in this Request for Proposals are best estimates. and the actual unit
quantities may differ from those set forth in the Request for Proposals. This Request for
Proposals and the ultimate Agreement do not guarantee a specific amount of work or lump sum
payment. In the event the actual unit quantity for any item exceeds the unit quantity stated in the
Request for Proposals. the Contractor will be required to notiry and obtain approval ofthe City
prior to proceeding to perform cleaning and inspection services with respect to such additional
unit quantities. Upon receipt ofwritten authorization from the City, the Contractor will be
required to provide cleaning and inspection services at the agreed upon unit prices with respect
to up to one hundred twenty percent (120%) ofthe unit quantity set forth in the Request for
Proposals lor any item.

The City further reserves the right to suspend or stop the performance ofany or all ofthe work
under the Agreement due to inclement weather conditions.

Page 30



2

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE
2025 SEWER MAINS CCTV VIDEO INSPECTION AND CLEANING

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGRE,EMENT (hereinafter "Agreement") is made this

_ day of _ 2023, by the CITY OF IMPERIAL, a public entity (hereinafter referred to as

"CITY") and [NAME OF CONTR{CTOR], a ITYPE OF ENTITY AND STATE OF
ORGANIZATIONI, (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR-). CITY and CONTRACTOR
are sometimes hereinafter individually referred to as "Party" and are hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "Parties."

RECITALS

The following recitals are a substantive part ofthis Agreement:

1. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to City of Imperial Council authorization dated
2025.

CITY has determined there is a need to retain the professional services ofa qualified
company to provide CCTV video inspection of CITY's gravity sewer mains and manholes
(the "Project") in accordance with the Request for Proposals for the 2025 CITY OF
IMPERIAL Sewer System CCTV Video Inspection Project, dated November 7, 2023
(hereinafter referred to as the "Request for Proposals") prepared by CITY.

ln response to the Request for Proposals. CONTRACTOR has submitted to CITY a

proposal. dated [DATE], to provide CITY with professional CCTV video inspection the

"Proposal").

CONTRACTOR represents and maintains that it is uniquely qualified by virtue of its
experience. training, education, reputation, and technical expertise to provide the

professional CCTV video inspection services to CITY for the Project and has agreed to
provide such services as provided herein. CITY does not have the personnel, training.
certification, or specialized technical expertise necessary to perform the work and services

contracted for herein.

CITY desires to retain CONTRACTOR to provide such professional CCTV video
inspection and cleaning services for the Project.

AGREEMENT

THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS

t

5

Page 3 I

EXHIBIT B _ SAMPLE CONTRACT

l. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall cover services rendered from the full
execution of this Agreement through completion of the tasks outlined in the Request for

4.



Proposals and CONTRACTOR's Proposal. unless earlier terminated by the CITY. This Agreement
may be terminated by CITY without cause upon thirty (30) days'written notice. In such an event,
the CITY will compensate CONTRACTOR forwork performed to date in accordance with Section
3.4 of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR is required to present evidence to support the completion
ofthe performed work. CONTRACTOR is required to present evidence to support the completion
ofthe performed work.

2. Services to be Provided.

2-l Scooe ofServices and Standard of Performance. In compliance with all terms and
conditions of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide and perform professional
cleaning and CCTV video inspection of CITY's gravity sewer mains and manholes for the Project
as set forth in (a) the Proposal, which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by
reference, and (b) the Scope of Work included in the Request ior Proposals, which is attached
hereto as Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter referred to as the "Scope
of Services." the "Services" or ''Work"). As a material inducement to CITY entering into this
Agreement, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that the Services and Work
contracted for under this Agreement require specialized skills and abilities and that, consistent with
this understanding, CONTRACTOR's Services and Work shall be performed in a skillful and
competent manner and shall be held to a standard of quality and workmanship prevalent in the
industry for such Services and Work and with the standards recognized as being employed by
professionals in the same discipline in the State of California. CONTRACTOR represents and
warrants that it is skilled in the professional discipline necessary to perform the Services and Work
and that it holds the necessary skills and abilities to satisry the standard of work as set forth in this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR represents and warants that it and all of its employees,
subconsultants and subcontractors providing any Work or Services under this Agreement shall
have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Services and Work assigned to them. All
Services and Work shall be completed to the reasonable satisfaction of CITY. The Proposal. the
Request for Proposals. and this Agreement do not guarantee any specific amount ofwork.

2.2 Contract Documents. The Agreement between the Parties shall consist of the
following: (l) this Agreement; (2) CONTRACTOR's Proposal submitted to CITY; and the Scope
of Work included in the Request for Proposals, which shall collectively be referred to collectively
hereinafter as the "Contract Documents." The CONTRACTOR's Proposal is attached hereto as
Exhibit "A" and is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part ofthis Agreement. The Scope
of Work included in the Request for Proposals is attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and is hereby
incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement. All provisions of the Contract
Documents shall be binding on the Parties. Should any conflict or inconsistency exist in the
Contract Documents, the conflict or inconsistency shall be resolved by applying the provisions in
the highest priority document. which shall be determined in the following order of priority: (lst)
the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (2nd) the provisions of the Consultant's Proposal
(Exhibit "A")t and (3rd) the provisions of Scope of Work.

Page 32



2.5 Familiarity with Work. By executing this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants
that: (l) it has thoroughly investigated and considered the Scope of Work or Services to be

performed: (2) it has carefully considered how the Services should be performed and has carefully
examined the location or locations at or with respect to where such Services or Work is to be

performed and is aware ofall conditions there; and (3) it understands the facilities. difficulties, and

restrictions ofattending performance ofthe Services underthis Agreement. Ifthe Services involve
work upon any site, CONTRACTOR represents and maintains that CONTRACTOR has or will
investigate the site and is or will be fully acquainted with the conditions there existing, prior to
commencement of any Services hereunder. Should CONTRACTOR discover any latent or
unknown conditions materially differing from those inherent in the Work or as represented by
CITY, it shall immediately inform CITY ofthis and shall not proceed, except at CONTRACTOR's
risk. until written instructions are received from CITY.

Page 33

2.3 Compliance with Law. CONTRACTOR shall comply at all times during the term
ofthis Agreement with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations ofthe federal, state.

and local govemment, including without limitation all applicable fair labor standards and

CaI/OSHA requirements. CONTRACTOR shall keep itself fully informed of and in compliance
with all local, state, and federal laws, rules, and regulations in any manner affecting the
performance ofthe Work and Services, including all CaI/OSHA requirements, and shall give all
notices required by law. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for all violations of such laws and
regulations in connection with performing the Work and Services. If CONTRACTOR performs
any Work or Services in violation of such laws, rules, and regulations, CONTRACTOR shall be

solely responsible for all penalties and costs arising therefrom. CONTRACTOR shall defend,
indemnifl, and hold CITY, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, free and
harmless from any claim or liability arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with
such laws, rules, or regulations.

2.4 Licenses. Permits, and Fees. Prior to performing any Services or Work hereunder
CONTRACTOR shall obtain all licenses, permits. qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature
that are legally required to practice its profession and perform the Work and Services required by
this Agreement. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to CITY that CONTRACTOR shall, at

its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement and any
extension. any license. permit, qualification. or approval that is legally required for
CONTRACTOR to perform the Work and Services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall
have the sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments. and taxes, plus applicable penalties and

interest, which may be imposed by law and arise from or are necessary for the CONTRACTOR's
performance ofthe Work and Services required by this Agreement, and shall defend, indemnily,
and hold CITY. its officials, officers. employees, agents and volunteers, free and harmless from
and against any claim or liability arising out ofany failure or alleged failure to obtain such license,

permits. and approvals ol whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Work or
Services.



2.6 Care of Work. CONTRACTOR shall adopt reasonable methods during the term of
the Agreement to furnish continuous protection to the Work and the equipment. materials, papers,
documents, plans, studies, and/or other components thereofto prevent losses or damages, and shall
be responsible for all such damages, to persons or property, untilacceptance ofthe Work by CITY,
except such losses or damages as may be caused by CITY's own negligence.

2.7 Further Responsibilities of Parties. Both Parties agree to use reasonable care and
diligence to perform their respective obligations under this Agreement. Both Parties agree to act
in good faith to execute all instruments, prepare all documents, and take all actions as may be
reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.

3. ComDensation.

3.1 Amount. For the Services and Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement,
CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by CITY for each manhole inspected and each linear foot
ofsewer cleaned and inspected, as set forth in the Scope of Work (Exhibit "B"), at the unit prices
set forth in the Price Proposal Form included within the Proposal (Exhibit "A"). CONTRACTOR
acknowledges that the unit quantities set forth in the Request for Proposals are best estimates by
CITY and that the actual unit quantities may differ fiom those set forth in the Request for
Proposals. CONTRACTOR shall notifo and obtain approval of CITY prior to performing Services
with respect to any item in excess of the estimated unit quantity for such item set forth in the
Request for Proposals. Upon receipt ofwritten authorization fiomClTY's City Managerorhisor
her designee, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide Services at the unit prices set forth in the Proposal
with respect to up to one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the unit quantity set forth in the
Request for Proposals for any item.

3.2 Pavment. For Work or Services under this Agreement, payment shall be made in
arears per invoice for Work completed, subject to the payment provisions set forth in the Scope
of Work (Exhibit "B").

3.4 Terminalion. CITY shall have the right to terminate this Agreement. without cause,
by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination. If the Agreement is terminated by CITY,
then the provisions of paragraph 3 would apply to that portion ofthe work completed.

3.3 Chanqes in Scope. In the event any change or changes in the Scope of Services is
requested by CITY and agreed to by CONTRACTOR, the Parties shall execute a written
amendment to this Agreement. setting forth with particularity all terms of such amendment,
including, but not limited to, any additional fees. An amendment may be entered into: (a) to
provide for revisions or modifications to documents or other work product or work when
documents or other work product or work is required by the enactment or revision of law
subsequent to the preparation ofany documents, other work product. or work; and/or (b) to provide
for additional services not included in this Agreement or not customarily fumished in accordance
with generally accepted practice in CONTRACTOR's profession.

Page 34



3.5 Appropriations. This Agreement is subject to and contingent upon funds being
appropriated therefore by the City of Imperial Council for each fiscal year covered by the term of
this Agreement. lfsuch appropriations are not made, this Agreement shall automatically terminate
without penalty to CITY.

4.1 Commencement of Work. CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under this
Agreement until all certificates and endorsements have been received and approved by the CITY.
All insurance required by this Agreement shall contain a Statement of Obligation on the part of
the carrier to notifu the CITY ofany material change, cancellation, or termination at least thirty
(30) days in advance.

4.2 Workers ComDensation In . During the duration of this Agreement.surance
CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall maintain Workers Compensation Insurance in the
amount and type required by law, ifapplicable.

4.3 lnsurance Amounts. CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall procure and

maintain insurance acceptable to CITY. Unless otherwise agreed or waived in writing by CITY's
City Manager. CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors shall maintain the following insurance for
the duration of this Agreement:

(a) Commercial general liability in an amount of$2.000,000.00 per occurrence:
claims made and modified occurrence policies are 4! acceptable; lnsurance companies must
be acceptable to CITY and have a Best's Guide Rating ofA- Class VII or better, as approved by
the CITY.

(b) Automobile liability in an amount of SI.000,000.00 combined single limit:
claims made and modified occurrence policies are qlacceptable; Insurance companies must
be acceptable to CITY and have a Best's Guide Rating ofA- Class VII or better. as approved by
the CITY.

An On-Going and Completed Operations Additional Insured Endorsement for the policy
under section 4.3 (a) shall designate CITY, its officers. officials, employees. agents, and volunteers
as additional insureds for liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalfof
the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to CITY proof of insurance and endorsement
forms that conform to CITY's requirements, as approved by the CITY.

An Additional Insured Endorsement for the policy under section 4.3 (b) shall designate CITY, its
officers. officials, employees, agents, and volunteers as additional insureds for automobiles.
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to
CITY proof of insurance and endorsement forms that conform to CITY's requirements, as

approved by the CITY.

Page 35

4. Insurancereguirements.



For any claims related to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respect to CITY. its officers, officials, employees, agents. and volunteers. Any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the CITY, its officers. officials, employees, agents. and
volunteers shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

If CONTRACTOR maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above,
CONTRACTOR shall provide coverage for the higher insurance limits otherwise maintained by
the CONTRACTOR.

5. Non-Liabilitv of Officials and Emolovees of the Ciw. No official or employee of CITY
shall be personally liable to CONTRACTOR in the event of any default or breach by CITY, or lor
any amount which may become due to CONTRACTOR.

6. Conflict oflnterest. No officer or employee ofthe CITY shall have any financial interest,
direct or indirect, in this Agreement nor shall any such officer or employee participate in any
decision relating to the Agreement which effects his or her financial interest or the financial interest
ofany corporation, partnership, or association in which they are, directly or indirectly, interested
in violation of any state statute or regulation. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that it has
not paid or given and will not pay or give any third party any money or other consideration in
exchange for obtaining this Agreement.

7. Qqvenant Against Discrimination. In connection with its perfbrmance under this
Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because ofrace, disability. medical condition, religion. color, sex, sexual
orientation, age, marital status. ancestry, or national origin. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that
applicants are employed. and that employees are treated during their employment, without regard
to their race. disability, medical condition. religion, color, sex. sexual orientation, age, marital
status, ancestry, or national origin. Such actions shall include, but not be limited to, the
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising;
layoffor termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training,
including apprenticeship.

8. IndependentContractor.

(a). The legal relationship between the Parties is that of an independent contractor.
and nothing herein shall be deemed to make CONTRACTOR a CITY employee. During the
performance ofthis Agreement. CONTRACTOR and its officers. employees, and agents shall act
in an independent capacity and shall not act as CITY officers or employees. CONTRACTOR will
determine the means. methods and details of performing the Services subject to the requirements
of this Agreement. The personnel performing the Services under this Agreement on behalf of
CONTRACTOR shall at all times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control.
Neither CITY nor any of its officials, officers, employees. agents or volunteers shall have control
over the conduct of CONTRACTOR or any of its officers. employees. or agents, except as set
forth in this Agreement. CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees or agents, shall not maintain
a permanent office or fixed business location at

Page 36



DISTICT's offices. CITY shall have no voice in the selection, discharge, supervision, or control
of CONTRACTOR's officers, employees, representatives or agents or in fixing their number.
compensation, or hours of service. CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries, and other
amounts due its employees in connection with the performance of Services under this Agreement
and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting them, including but not limited
to social security income tax withholding. unemployment compensation. workers' compensation,
and other similar mafters. CITY shall not in any way or for any purpose be deemed to be a partner
of CONTRACTOR in its business or otherwise a joint venturer or a member of any joint enterprise
with CONTRACTOR.

(c) No CITY benefits shall be available to CoNTRACToR, its officers. employees, or
agents, in connection with the performance ofany Work or Services under this Agreement. Except
for professional fees paid to CONTRACTOR as provided for in this Agreement. CITY shall not
pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to CONTRACTOR for the performance of any Work
or Services under this Agreement. CITY shall not be liable for compensation or indemnification
to CONTRACTOR, its officers. employees, or agents, for injury or sickness arising out of
performing any Work or Services hereunder. If for any reason any court or governmental agency
determines that the CITY has financial obligations, other than pursuant to Section 3 herein, ofany
nature relating to salary. taxes, or benefits of CONTRACTOR's officers. employees,
representatives. agents. or subconsultants or subcontractors, CONTRACTOR shall defend,
indemnifl, and hold harmless CITY from and against all such financial obligations.

9. Notices. All notices shall be personally delivered or mailed to the below listed address, or
to such other addresses as may be designated by written notice, and shall be deemed received upon
the earlier of(i) the date ofdelivery to the address ofthe person to receive such notice ifdelivered
personally or by messenger or ovemight courier; or (ii) five (5) business days after the date of
posting by the United States Post Oflice ifby mail. These addresses shall be used for delivery of
service ofprocess.

(CITY) City of lmperial
Jenell Guerrero
420 S. lmperial Ave.
Imperial. C A 92251

Attention:

iguerrero@ imoerial.ca.sov

10. Time of Essence; Liouidated Damases. Time is of the essence in the performance of this
Agreement. The Parties hereby agree that all Work with respect to the unit quantities set forth rn

the Request for Proposals is intended to be completed by no later than March 7,2026. With respect
to all Work with respect to unit quantities in excess ofthose set forth in the Request for Proposals,

Page 37

(b) CONTRACTOR shall not incur or have the power to incur any debt. obligation. or
liability against CITY, or bind CITY in any manner.

(CONTRACTOR)



It is further agreed that in case the work called for under this Agreement is not finished and
completed in all parts and requirements within the time specified, the CITY shall have the right to
extend the time for completion or not, as may seem best to serve the interest ofthe CITY; and if it
decides to extend the time limit for the completion of this Agreement. it shall further have the right
to charge the CONTRACTOR, his or her heirs, assigns, or sureties, and to deduct from the final
payment for the work, all or any part. as it may deem proper, of the actual costs and overhead
expenses which are directly chargeable to this Agreement, and which accrue during the period of
such extensions. The CONTRACTOR shall not be assessed with liquidated damages during any
delay in the completion ofthe Work caused by an act ofGod or ofthe public enemy, acts ofthe
CITY, fire, flood, epidemic, quarantine restriction, strikes, freight embargoes, and unusually
severe weather or delays of subcontractors due to such causes; provided that the CONTRACTOR
shall, within one (l) day from the beginning ofsuch delay, notiry the CITY in writing ofthe causes
ofdelay. The CITY shall ascertain the facts and the extent ofthe delay, and its findings ofthe facts
thereon shall be final and conclusive.

I l. Limitation sU on Subcontractins and Assisnment. The experience, knowledge, capability,o

and reputation of CONTRACTOR, its principals, and employees were a substantial inducement
for CITY to enter into this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall not contract with any other entity to
perform the services required without the written approval ofthe CITY. This Agreement may not
be assigned voluntarily or by operation of law without the prior wriften approval of CITY. If
CONTRACTOR is permitted to subcontract any part of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be
responsible to CITY for the acts and omissions of its subcontractor as it is for persons directly
employed. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between
any subcontractor and CITY. All persons engaged in the work will be considered employees of
CONTRACTOR. CITY will deal directly with and will make all payments to CONTRACTOR.

Page 38

the Parties hereby agree that such Work is intended to be completed within the time period(s) set
forth in the schedule contained in CONTRACTOR's Proposal. It is agreed by the Parties to the
Agreement that in case all the work called for under this Agreement is not completed before or
upon the expiration of the time limits set forth herein, the damage will be sustained by the CITY.
and that it is and will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which the CITY will sustain
in the event of and by reason of such delay. lt is therefore agreed that the CONTRACTOR will
pay to the CITY the sum of five hundred Dollars ($500) per calendar day for each and every day's
delay beyond the time prescribed to complete the Work; and the CONTRACTOR agrees to pay
such liquidated damages as herein provided, and in case the same are not paid, agrees that the
CITY may deduct the amount thereof from any money due or that may become due the
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.



12. Indemnification.CONTRACTOR agrees to protect, defend, and hold harmless CITY and
its elective or appointive Council. officers, agents, and employees from any and all third party
claims, liabilities. expenses, or damages of any nature, including attorneys' fees. for bodily injury
or death of any person, or damage to property, or interference with use of propeny, to the extent
caused by negligent acts. errors or omissions or willful misconduct by CONTRACTOR,
CONTRACTOR's agents, ofTicers, employees, subcontractors. or independent contractors hired
by CONTRACTOR. The exception to CONTRACTOR's responsibility to protect, defend, and

hold harmless CITY, is due to the active negligence of CITY, or any of its elective or appointive
Council, omcers, agents, or employees.

This hold harmless agreement shall apply to all liability regardless of whether any
insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act as a limitation upon the amount of
indemnification to be provided by CONTRACTOR.

13. Bonds. CONTRACTOR shall fumish the lollowing bonds in a form and from a bonding
company acceptable to the CITY's Ceneral Counsel:

(a) Faithful Performance: A bond in the amount of 100% ofthe total contract pnce
guaranteeing the faithf'ul performance of this Agreement, and

(b) Labor and Materials: A bond for labor and materials in the amount of 100% ofthe
total contract price

(a) Each and every repo(. draft, work product. map, record and other document,
hereinafter collectively referred to as "Report", reproduced. prepared or caused to be prepared by
CONTRACTOR pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement. shall be the exclusive properly
of CITY. CONTRACTOR shall not copyright any Report required by this Agreement and shall

execute appropriate documents to assign to City the copyright to Reports created pursuant to this
Agreement. Any Report, information and data acquired or required by this Agreement shall
become the property of CITY, and all publication rights are reserved to CITY.

(b) All Reports prepared by CONTRACTOR may be used by CITY in t h e execution
or implementation of:

( | ) The original Project for which CONTRACTOR was hired:

(2) Completion ofthe original Project by others:

(3) Subsequent additions to the original Project; and/or

(4) Other CITY projects as appropriate.

Page 39

14. Reports.



(c) No Report, information or other data given to or prepared or assembled by
CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement shall be made available to any individual or firm by
CONTRACTOR without prior approval by City.

15.2 CONTRACTOR shall be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations
("DIR") in accordance with Califomia Labor Code Section 1725.5 and has provided proofof
registration to CITY prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement.

15.3 CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the provisions of Califomia Labor Code
Sections 1771. 1774 and 1775 conceming the payment ofprevailing rates ofwages to workers
and the penalties for failure to pay prevailing wages. The applicable prevailing wage
determ ination(s) may be obtained at httos://www.dir.ca.so vlo rlldorex'asedetermination.htmD

are on file with CITY, and are available to any interested party upon request. A copy ofsaid
rates shall be posted at each job site during the Term of this Agreement.

15.4 Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1771.4. CONTRACTOR's services
are subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department oflndustrial Relations.
CONTRACTOR shall post job site notices as prescribed by DIR regulations and fumish the
records specified in California Labor Code Section 1776 directly to the Labor Commissioner in
the manner prescribed by Califomia Labor Code Section 1771.4(aX3) and (c)(2).

15.5 CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of Califomia Labor Code
Section 1776 which, among other things, require Contractor and each subcontractor to ( I ) keep
accurate payroll records, (2) certiry and make such payroll records available for inspection as

Page 40

I 5. Prevailine waees. C ITY has determ ined that the Work and Services under this
Agreement requires work of labor categories which are subject to Prevailing Wage Laws
identified in the State of California Labor Code. CONTRACTOR is aware of the requirements of
Califomia Labor Code Section 1720, et seq., and 1770. et seq., as well as Califomia Code of
Regulations, Title 8, Section 16000, et seq.. ("Prevailing Wage Laws"), which require the
payment ofprevailing wage rates and the performance ofother requirements on "public works"
and "maintenance" projects. CONTRACTOR agrees to fully comply with allapplicable federal
and state labor laws (including, without limitation, the Prevailing Wage Laws). It is agreed by
the Parties that, in connection with the Work or Services provided pursuant to this Agreement,
CONTRACTOR shall bear all risks ofpayment or non-payment ofprevailing wages under
Califomia law, and Consultant hereby agrees to defend. indemnify, and hold CITY. its elected
officials, officers, employees, and agents free and harmless from any claim or liability arising
out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws. The foregoing
indemnity shall survive termination of this Agreement CONTRACTOR understands and agrees
to comply with the following Califomia Labor Code compliance conditions [Labor Code
Sections 1720 et seq.. 1813. 1860, 1861,37001:

l5.l This Agreement is subject to the provisions of Division 2,Part7. Chapter I
(commencing with Section 1720) of the Califomia Labor Code relating to public works and the
awarding public agency (-CITY) and CONTRACTOR agree to be bound by all the
provisions thereofas though set forth in full herein.



provided by Section 1776, and (3) inform the CITY of the location of the records.
CONTRACTOR is responsible for compliance with Section 1776 by itself and all of its
subcontractors.

15.6 CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of Califomia Labor Code
Section 1777.5 conceming the employment ofapprentices on public works projects. and further
agrees that CONTRACTOR is responsible for compliance with Section 1777.5 by itself and all
of its subcontractors.

15.7 Eight (8) hours oflabor shall constitute a legal day's work for all workmen
employed in the execution ofthis Agreement, and CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall
comply with and be governed by the laws of the State of Califomia having to do with working
hours set forth in Division 2. Part7. Chapter l. Article 3 of the Califomia Labor Code.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of California Labor Code Section I 8l 3
concerning penalties for workers who work excess hours. CONTRACTOR shall, as a penalty to
CITY, forfeit twenty-five dollars ($25) for each worker employed in the execution of this
Agreement by the CONTRACTOR or by any subcontractor for each calendar day during which
such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) hours in any one calendar day

and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week in violation ofthe provisions of Division 2.Part7,
Chapter l. Article 3 of the Califomia Labor Code. (See.e.g.,Cal.LaborCode$1815.)

15.8 Pursuant to Califomia Labor Code Sections 1860 and 3700, CONTRACTOR will
be required to secure the payment ofcompensation to its employees. By signing this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR hereby certifies as follows:

"l am aware ofthe provisions ofSection 3700 ofthe Labor Code which
require every employer to be insured against liability for workers'
compensation or to undenake self-insurance in accordance with the
provisions ofthat code, and I will comply with such provisions before
commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement."

15.9 Pursuant to Califomia Labor Code Section lTTl.l,CONTRACTORandany
subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the

requirements ofSection 4104 ofthe Califomia Public Contract Code, or engage in the

performance ofany contract for public work on a public works project unless registered with the

DIR and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Califomia Labor Code Section 1725.2. lt
is not a violation of Califomia Labor Code Section l77l.l for an unregistered contractor to
subm it a bid that is authorized by Califomia Business and Professions Code Section 7029. I or by
California Public Contract Code Section 10164 or 20103.5, provided the contractor is registered

to perform public work pursuant to Section I 725.5 at the time the contract is awarded.

CONTRACTOR shall not perform any work under this Agreement with any subcontractor who

is ineligible to perform work on the public works project pursuant to Section I 777.1 or 1777 .7 of
the California Labor Code.

Page 4l



16. Waiver. No waiverof any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing
and signed by a duly authorized representative ofthe Party against whom enforcement ofa waiver
is sought. Any waiver by the Parties ofany default or breach ofany covenant, condition, or term
contained in this Agreement, shall not be construed to be a waiver ofany subsequent or other
default or breach, nor shall failure by the Parties to require exact, full, and complete compliance
with any of the covenants, conditions. or terms contained in this Agreement be construed as
changing the terms of this Agreement in any manner or preventing the Parties from enforcing the
full provisions hereof.

17. Riehts and Remedies Cumulative. Except with respect to rights and remedies expressly
declared to be exclusive in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the Parties are cumulative
and the exercise by either Party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the
exercise by it, at the same or different times. of any other rights or remedies for the same default
or any other default by the other Party.

I 8. Leeal Action. In addition to any other rights or remedies, either Pany may take legal action.
in law or in equity, to cure. correct or remedy any default, to recover damages for any default, to
compel specific performance of this Agreement. to obtain declaratory or injunctive relief. or to
obtain any other remedy consistent with the purposes of this Agreement.

l9 ia Law Venue This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Califomia. Any action commenced about this Agreement shall be filed in the central
branch ofthe Orange County Superior Court.

20. Interpretation. This Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair language
and common meaning to achieve the objectives and purposes of the Parties. The terms of this
Agreement are contractual and the result ofnegotiation between the Parties. Accordingly, any rule
of construction of contracts (including, without limitation, Califomia Civil Code Section 1654)
that ambiguities are to be construed against the drafting party, shall not be employed in the
interpretation of this Agreement. The caption headings ofthe various sections and paragraphs of
this Agreement are for convenience and identification purposes only and shall not be deemed to
limit. expand, or define the contents ofthe respective sections or paragraphs.

2l . Entire Asreem r: Moditlcarion . This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between
the parties and supersedes any previous agreements. oral or written. This Agreement may be
modified only by subsequent mutual written agreement executed by CITY and CONTRACTOR.

22. Severability.Whenever possible, each provision ofthis Agreement shall be interpreted in
such a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law. but if any provision of this
Agreement shall be determined to be invalid by a finaljudgment or decree ofa court of competeni
jurisdiction, such provision shall be ineffective only to the extent ofsuch prohibition or invalidity.
without invalidating the reminder ofthat provision, or the remaining provisions ofthis Agreement
unless the invalid provision is so material that its invalidity deprives either Party of the basic
benefit oftheir bargain or renders this Agreement meaningless.

Page 42



23. Comorate Authoriw. Each of the undersi gned represents and warrants that (i) the Party for
which he/she is executing this Agreement is duly authorized and existing. (ii) he/she is duly
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalfofthe Party for which he/she is signing.
(iii) by so executing this Agreement, the Party for which he/she is signing is formally bound to the
provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the entering into this Agreement does not violate any
provision ofany other Agreement to which the Party for which he/she is signing is bound.

24. Countemartsl Facsimile Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all
of which shall constitute the same Agreement, notwithstanding that all parties to this Agreement
are not signatory to the same counterpart. Signature and acknowledgement pages may be detached

from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this Agreement to physically form one (l)
original document. These counterparts may be transmitted by facsimile or Portable Document
Format (PDF), with the originals to be thereafter provided by the Parties. Such facsimiles or
electronic copies shall be deemed original signatures.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, these parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first
written above.

.CITY"

CITY OF IMPERIAL,
a public entity

*CONTRACTOR'

By'

Name:

By:

Name

Title:

'['ax lD No

If CONTRACTOR is a corporation, a

Corporate Resolution and/or Corporate Seal is
required. Ifa partnership. Statement of
Partnership must be submitted to City.

a

Bl
Dennis Morita
City Manager

General Counsel
City of Imperial

Page 43

Title:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:



EXHIBIT *A" TO AGREEMENT

CONTRACTOR'S PROPOSAL

Page 44



EXHIBIT "8" TO AGREEMENT

SCOPE OF WORK

Page 45



Item
No.

Description Units
Estimated
Quantiq

Unit Price
Total Estimated

Item Price

I
CCTV inspection of designated 8-inch
gravity sewer mains

LF 56.000 $ s

CCTV inspection of designated l2-inch
gravity sewer mains

LT r.500 s s

CCTV inspection ofdesignated 2l -inch
gravity sewer mains

LF 3.800 $ S

l CCTV inspection of designated 24-inch
gravity sewer mains

t_F 1.800 s S

6
Cleaning and inspection ofall ttreCity's
manholes (all sizes and types)

EA 1.700 S S

EXHIBIT C - PRICE PROPOSAL FORM

2025 CITY OF IMPERIAL SEWER SYSTEM CCTV VIDEO INSPECTION AND CLEANING PROJECT
BID NUMBER 2025-08

Total Amount for All Items in Words (Assuming Stated Unit Quantities):

Note: The Unit Quantities set forth above are best estimates; the actual Unit Quantities may differ.
Payment will be based on the Unit Prices for actual linear feet of sewer mains inspected and the actual
number of manholes inspected.

CONTRACTOR shall notify and obtain approval of CITY prior to performing Services with
respect to any Item in excess ofthe estimated Unit Quantity for such ltem, Upon receipt ofwriflen
authorization from CITY's City Manager or his or her designee, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide
Sen'ices aa the Unit Prices set forth above with respect to up to one hundred twenh percent (t2070)
of the Unit Quantity set forth above for any ltem.

Page 46

TotalAmountForAllItemsioNumerals(AssumingStatedUnitQuantities):s-



D-+
DATE SUBMITTED

SUBMITTED BY

DATE ACTION REQUIRED

05i 28/25

PT]BI-IC St.-RVICES

06104/25

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda ltem No.

COUNCIL ACTION
PUBI-IC HEARING R-EQUIRED
RESOLU'IION
ORDINANCE IST RTADING
ORDINANCE 2ND READING
CITY CL[-RK'S INITIAI.S

x)
)
)

)

)
)

DISCUSSION/ACTION: Aten Rood Sewer tuhe Reprocemen, Proiecl - Phose ,r:
ctP #u8 (8rD NO. 2025-06)

I. Aword construction controcl to Rove Engineering, lnc.

2. Authorize 10% Conlingency

DEPARTMENTINVOLVED: PUBLICSERVICES
BACKGROI ]ND/SI ]MMA R Y

The Public Services Deportment wos direcled by City Council per Agendo l'tem CC04-16-
25 llem-C6 lo conduct o compelilive BID process for the Aten Rood Sewer Line
Replocement Projecl -Phose ll: CIP #848 (Bid No. 2025-05).

This pro.iecl will continue ihe 2l-inch diometer sewer pipeline from Preble Rood 10 the
Cloypool Pump Slotion. The Cloypool Pump slotion will be relocoled ond the concrete
wet well will be reploced. The exisiing wet well is six feet in diomeler. ond the new wel
well will be l2 feet in diometer io ollow for more sloroge copociiy for the pumps. The 2l-
inch sewer pipeline is designed lo reduce lhe impocl lo lroffic ot the inlerseciion of Old
Hwy 86 ond Alen Blvd. ond reduce costs os much os possible.

See olloched Exhibii " 1 " (proiect plons) for detoils

I . Rove Engineering, lnc, $ I .823.553.00

See otloched Exhibii "2" (Bid Opening Act) for deloils.

Public Services hos delermined thot the bid submiiied by Rove Engineering Inc., is the
lowesl. responsive ond responsible bidder. Therefore, it is requesled ihe project be
oworded to Rove Engineering lnc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

$ r ,823,553.00

Funds will be expended from wostewoter enterprise funds
through occount 54-84&5210. Projecl is in the FY 2526
Copitol lmprovement Plon (ClP).

FINANCE
INITIALS UM'1

SI.JBJECT:

Sloff releosed o "Nolice Inviling Seoled Bids" published on the city website ond in the
lmperiol Volley Press. The following bid wos received during the formol bid process:

As ihe infrosiructure oround the cily is severely oged ond under stress, it is olso
recommended to oufhorize o i0% Contingency for the consiruclion of lhis project to
cover costs ossocioted with polentiol unforeseen conditions. lf oulhorized, il will reduce
the likelihood of projecl deloys.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

ll is the deportment's recommendotion lo oword
conlroct to Rove Engineering, lnc. in the omounl of
$ I ,873.553.00 ond outhorize I 0% conlingency.

DEPT
INITIALS

MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION: CITY
MANAGER's
INITIALS

q*pr"/t- {'tJr4

MOTION:

SECONDED
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED
DISAPPROVED

o
o

REJECTED
DEFERRED

o
o

REFERRED TO:



,.,il:*i.=Iriiir
?;;;!:
r!?ise
;i!iE;
E:!.; i"
ls:8 = i5iii:;ll
-B! i:E:i r:
;E:c: i: iE

E;1i!ii!l

E" :
:qi r.
:i. iS

eri 5::i;,:

=i'^ 
11

:f. i:
f!i =5!li rl
re: l.Y!l "!l::" !r

! E!i::
; r:iri
E :!;9i

E !':l;r :;a:E
: 3t!;. t:i i:! ;ii:i
? : ra.:
t. i;5;:
:r rlEE!
l! i!a!::x 9;! -E

" I ai
i ;: E:, ;IEI: 3!E:
: *!: E

; Eii:
! :ii:

a itii; a{:r

:; iE:i
:3 E:i5

i;i::
?;rai
!:g:x:Ei!:
6!_t-i

:Ei:i

gEi:i

!!i:3
!E::!
ii!1.

IiiiEr

:ei:i
::.:6

.g :i:
;i i:5

ia i1i
z: {:j

r: .a;:
.i '!iiE s;:

e

!

i i_! ^^

i e !-3,:E

!;i!i."

l::::ei
;;; ! !:3:;ii:i!rl

i

!
I

:

3

E

t
z

!
a

il'

!-i::
iE"i: ii
i!!;:ii?il:; ;i
!i!l; i!
!rr;l Ei

i!i:; r!
:r;l, ?,t?;.a z,
iE!Ei t:
;;E.i: :;
ie !:a *:
::EiEl:E

3

=

a9

.E
!Fr

*:!

::E
!1,

Ex8

i eil;r:!
::fr
i:5;

i?
liEi!
!a:.:
tira?
:EIi;

i;iiE:
i l Iiic;i9r;
i l:i!g
s i:::!; ia;:E
: l!!:;:;tgri

I.a
3;qii8 :
i::!et i
!:;: !; :
3i*ri ;
iia96i !

5i3iie!;x'it:l? s

fi;s3iE ;
::ii;iE;

i:"
q .6: ii:

:F li;;i
;: iE::iii rii;i-a EriE:,i \.:!i,
!I 6E!li

;; .!i:!
:;! qii:r

i;i ;IE;
5i!;rl!!!:3.1:;i
:EE:!i!9

:

:
I
3

2

!

!;

!

i

a

:5

:F

j5
1'
;!
:!
!!
t;
3j

!E

!1

t3
hi
qt

5

J:
6

I

e_:18 .e'

!;;=r ;t:r:'i *i?

i:'u i!6

g" !:c; "::;: ::6: iFrE

I :3'r -b'e

"B iec: ii!i
? t:EE ,:i,
i:E"3. i:!;l E:t: t! ":
E !idF!'Eeq

.E
.q P:
E!iII
AEE:i

s

q

NC
z Y1

i?RSsi
=:FEigo Ei6

oz
l
oo
F
6

a
!i
i,
:!

t9

!ri
i::
it!

Ft:

rii

illt

;
1_d

!I
6;

-!:
8I;

!T:

5iq:9!?

1.!e.!,
.3:iilr
lE;3;lr
;;ti;!r
Eiii:ii
ii!!,i!

i;riiit
:I:i:si
i!""!s1

;:;filii:

i;ii;illE
ii::iiI:
9iliirlii
:!;i;t131
lrl!t!,'t
r:1"!"?:l
!!r!lii:i
!Ilirr;r:
!!?!!::.ii
6!#!iil!i

I
P,,

;?|
: ;;;
? ;E;d

rtttrt"

.!Eriqi:
=qiii4.E

x
IJJ

oz

LJ
L!
Io

rl

!:

!15!;3$ *E*5$

EIE::Ei!l;ii

!l

E;

a-
:E

6

1Iat-
U
Fz
o
U

Uz
LIJ(,

?i

!c
iitil- 2

='1E' 
>

z
E
E
d
o
ILz
t-
tJt!
!
d(!

Nl
ruEot
I
(L

l-
IJ
uJ

od
o-
o
Fz
uJ

ru4
o9do:eQ<'
ErnuHN rdo<UJNi
BoHuzzo.. ;
9Er

r lrl

3Edzt.rJ -
o-
E
l-l

oz
o<:

F
fim
F-<*

I.JJ

!e\
s
\L\
:.i

i\

:Is

S
S
{s
\

?a:
tsE20fal.
ooaoa

tr

Z

i

6

Fe

69

r iP

{x1

i?
>=,

i

!_

i!
iE

-'3

d,

,,3,d;

r q4;
:1d-
u !l5l'

o3!:

.J:

0a: :
LU 9;E(L:!,
> Ei3
-E -LL;:io;E;
>3-3F- Po;

I

l

r iiti 1::

i!iiliiiiiiii

iiiiiiiiii:;ii

!

1

3

rti
-5



g-

o
E
(d

n

?l
-t

t-

:-
tr.:

H

, Ef

: *I
b e:
5 ::

E9

,i
! ;3

:rt

,

,t
;i
I

t

+

Ji

i3 I
tr E;-aL+*;
E Ex:'
- E--
LL;P5
O; EE
2-g 5F'Po;

:_r
i:Ecs

liiE c

;!!!!
!fiEEE

iii::!
!EgIEI

5i;i::;
lili!,i

liiiiiiiiis

Iiiihi!!*;

-!

iiiii
!iiiEtr:l;rt!:i
;iliE

liffl,
:;,8; T

r.dBiI

r6

lf
lu

E:

H,*

gT

i!
l9

cti

f,it

,"

ii
ter

r!i
! [t$
! !,i
g !:!r l!!
I lrr

;ie
iE;
!ii
_ili
a8t
i-r!
!E;

l;l!r*
iHi

"ii!? ;

dr*Eli. l:.HE -i,i:.r-
l!i; IEPi i,i ;HE ,!eiili!!

iiilliilli iii iift iiiiiiiil,

!:i;!l:iii;
iiiuiEiEi:iiii

iliiliililiiiHJli

r!p $

iibb
!:E 

'!6!

:;ir
iq:?

t:;i !:5rtErrtSt

, ..::' ..;
'..1

't :

:.,
1 " ,.

-lEii!l:
riq

E:I
iit
!;:
!it
:i:
i3i
lip
3it r

P

z

a
a

!1
.!
gI

:

t

aP!

*:q

!;,
ii

i



liiiEEiEiiIii;

,,o.
{

Bq
zI
Lllz
l
d.
Lll

=uJ

ui

e
uJ

=

i:
:t

I

I

*liffiltuliiilL
o o @o o o o ooo e

I

I

I

oe

=
d

E

ui

s
d
o_

=

:

b lllHs ll5 00+34 Vls lNrlHf,l,Vr,l

l1

I

tl.
,il: ,P

-.1

l

lr
\

.tl

1l

5

1l
-

L
I
I
I

l

H
I

I ll

I I]

l

I

I

5:-;

..\:r
if

l.
I

!
+

!
t

n#
;;8r f,Ei

E*i

,i:
ii!ii:
t5i

t

2

bl

L

I

I

lc
v"--

,'i

I
F

g

, it
E e;
E i*

3E

!H
I tf
:it

5

Ei
I9
9:

EE

;
;i

!

):

LU 9;Eo-:*;
> hs{
tL;85
O;Efi
>a 3F- P

O;
fF:

lr

i:i
i:.
i.i
iir

;i,
:i,

I

l

\+\,

t"..

Lar
(:

I

T",

t'c

I

l

4

3
1 t t

1-

I

l

:

l

!i

+
:i



i;iiii*;ilii;

!;:iiffg;iiii;

,iiiii:i;g;:iEi

I

I

It
I

,roa
4

=q

z

z
t
B

d

g
d
UJ

=

t

\,
3e

ii
li

I

T.
ii

q rrrHs lls 05+lt v15lNlrHlrvl/r

tt

It

I

I

i*irliriiili,ii
itl;iliiisEiIit
iEiE;iEE E riXiiIi,I
ii ii Ilill:lBli:ii iigi
oooo @oooo€e

l

g

Lll

o
E

Lll

=E
E

d

d.
IJ,J
o_

=

:

:

s rrrHs rrs 09+4 vrs rNnHaLvx

,?

r rrrHs rrs 00-3zvlr rNnHlv[i

lr

791 a[:
:!9
::{

=L l

:;l
\

ii1

-1 1

"*'

ts

*

e

EF
EE
6:

*9
;i
?E

F*

5

I
i

IB

26

!:
E;

3

^i

2

12

d

3li:fa:iiHi:id+
X 1i;:;:E
d i "; [1ie
3 Eiil:,:
!ii;:i;:

:

+

J:
av9'
tr E;Fn:l-

= 
Eii

t-L-E5
O; Ffi
>E-3F'P
ti:

.E
€

ri
t
i:

!i

s:
ts

{-;

.l

,l

I

,l

!i

,l

I

a

4

"#'

:i
l!

t'
+

: I

?:fi

!

t

r

i



I

I

It
!

,16
,i

;;iriiiii,iiii

iiiiiiiEiiiiii

rl,is!ilEitiiE:

=uJt
z

i
uJ
z
d
LIJ

=LIJ

tli
?

d
LIJ
o_

=

::i
,11

I

fiIEIIIIIIiIilil
o o @0 @ o o ooo o

I

g

:

! llSHS l3S 0S*l€ VIS lNnNl-wl,l

i:i

I

ar
;!

A-
-

a

\

l

?

r
L

I

E
I

,l

I

i:

l

i:
i
I

I

I
I

I

I

. -.1

It:;
I,

3
1

:

E,". I

E

d.

l i9i 1;

E?

e!
s iP
E"2:rt

:
3:
!6
ig

a6

F9
t-
".

I
;r:l

i

;t

:3

oi=
,i;;

i;i
3.:ii:
i.:
!:;

t

a

JE
MB ail E;Eo-*fi:
> E*q

b;Bi
>E-3F- Po;

I

..t
1i

:i
!!

'r

i;i:
I'
{!

I
,|

I

I

I

;
.!

ili
ll
I

I

l
I

lir

o;:

z
d
14

L!

tl.i

d.
ul

=

i

I

!!i
;i

4*J3 s.q

,l
lL

.ff+

!
!



,16.
,i

ffliffililffliei
oo@o 60000€o

1

" i*
i$iii"liq i i !4FE*r i ! !Hi:
r I i ltitE

IEi!fidj
i i ! :eii3
!;E; i t3:F
li;iliEiii;i
6 6 @6 6

6

)

z

l

^s$
r3al

i
I

t

*E':sl
R3

.E

td
E

I
E=

te

t

I

-J:
NB .)

il E;En 1l -

= 
E;,!

- E_-
t-L;Pbo;3[
>s-3F'Pc.:;

t

;t

;
r*
::i
l"l
,::
i!i

," !;
H;.

i;:.i;

3:!

I

\
tr

fl
a

OHE

F

q

f
a

?

*-r,=
[P-- t

I :[L

'

,.ii

i



P

!

r8)

5c
,t.]E&
E=r=
F

1

E
a

?

4

E

E

z

I

I

3

o
E
(d

o

"!i

iiijr!
tii

:;i ..
i.Il iI

,;ii:ii!- st:: '::
I,;[i :!;
i rii:: ; :;
r l;1!:" i !i

:irilii:;;
' ::-"!9 i ii:3i!ti! i:l

:l

4

]
i

B. Ei
:E6:

i!iEi
iEE!E

-i!H;:
:iE;I!
E!Eiii
6!$'t

2

!
5

i
i

?

?

;r
Eeqi

!i

t

o
4

o

z

_f

F

ar

tE

s

3

-Q

l,:r
r!

:

!

iiri
!1'-i
iiii

Eie,!:ir6ciF
1!E:Ei

i:iEiEi
:i!:Eii
EE E:;: E 

q

i;!liEii

!

I;
EA

!E
;5

3'

i5

iJi

LU

I
I ^.
d Hr

=

3

*!
9?

5:

9E

t

I

EU .
rsBiE
6dl!9
-.rXti*g;i!
E!iIE

*Eii5i!
9S58tSt

a

o

4

2

T

ir
;:

i^

ia:EiEi

H3;!E!'!

:!EEIiEi
E:EEI:F'

::
::
ri

i
1"

I

:

?

!

9

i

l

g!-n
tit
]B

i;

?

5

5

a

-l

B-'

$i
6E

-43

i1

:g

Iri
:ir
;iE
Y

i!;
!i$

!i;

!
g

x

*

I

v

9-

+ F.9

E?

rHI e*

E

I

:
I

-'i
B-:

eg

-86

.

2

].

JE
tP ?
LU 96P
gti4
- E--
tL;.QEo; E$
>E-3F' 

^.O;

1
3!
l:
i:

ir!
i:i

."'. i

:;:

!l:
!i:
1-, :

53
!Et;

€1r

!l: i

:i!:a
; eS!:1j

iliSitr
liti ii;
!rlt E!i

!!
i

;s ';:'i:.
i;::a
!; ie;!i!at

-l

ii
i!
:E

-l

d
I'l

q"

I:.
i!

"-,

P:r
4i
!d" ii;ia ;1,{dt X'
\

11 :

-t

i:

!;
3:

,

9!!q!
;!?e?
ES}:E

elii
i"

iii:
ui;
-ii

I

!i

ir
a'

!1
}H
Ei

3

l

+

:i !i
-!r !i

;i
i:

rS=

q



=

cL

o

L
z

o

o

=
)o

tr

t

I

:

c&

1

i

::

+
a-

t:

i
I
li
+:

6

!:

:lr

I

I

I

T

I

I
! ti!
ilr:i
!rt;i

;I

r1.t

ii

1!-J

:iiiE ,

o

t.:
i,1

q
z

L5-

=

CB
-?

I

1

i
1

.t
i!l!

I;r
JH

rS,

9

:

T,
3'

:
q

+

E'

!
I

ti

iifii
,r::{
ii;!E

l

i;i
irl
ltl

lil
;il

.: !r

!:
l.
lii

,
I

:i
:i
,iit
iti

t
I
!
l
i
i
I
I

i
s

I

i
E

q

Y

t

B

Fe

i Ei
E!9

E?

iE

E iE
SE i

l

11

ti

d-
:t"i_, .:
q;:;: e !i

r iHi :a bi

S lli;$;E
rqi"E[:i]
H lEi:i:,t
e lil:;:i!"

J:

rYg Iil E;Fo-**;
> [sf
- E--
LL;P5
O; Efi>3 3F'P
-;

;t6
teltt
ii

rl'-
.!i:l
: liia I( 3i!; )

r {!!E! I] ;i;BE,
I !:|E! r

i i!E:iE I

!ryry1

Tt
.t
.l:

a

3
6
t

,rc

:,-
i!ii

3
1, , .
!: iiri: !rt
!;i i::
i!i 

'l;i1:i!!ilii
;r;i"iri
iiil iil

E'!r! r:5

il

t
E

I

dl
ilE

7
-;-

,
!

f

-'i
:l

!3

air



EXHIBIT ''2''

oty of

Crlifornia

Bids received by: Aimee Osuna, Public Records Analyst

Were opened at: 400 S. lmperial Ave, Suite 102 on: May 22,2025

,{n BID Opening Acl
BID No.2025-06

ATEN RD AND IMPERIAL AVENUE SEWER [INE
REPTACEMENT PROJECT PHASE 2

By: hrw 03uru I
Witnessed by: Signature

( e-n t C,-iere-ra

Rcv'g, $ r, r?e 553 oo

Bids were given to IGOe:r-ero\e^
recommendation for City Council.

Da

,J

for study and

Company Bid Bond

L/
Total Bid Amount



D-a
DATE SUBMITTED

SUBMITTED BY

DATE ACTION R-EQUIRED

5128t25

PUBLIC SERVICES

6t4t25

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda Item No.

COUNCIL ACTION
PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED
RESOT,UTION
oRDINANCFt ts' RF.ADIN(i
ORDINANCI' 2- RI'ADING
CITY Ct-ERK'S INITIALS

(X)

st-rBJ[( l DISCUSSION/ACTION:

1. lnfluent Fine Screen Membrane Seal Retrofit for Wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP) Headworks

DFPARTMFNT INVoI VFI): PUbIic SeTv.ces

BACK(;ROUND/S(]N,,IMARY:
The \r'WTP Headworks screenang units, originally installed in 2015, require a relrofil to prevent further debris from ent€ring lhe MBR
(Membrane BioReactor) system. Although an improvement at the time, our curenl screening does not meet lhe requiremenls of a
treatment plant with membranes installed.

WWTP staff has been spending a great deal of time physically removing deb.is from the membrane cassottes, but they are fighting a
losing battle. Debris is building up on the membrane surface, which has led to multiple emergency mombrane repairs. Furthermore,
the debris is causing ineversible fouling and damage to the membrane fibers, which is shorlening lhe lifespan of the membranes.

The manufacturer, Huber Technology, recommends this rekofit for all membrane systems for a n€ar 100% dobris capture rale. The
screening unils curently installed at the City VVWTP are nol used for membrane systems, as their capture rate is only 80-90o/o.

Approval of this item will allow acquisiton of two sc.een retrofit sels, with professional installation included.

FISCAL IMPACT
$158,336.74

Funds to cover associated costs will be expended from enterprise funds
(Wastewater).

FINANCE
TNITIALS ut6

S IAFI R I]COM ME\ l)ATION

Approve Request DEP'I.. INIl'IALS

IlIANA(;ER'S RECOMMI NDA-[IoN

CITY
MANAGER s

INITI I-S
ottu

Y.P"ot
NIOTI0N

APPROVED 0
DISAPPROVIJD 0

RI:Jt:( ll,t)
l)l,FI RRIt)

(

(

)

)

REFIRRED 11)

SECONDED:
AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT:



HUBER Technology, lnc HUEER
-EEIIEEEEIIWASTE WAIER Sorutrons

Billing Address

City of lmperial

420 South lmperial Avenue

lmperial, CA 92251

UNITED STATES

OFFERi cr 000719 / v1

lmpenal. CA

Oelivery AddreE8

Cily of lmperial WWTP

701 East 14lh Street

lmperial, CA 92251

UNITED STATES

customer No- 114413

Dale print€d:

Our Reference

Phone:

Ernail:

sr'8n5
Price O2rn€nt

+ 1 -704-99G2409

Price.Ozrnentlahhusa.nel

Customer is responsible for the following prior to Huber's technicjan arrival;

(1)Removal of Huber macfiine from channel,

(2)Pressure washing of machine. and

(3)Providing lijling equipmenL

Failure lo do so will result in additional c*larges of $1,000 per day Huber is onsrt€.

Pos Quantily Ljnir hem

Dcscriptlon

Price llSO Total USD

rar (%)

lln 2.00 pcs

2011 2.00 pcs

3ol1 2.00 pcs

4Ol1 2.00 pcs

5011 2.00 pcs

60/1 2.OO pcs

7011 20.00 pcs

80/1 2-00 pcs

10486428

rising dpe 355x1783 Ro2 1400 P.1 (PU)

10000001

Bafie Pbl€ Tank 1400 Ro2 PUR V4A

10018798

bearing seat sqe€n basket RPPS 1 400 PU

10018807

drtling dab/bearing seat Ro2/1400

10018808

distance plate 453x 356x 2 9xbo7

100r 8809

dastance date 453x 356x 3 $607

703095

oountersunk scr* ISO 14581 M 6x 16

100187S,1

tread surface Ro2'1400 dl000 01355 L106

10018854

14,23r.96

5,540.33

17,801.89

1,128.42

214.33

u8.47

0.76

11,000.93

26,161.92

7.75%

13,080.65

7.75%

35,603.78

7.75%

2,256.U
7.75%

544.66

7.75Yo

696.gir

7.75yo

15.20

7.75%

22,001.86

7.75%

,459.68

HUBER T.chn.,k cy, Inc.

1@9 ArL Prl*.t . O.nvr. NC 2803,
Pno. OOa)9aF1O1O. F O(x) 94s1r20. rtuh.Ohr@n.r. Mj!!..],..h.6bsy.s

90n 2.OO pcs

A ft.6b.r ot lh. HUAER Group

229.84



HUBER Technology, lnc HUEER
EEIIEqEEfl

I{AST€ IVATER So !nons

ct000719
518t25

217)

Po3 Quantity Unlt hrm
O.scription

Price USD Total USO

Tar (%)

10011 2.00 pcs

11011 2.00 pcs

12011 2.00 pcs

'130/1 2.00 pcs

14011 1.00 pcs

14012 1.00 pcs

140/3 1.00 pcs

dat€ ,111x 60x 5 2xm"

10018852

date 226x 60x 5 3xS0'/2xM5/ZM8

10018895

Z-pronle 551 4l 5x 60 2ho12nxMg

10018897

Cate 570x 101x 8 1x9o'/1to'|8/1xsh12(18

10018896

plat€ 501x 60x 5 2x90'/6)6o

10000002

Eslimat€d Fmight Arld lrport Outes

10000002

Labor Tedr *1 40/16

10000002

Labor Ted! *2 40/1 6

252.05

266.91

297.'12

281.74

15,500.00

13,475.00

12.650.00

50,(.18

7.75y6

533.82

1.75%

59/,.21

7.75vo

563.48

7.75%

15,500.00

't3,475,00

7.750/o

12,650.00

7.75yo

Total nat

lncludlng Sales Tar
Total gro3a

USD

USD

USD

146,948.26

11.388.48

158,336.7,r

The quotaton is slbject to nalional or inlematonal eport control reguladons and arbargoes or any other export restriclions.

Valid lor: 90 days

Ddivory: prepaid and add

Paynent terms: Nel30 days

Best regards

Price Ozmenl

Hubcr Tcchnology, lnc.

HUBER T..hndol,, le.
1oooArt Prtf,.o.rd Nc 2&)!7

Phd. (7orr) 9491010 . F.r {70,1)9,r+1@0. tub.r@nh{E,n.l. w,hub.r-r.cnnololr.ffi

A i.mbd oa r,r. HUAER G..!9

Ol' .i
Date printed:

Page:



HUBER Technology, lnc HUEER
IErIi[EIEEf,

WASTE WAYER iol,tons

Otf.r:
Dale printed

Pag€:

c't000719

518125

3 (7)

Aftermarket Sales & Service Rates 2025

Travel

Travel (time)...

Mileage.........

Manufacturino/Enoiheerind Seruice6 in house

SeNices include failure analysis of returned hardware

Premlum Rate6

Overtime rate (in excess oI8 hours per day.

Slandby rale. . . . . . . . . . . .

Oouble time rate (Sunday, Holiday, or in excess ot 12 hours)

Exoenra3

Travel and accommodations..............
Per Diem................
High Cost Area Rate 2..

Servace Truck Rate ...

Materials, Equipment Renlal, Supplies.

Laboratory testing.....

......... t 1,t0.00 per hour

......... t0.5E per male

l'145.00 per hour

$249.00 per hour

Applicable base rate

....... $300.00 per hour

.... Actual cost
....Business Rate Plan 1.. $60.00 per day

t70.00 per day
.... 980.00perday
.... Actual cost pluE 20%

..... Actual eost plus 20%

Fae6

Visa, work permits, taxes, user lees or special assessments, etc.. Actual co3t

Cancellelion Charoes

Praor lo departure for travel expenses incurred (i.e. aidine / change fees)................... Actual cost

HUaER r..rr.o*{y, lm.
1 oog ad. Prh*.y . osrd, rc 23037

Pho. (704) 94e1010. Fu (7lX) 9491O20. txb.r€'hh@..1 . m.hubr-L.h.orogt.@m

A h.mb* oa lh. HUBER Gr6up

FI.ld S€rvice Bei. Retas

Continental U.S., Mexico and Canada........ 3150.00 per hour
Outside Continental U.S., Mexico and Canada......................... 3226.00 per hour

Trainino

Produd Training....... 1150.00 per hour



HUBER Technology, lnc HUEER
IErIiEqEEU

WAST€ WATER Sor!to.s

Off.r: C100O719

Oate printed: 5lqn5
Page: 4 (71

Aftermarket Sales & Service Rates 2025
ElrEr!!rl!!]BllrL&. Rates ar€ calculaled lrom hs day lh6 Seruice tlll.dslr.Leqdllr.
Specialisi departs Huber Tectnology, Hunte6v(e, Nonn Carolina until $e day Huber T€chnology, lnc. rcs€ry€s fle dghl io recall ils personnel lf the

the SeNice Specialisl relums lo Huber Te{rnology, krc. Huntetsvile, North workste does nol meet govemmenlrl healfi and safety standads.
Calolin!. Fltar indude weekends and holidays- lf . S€ryic€ Sp€salisi is requtred linlmuln D.llv ch.r6.. For a[ Fi€ld S€rvie Be* Rates or cornbihetions

to krvel lrorn any otier localion, induding, Gem.ny the ml€s are calculaled of Base Rales. lhe minimum lee wil be tor eighl (8) hot rs. lf servic€s ,re
lmm whan $e Seruice Sp€cblisl depaG lhe holrle ofice unlil the day lhe pedorned on th6 srm6 day Es tEvd, travd lime will be baed in additkrn

SeMce Specialin retlms to the ho.ne oitce. lo s€ ice tme.

&!rl rim6 ,ndldes lraNporlalion lo and fio.n th€ atpo.l. s€orrit dearanc!, oErlim. The ov€rtmo rala apdi63 io {o.( or ravd in exc$s ol eqhl (E)

lim€ bel'i/c€n iighl chang€s, drMng lime and local travd lo and no.n wo.ksiie. houE p€. day (w€ekday6) and all Satu.day work Worida),s in exc€ss ot
T€vel lime 

'n 
excess of erght {E) hou,s may b€ billed al the p.em,um rate. ( 1 6) hours arc p.ohibaled. S€Mce sp€oallst arc NOT requrcd lo pedom,

DdU. Iim. Any Sunday o. R.cognlz.d Hub.r T.drnology, lnc. Holid.y. andmaydacln8.wo,n€xc.Rscr,lw€lv€(12)houGTh6ovedime

IEorEda!$rThe crslqner is responsibh fo. rcmbursng Hube. Technobgy. charge sha{ b€ at o'e bas€ raie plus a or'€ h'r.dred p€rcent ( 1 00%)

lnc. ror all llansporl,ailx| chaq€s associal€d wilh s€wice wo . Fhghis wil be pr€maum.

booked as coach-tdrisl dass l]nhss t is unavailade. Rentalcar, qas,laris, airport R.codnir.d Xub.r Tmh.olod. lna Holld.B Nsw Yeals Day, Good

/ holel limousines, company or p€Gonal vehicl€s N/iI be used when neces$ry. Fdday, Memond Oay, lndependenc€ Oay. Labor Oay, Thantsgivng Day,

Elalllllllll!. Arplies lo ule lime a Seruic€ Sp€clalisi s availaue lor wo and is the Friday ail6l Thanklgiving Day, Chnsunas Eve aod Chtuiras Oay.

locaied at or near ine job site but unable lo wolk due to cirormslances beyond his E!!!!t!Il The clsio.ne. is rcsponsrHe lor ltL expenses assooated wltr
control. Time shall b€ considered time woi(ed and will be darced al the applicable sewace wodc All t6vel epens€s ,nduding arrfare, taxr, mileage for

base orpranium rale. pe.sonalor company o*n.d vohid€s or any oth€rcnauffeured vehi.l€,

A.6ft,n6d.lionr .nd ra..l.. Meah are crtarged al S60.00 per day or $70.00 pel living accommodatio^s and meak wil b€ hvoiced. lnvoices

day d6p6ndif,g on the area (See Business Rale Plan I and 2). ll Bn ovemight stay wi indude a cosl

ls r€qured the arsromer is requred to.eimbuFe Huber Technology. lnc' for b.eaki n. Copies ol rcc€Flswilnotbe tumished unbss speofralt
lodging cha€es. Hot€l roo.ns wil be booked oi a busitr€ss execrrlrve single requested. Ongrnal receipts cannol be provided. Receipts ror under 525.00

ocorpanc] basb. ennot be p.ovded. Us€ of p..sonal or co.npany oM€d vehides will b€

Vrr-trqrtfltoiL4ccdlllE The custofr€r ls rcsponsob lo pay any and mvdce at &e rate set by IRS mrhage regulatioas.

al t tes, user lees or sp€cial ass€6srEnts. ll a vlsa or erorl p€rm[ ls raquned P&rn nt Al li.ld s€rvrce rnwices are In U.S. Cunency and aX p:ymenls

belore depaning for an intemato.al ass'gnmenl. he fee wrll b€ charyed lo ine mLlst be in U.S. Oola6. Paunent 6 d!€ NET 30 OAYS hom the data

cuslomer al aclual@st (induding any etped,Ung charges). orinvde.
lv.dntl6. Par Hlber Tedndogy, lnc. s Iems and Condilions or Sale, Hub€r Purche CH.B- A purchas€ o.d€. ls rcquired BEFORE any fidd
Tectnology, lnc. waranis Field S€Mce wolk pedo.med al sile. '&eacr' of Wananly"seryice arangements w(l b€ made. The purchase order s to be made oli
dsims do not €nritle lie c1istomer to reluse paymeni for lield servEe work. lo l"luber Tachnology, lnc. and musl conlam lhe lo[Ning inlomalion:

HUBER TECHNOLOGY, lNC. MAXES NO OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR 1) Cuslom€''s nam6.2) conpany. 3) Ullng address, 1) daies ol

IMPLIEO, WTH REGARD TO THE OESIGN, SALE. MERCHANTABILIry OR seruice, 5)type ol s€Mce rcquested (i.e. insiaflalion.

FTTNESS OF THE GOODS FORA PARTICULAR PURPoSE OR UsE ExcEPT AS commissioning, lrcubl€shooii.g, rlaining, etc.),6) sedalnumber

EXPRESSLY SET FORTH lN HUBER TECHNOLOGY. INC. STERMSANO / modelnumb€r, 7) €qtlpmenl purcnase oder number. and 8)

CONOITIONS. HUBER TECHNOLOGY, lNC. lS NOT SUSJECT TO ANY OTHER equiFnent tag numbeB. A 'cooliming-€opy" purcnase order must

OBLIGATIONS OR LlaBlLlTlES ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT OR folow any p.eliminary ara.gemenis. Equrpmenl loelion rnduding

WARRANry, TORI CLAMS INCLUOING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LlABlLfrY, city, state, dant sde, dir.clions to ihe s,le. a local contact and

OR ANY oTUERTIIEORIES OF LAW. HUBER TECHNOLOGY, lNC. lS UNDER tdephone nomber musl abo be indud€d.

NO EVENT LIAaLE FOR ANY SPECIFIC, INOIRECT, INCIOENTAI OR 2) Arnended Purcbs€ Orders. An ame.ded PO is requted if s€rurc€s

CONSEOUENTIAL LOSS. OAJ\IAGES, EXPENSE.INJURY. OISMEMBERMENT, are erlended beyo.d thc cost or ihe ongmalPO.ll0E SeNrce

OR DEATH OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER. Specialin i5 on sile and an amendmsnt is.eq!rcd. he PO mlst be

SqEEqlJl|!|G=llIortilrlE oti.& Requ€sl,o' field s€N,c€ should b€ comdeled End slbrnrtted to Hub€r Ieci'nobgy. l.c belo.e f'e
(t:de in wnhg (lelte.. far or e{ail) lo Hlbd T6ch.ology, lnc. al l€asl ten (10) Servic€ Sp€oalisl ca^ co.linue i,o.kr.g.

rctung d6ys Frq !o the date lo. whrh seNr@s a.e ,eqlesred. Codimarim a.diabL Lr. any purchas€ order acrepted t!, HutEr Technology. lnc
ot lhs sotuica wll be conveyed verbalv by Huber Tedrndog!. lnc in conjuncton *ith Fi€ld S€Mce $rort. shal be deemed to havo b€o.

ld.urrnc.- AI Buber Technology, lnc' S.ryics Speoali6rs a.s insu.ed. Liab{ily execded, deliverod and accepl.d in lhe Slale of Norlh Carolina, USA and

msuranc€ cediricares may be p.ovrden upon requesl by lhe cllstorner in oder to shall b€ govemed. conslrued and enlorced puEuant to tre laws of lh€

allow for suflicieni rirneforddment proc6sin0,lhe rcqu63l must b€ madeal Slale of Norlh Carclina, USA

leasr seven (7) workiig days prior lo the dale of selvlc€s.

Hlber Tectnology,lnc. can not ofier lired lump sum conrracrs ro. Field Service actvrries. The dulation ot sile visilaiion is nellher under our dtect @ntrol

nor i^iusncc, and as such we Bn only prcvlda estimatB olrime on-site lo afiecl the requared servic€ aclro.s. Fi€ld s€rvic€ puHished rat6 and lenms are

valid through December 2025

HUAER T.dn&gy, lE
1(E9 A . PrlM, . O{E NC 2&17

Fhd (t04) ealro1o . F& ooa) ea*1@0 ' ha{lnhena . k hb..-r.h.obgy.6

a h.nbd ., rh. HuaERG.ouF



HUBER Technology, lnc HUEER
IEEIIIEIEEE

IYASTE WATER 5ol!t onq

Off.r:
Date prinEd

Page:

c100071s

518t25

s (7)

Warranty and Returns Policy & lnstructions
Huber Technology, lnc. ("Hubef) wananties any original Huber part (mechanical or eleclrical) for a period ot:

A. Twetue (12) months from the date ol purchase and only when part(s) are installed by a Huber factory trained

technician. Should the part(s) fail within the wananty period, a replacement shall be supdied at no cost to the owner
('Replacement Part")

1. Only valid i, the produd is operated in accr.dance with the manulacture/s instruclions.

2. The replacement pad(s) must not be modilied or changed in anyway.

3. The replacement part(s) musl be installed by a qualified person to the manufaclurer's specilications

Or

B. Three (3) months from the date of purchase and/or installed by a non-Huber fac{ory trained technician.

1. Only valid if the product i$ operated in acclrdance with the manufactureis instruclions

2. The replacement part(s) must not be modiUed or changed in anyway-

3. The replacement part(s) must be installed by a qualified person to the manufacturer's specifications

This warranty does not apply to any damage or defect arising out of any ofthe following circumstances

' Part(s) needing repair or replacemenl due to events or circumstances outside ol normal use and operation

of the equipment.

' Pa.t(s) or components damaged due to power surges, shod circuits, loss ol power, lightning strikes,

lire or water damage, vandalism, thelt, or any other causes outside of no.mal use and operalion ol

the equipment or lhat would normalt be covered by casualty insurance on the equipment.
. Damage or detects caused by neglecr, inconed application, abuse, or by accidental damage ol the

parts or @mponents.
. Repair or replacement ot part(s) or components due to improper or negligent operation of the equipment.
. Damaqe or detecls to the part(s), component(s), or equipment caused by the attempted repair by an

unauthorized or unqualified person.

This warranty of original Huber Service parts does not include the labor to remove the defeclave part nor the

labor to install the new part. All labor costs associated with lhe replacement ot the part is the respon3ibility ol
the owner. The request for assislance of a cerlilled Huber technician is available upon the issuance

of a purchase order by the owner. The fee lor the assistance of a Huber technician includes labor

(billed at prevailing Huber Faeld Service Base Rates) plus associated expenses for travel to and from the jobsite.

Retum of New Wear or Spare Parts

a m.nb- oa rh. HUBER GTooF

All Huber parts warranties are non- transferable, and cannot be sold, assigned or transfered in any other way.

. tury original Huber part(s) returned to Huber after a purchase order has been submitted is subjec{

to a flat t\f,enty percent (20%) restocking fee for each parl retumed.
. The customer has up to thirty (30) days to return a part from the purchase order submittal date to Huber.

Retums wlll not be accepted pa8t thlrty (30) dayE.
. Part(s) must be new and never installed. Any andacation ol wear or installation, at Huber's sole discretion,

may result in the part(s) being shipped back to owner, al the owner's cost, and no credit shall be issued.

' Ercoption:
The owner may exchange, withoul a restocking fee, if the incorrect part(s) is delivered and/or sold to the

,*",.ilTL""lffi.l[,*,
md. Oo4) 94t1010 . F& (704) sa91o2o . t!b.r(lahlg..i . e rEb.i-bd'hdosy.@m



HUEERHUBER Technoloqy, lnc

-EEIIIEIEETWASTE WATER 5o lrr on5

Offer: C 1000719

Date pdnted: 518125

Pag6: 6 (7)

owner by a Huber team member. Huberwill ship the correct part(s) to the owner expeditiously. A refund will

be issued to the owner upon Huber's receipt ofthe incorrect part(s).

warehouse.

The customer may retum, without a restocking fee, any original Huber part(s) if said part(s) was sold

as part of a complete rebuild and the Huber technician conduded the part(s) were not needed. The customer

has thirty (30) days lrom the date the service was completed. Afler lhirty (30) days have expired, the normal

Huber restocking fee shall apply.

HUSER T.chndogy, lnc,
lmg aid. Pdtw.y 'D.nv* NC 23037

Phon6 Ooa) 94910r0 . Fd O0,l) 9,191020 . tub.@hhus.n.r . w.hub.ri.dMdosy-@m

a n.n6* ofrh. HUBER Group



HUBER Technology, lnc HUEER
IErIITIEET

WASTE WATER So ut ons

Olleri
Date prlnted

Page:

c1000719

518125

7 11)

Warranty and Returns Policy & lnstructions
Retum of D.maged , Oefective hems

Contacl the Huber Technology Attermarket Sales Team and request a Retum Merchandise Authorization ('RMA") number.
. Completely lill out the RMA form.
. lndude the completed RMA fom in the package along with the item(s) to be returned.
. Write the RMA number conspicuously on the outside ol the package to ensure proper routing upon

receipl by the Aftermarket Team.
. Ship the package to:

o o Huber Technology, lnc,
Aftemarket Sales and Service
1009 Airlio Parkway

Denver, NC 28037

Phone: 7O/+.874.E237 Fax 70,{.E96.2830 Email: service@hhusa.net

HUEGR Tcchndosy. |tu.
1009 Ai,rc Proay . o.tua, r{c 28037

Phm. (704) 94E1010 . Fd 00a) 9481@0 . h!b.r(!hh@n.1. ,w-hob.rlochnololy.@

. ln the event of a damaged or defective part, the return process can olten be expedited by providing

a digital image of the damage or delecl (along with a dear description of the problem) in an email to

the Huber Aftermarket Team ("Aftermarket Team") at the following email address: returns@hhusa,net,

The phone and fax numbers Ior Alterma.ket Ieam are: 704.990.2045; Fax: 704.896.2830.

Huber reserves the right to inspect in person even if a digital image is provided as outlined above.
. lf the damage or defect cannol be verified over the phone or via email contact, the item may be

required to be returned to Huber Technology, lnc. for inspection before a determination can be

made as lo the state of the producl.
. The Aftermarket Team will validate the wananty claim for the deleclive part.

. lf the Aftermarket Team determines that the part is under wananty and should be replaced, the

Aftermarket Team will provide a Return Merchandise Authorization ("R[rA') number and a shipping

address to the Customer for lhe return of the defective part.

' The Customer shall ship the part to the specilied address with the RMA number listed on the outside of

the package.

. When the warranty part has been repaired (or replaced) by Huber, the parl will be shipped to the'shilto"
address included in the RMA informalion provided by the Customer.

Return shippino cost

. ONLY in the event that an inconecl part is sold lo the Customer by a Huber team member, will Huber pay for

shipping. The Customer will be provided with a prepaid return shipping label.
. UNDER ALL OTHER CIRCUMSTANCES, the Customer retuming the part(s) is responsible for any freight costs

incurred for returniog the part(s).

. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE will Huber reimburse (or provide credit) lor return shipping costs incurred by the

Customer.

How lo Reouesl an RMA {Return Merchandise Authorization)



I

t-:

-
II

l-{l
Ert:!{

,i
I

[]

E
I

_-=:=:

I

L-

x I
I

i)

T-1

rl

I
I
I

J

r$

i. id

,,,,|

7 t f

I

-

I

7

i

r



!l{

.-:r

.t -at
I

a

I

! tf

I
E

+
I

l.



,U,

)

F-

-5

I l
a

N

_--a

I1

.i

,I
5

tt
--

__

t-

w \

-;4tZ-

I

I

U
Ir

I

;
i7

7
77

t

\
\

-----

7+..

.Z

-/



t)A t Ft suuMl n ED

SI]BMII'I1:I) BY

May 2ll. 2025

.lun. {. l0l5

IMPERIAL CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM

Agenda Item No.

COI JNCII A(-TIO\ (X
PURl.lC HEARIN(} REQUIRITD ( )

Rl_sot.uTloN ( )

I)ATE AC I IoN REQT IRI]D
ORDINANCE ISI READINC
ORI)INANCT'- 2\D RI.,ADINC
CITY CI-ERK'S INITIALS

SI]BJI.]CI I)ts( t lsstoNin (-fIoN

APPROVAI- oI] RESOT-UI'ION 2025.I6 ADOPTINC IIIE PROJIJC'I't-IST FOR T'ISCAL YI]AR 2025-
26 IT]NDED BY SBI-

RI]SoI,(;TION oIT IIIE CII'Y (.oINCIL ()IT IIIE CITY oI IMPERIAI,. CALIIoRNIA
ADOP I ING A I-IS I ()I PROJI:('I S FOR I:ISCN L YEAR 2025-16 I:t]Nt)ED BY SI} I : THE
ROA[) RIPAIR A:\II) ACCOI,NTABILI I'Y ACT OF 20I7,

I)I'IPARTMI,N I INVOI.VI:l): COMMLTNII Y DEVELOPMTINT DEPAR IMENT

BACKCRoI JND/SUMMAItY

On April 28. 2017 thc Covemor signcd Senate Bill (SB) | (8eall. Chaprer 5. Statutcs of 2017). which is kno$n as the Road
Repair and Accountabilit) Act of 2017 to address basic road maintenance. rehabilitation and critical salety needs on both the
state highway and local strcets and road system. SR l: increascs per gallon lucl cxcise taxcs; increases dicscl fuel sales taxes and
lehicle registration feesi and provides for inflationar,v adjustments to ta\ ratcs in future ycars.

A percenlagc ofthe Road Maintenancc and Rehabilitation Account {RMRA) funding will be apponioncd b! formula to eligible
cities and counlies pursuant to Streets and llighuays Code (Stlc) Scction 2032(h) lor basic road maintenance. rehabilitation. and
critical safety projects on thc local s(reets and roads system. The City ivill reccive $599,654 in RMRA funds lor FY 2025-26.

Prior to receiving RMRA lirnds from the Controllcr in a fiscal )'car. the Cil) must submit to the Commission a list of projects
proposed to bc lunded $ith these funds as shown in Resolution 2025-16.

l)lcase rctcr to ElLiEilj (RESOLIjTION NO. 2025-16) and Exhibit B (Projected FY2025-26 R€venues) attachcd herewilh
l-or delails.

I)nrlcct Iist is as lbllows:

Project #l - 7'h, l0rh, & l{rh Str€et Rehrbilitation Project
Project #2 - Old SR-86 Rehabilitation Project within City l,imits
Project #3 - Aten Blvd. Rehabilitation Project between Old SR-86 and SPRR Tracks
Project #{ - 'P" Strect Rehabilitation Phase I between Aten Blvd. and Roserito Drive
Project #5 - Aten Blvd. Rehabilitation Project between SPRR Tracks & Clark Road
Project *,6 - City Streets Rehabilitstior Project

l;lS( Al l\ll'.\( l: 5599.65{ in Slll R\,lRA funds ti)r I:Y 1025-16 ADMIN
SIJRVICES
SI(;N INITIAI,S iM5

S I ,\FF RI]('0\{\IE\ I).\ IIo\
Statlrecommcnds approval ofResolution 2025-16 adopting the proicct list lbr nscal

)ear 2025-2026 l'undcd b) SB l: Thc Road Rcpair and Accounlabilil! Actoi20l7.
l)l,PLINIIIALS

a44^rr!-
CI IY
MANACER's
INI IIALS

Dt]-n

MoTIO\

API'RoVED ()
I)IS PPROVI-I) ()

(

(

)

)

stlcoNDt-tD
AYI]S:
\ YES:
AI]SF-NT: RI:l'l.ltRI:l) lo

RL.JIiL I |l)
r)t_tt.Rtil.t)

COMMI]NITY
DT'-VF,t-OPMI--N I'

DIRI.]C IOR
OTtIoN MORA

D-Lp

0a_
MANACIiR'S ITECOMMIiNDATION :



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-I6

RESOLTITION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 FUNDED
BY SB l: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 20t7

WHEREAS, Senate Bill I (SB 1). the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5.

Statutes of20l7) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 to
address the significant multi-modal lransportation funding shortfalls statewidel and

WHEREAS. SB I includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the

residents ofthe C ity of Imperial are aware ofthe projects proposed for funding in our community and wh ich
projects have been completed each fiscal year: and

WHEREAS, the City of Imperial must adopl by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive

fiscal year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB I,
which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the

project's completion, and the estimated useful life ofthe improvement; and

WHf,REAS, the City of Imperial. will receive an estimated $599.654 in RMRA funding in Fiscal

Year 2025-2026 from SB I : and

WHEREAS, the funding from SB I will help the City of lmperial maintain major streets and

roadways throughout the C iry" this year and several similar projects into the futurel and

WHEREAS, without revenue from SB I , the City, would have otherwise been postponing or
canceling projects throughout the community; and

WHEREAS, cities and counlies own and operate more than 8l percent of streets and roads in

California. and from the moment we open our front door to drive lo work. bike to school, or walk to the bus

slation, people are dependent upon a sale. reliable local transportation network: and

WHEREAS, the local street and road system is also critical lor larm to markel needs

interconnectivity, multimodal needs. and commerce: and

WHEREAS, the 2023 Califomia Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment found that

the City streets and roads are in very poor condition and this revenue will help us increase the overall qualily
ofour road system and over the next decade will bring our streets and roads into excellent condition; and

WHER-EAS, if the Legislature and Covemor failed to act, city streets and county roads would have

continued to deteriorate, having many and varied negative impacts on our community: and

WHEREAS, modernizing the local street and road system provides well-paying construction jobs

and boosts local economies: and



WHEREAS, police, fire, and emergency medical services all need safe reliable roads to

react quickly to emergency calls and a lew minutes ofdelay can be a matter ollile and death: and

WHEREAS, maintaining and preserving the local street and road system in good condition

will reduce drive times and traffic congestion, improve bicycle safety. and make the pedestrian

experience safer and more appealing. which leads to reduce vehicle emissions helping the State

achieve its air quality and greenhouse gas emissions reductions goals; and

WHEREAS, restoring roads before they lail also reduces construction time which results

in less air pollution from heavy equipment and less water pollution from site run-off: and

WHERf,AS, the SB I project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads

infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets infrastructure.

and using cutting-edge technology. materials and practices, will have significant positive co-benefits

statewide.

l. The foregoing recitals are true and correct

The follorving list of newly proposed projects will be funded in-part or solely with Fiscal Year

2025-2026 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:

2

Project #l:
Location:
Description:

Estimated
Useful Life: l5-20 years

Anticipated
Year of
Construction: June 2025

Estimated
Useful Life:
Anticipated

7'h, 10'h, & 14th Street Rehabilitation Proiect
7'h, l0'h, & l4'r'Street between "C" Street and Old SR-86

Scope ofwork includes, but not limited to, pulverization ofexisting pavement and

stabilization by mixing with the underlying materials and additives to create a

stable, homogeneous base and repaving with minimum 3 inches ofhot-mix asphalt,

as well as installation ofthermoplastic striping

Old SR-86 Rehabilitation Project within City Limits
OId SR-86 Rehabilitation Project between Ralph Road and Treshill Road

Scope of work includes, but not limited to. grind & overlay northbound and

southbound of Old SR-86. as rvell as installation ofthermo plastic striping

l5-20 years

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVf,D, that the City Council of the City ollmperial does

hereby resolve as follou's:

Project #2:

Location:
Description:



Year of
Construction: June2026

Project #3:
Location:
Description:

Useful Life:
Anticipated
Year of
Construction: June 2015

Project #4:

Location:
Description:

Useful Life:
Anticipated
Year of
Construction: June l0l5

Project #5:

Location:
Description:

Aten Blvd. Rehabilitation Project between Old SR-86 and SPRR Tracks
Aten Blvd. between OId SR-86 and Southem Pacific Railroad Tracks

Scope of work includes. but not limited to, grind & overlay eastbound and

weslbound of Aten Blvd.. as well as installation ofthermoplastic striping

I 5-20 years

"P" Street Rehabilitation Phase I between Aten Blvd. and Rosarito Drive
"P" Street between Aten Blvd. and Rosarito Drive

Scope of rvork includes. but not Iimited to. grind & overlay nonhbound and

southbound "P" Street, as well as installation ofthermoplastic striping

l5-20 years

Useful Life:
Anticipated
Year of
Conslruction:

Project #6:

Location:

Description:

Useful Life:
Anticipated
Year of

Aten Blvd. Rehabilitation Project between SPRR Tracks & Clark Road

Aten Blvd bet\ryeen Southem Pacific Railroad Tracks and Clark Road

Scope of work includes. but not limited to, grind & overlay eastbound and

westbound of Aten Blvd. as well as installation olthermoplastic striping
l5-20 years

June 2026

City Streets Rehabilitation Project
Various slreel within City Limits bounded in the north by Ralph Road, in the south

by Treshill Road, in the East by -P" Street and the west by Austin Road

Asphalt roadway reconstruction. thermoplastic slriping, sidewalks, curb & gutters.

cross gutter. handicap ramps & bike lanes

l5-20 years

Construction: .ltrne 2026



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED. that failure to meet project delivery deadlines may be deemed as

sufficient cause for the Senate Bill I (SBl) to terminate an agency's project and reprogram State

funds as deemed necessary.

The City Attomey is authorized to make minor typographical changes to this Resolution that does

not change the substance of this Resolution;

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Imperial City Council during a regular meeting this 4tr'day of
June.2025, by the lollowing vote:

.IAMES TI]CKER
Mayor

ATTEST:

KRISTINA SHIELDS
City Clerk

CERTIFICATION

l. Kristina Shields. City Clerk of the City ol'lmperial. Califomia. hereby certifo that the loregoing
Resolulion No. 2025-16 was duly adopted at a meeting of the City Council of said City at its
meeting held on the 4rh day of June, 2025.by the following vote. to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of
the City ol Imperial, Califomia. this 4'h day of June, 2025

KRISTINA SHIELDS.
City Clerk



0-

{IsT
Ls)

\).stsU

(o(.r-

roco(oo@(oo@
_

(toroo@o)(\l
(')-

o)odc',
(o-

oc:

:Co(Ja6ifoF

co, lfr-
oo
N

 
O

r_

F
.

r'* O
,

o(D
s- o_
o(ort

os@
@

-:(o
F

 
ro_

o,a.t
6tc.i

o-
oc!F

.

:(o@(\\tat)
N

-

LO
-

F
-

o^<
o_

(o(\l
(\t-
o,@6Ec=o(JdO

J

o6oF

oN(\l
@

O
):

|.-.
o: @

.
o)-
@

,
N

:

o)@

oco
*>

.

9Bto(J

(o_

o)o)

(O
s(ar:(O

tr)C
,-C

t)
a1 @

:N
 

l.- r+
,(O

,o, 
(.)

o)- o)_.t::(r)- 
N

-:O
t_:l--- 

'a)-
(o(aoot-o:o,t
@

 C
D

:1.-:r:F
:.+

:- 
@

rJ)- --:(Y
, 

: r..)-: (.) :N
_:r 

F
-,

r 
cl: 

:N
: 

:s: 
(')

.C
\

(ot-F
-

f..-
@oNIJ'
odo_@rf_

*-@c',

l'-N(.)-

oT
]o-otrIc-o(-)

a.q2oEoF

NoN

(oN6l

t-N

r:(O
6t,(O
to-:c!-

c!
'c,

co (o:o:@
 or:(\{:(o F

N
 @

 F
:Lar:c!:o (o (o

o)- -_:(O
^:o)-:F

-_: 
-: l\-- o)_

@
 tr),(Y

r:ro -,cD
:F

-:o
rO

 lO
 :!O

: (O
 :- :F

 
: - 

:to
rrr- --:(t 

: !rt-:d) :o{:- 
: c1-

- 
N

: 
:N

: 
:F

: 
:(ON

N
 

(r) l'- 
(.) tO

o, 
@

 :(rr:o :N
aO

-:C
',-:O

r-:@
-:to-

F
- { 

l.- rf, o)

(o (o (0: (', (o
(O

 S
:\t:(o 

tr)
to- F

--:r_, r- 
S

-
o tr):o:s o)
o) (o at:(o rn
N

:r:(O
: 

lOo.D,-
O

q)
zt1
<

F
-J;
dqoo:>=

U oF
.

N
.

F
- N

:(t:N
 

O
) (O

tr)(D
(o:N

(f)o
ry @

- F
-:c'):o:('

o) o:(t:N
:(o:r

s 
aD

 O
r:O

): (O
:$

@
 -_.r:N

- r:(O

6,@dF
.

c!:
or:

F
- c.l 

:

-- 
@

-:

r- O
-.:

F
' 

F
.

F
-- ro_

F
. :C

O

>
-\)d.d

LU
U

F
F

)-<
z

B
igH

<
JJV

d<
<

J
C

o(J(JLU

cD
:rr):F

-:t- o {..o 
o

F
 F

_,$ N
,rr' (O

,\t (O
N

- O
_ (O

-: (O
- C

rr-:O
-: 

C
D

_:(O
-

v.o:(o:(o 
f\ :sr:6J:(o

\t:F
-:-:@

O
O

,N
(r)

JFoFE
3

E
:

tl 
dt

rsc
oa,
tE

(oNNoN

Eotc
6l=
6 

,'a

lo-

!,!.:q,!!0,a\o!ta!rN
dRo\
E

S
6:_qd

B
T

A
U

r

@
:(o:$:sl 

tr) ,(') jrf):-
-:(.r:or: rl) u) -:s 

!.
(O

- (O
-: $-: l--:(O

- 
- (r-: 

(Y
)-: l'_

N
:N

:O
:1.- 

O
):F

:@
:@

o:(f):(o:(., (.).oD
: 

o.,
o, 

,N
, 

(o: : 
<

n_
(o

S
:o:t:(o 

ro F
: rr, O

)
(c,,l-:L):F

- o):1o:N
 -

q):S
,F

 
@

 O
) N

:(O
 N

r,o 
(i:6,rr:(fi:+

 
cci

\f\t,@
W

(O
O

e(r)
() 

: 
:f- 

: 
(" 

,F
: 

--(oooN(olr)(o

(', (fr:(.r:N
 on:oD

:(o:
c{@

llr:\t$O
:(f):

C
, @

:o):N
 <

t F
:(o

tr,:-.:oi:N
 

<
- rj:(\i

N
 F

 @
 @

 O
) C

t,N
o-: 

:9-, 
(o.-, 

,

N
@

:(O
O

rF
:F

-
(O

 O
 tO

 tO
 (O

:\l 
N

o), Lr)-:(\L: $- 
(o-: (O

-: O
-

$ 
r:ra, 

(O
 N

 
aO

:@
@

 c):O
 

(f) o{ aO
,

N
,rr:F

,:t- 
@

 o
(O

 l.- O
) O

) - 
(O

o)- .o- (O
- N

- cD
- O

-
o o.v.ro 

F
-.(o

s s:@
 s (o:o

t.) 
l.- 

cD
 r

@F
.

(o

6r t-
(o s,(o!ooE=

,I

<
a<

<
>

=
<

 
o

F
--.JY

O
l^-o-

<
ttu)>

l-lJ=
F

u=
d&

. irni 
f

(!--.llrlrO
;idO

<
couJrrLr-caF

U

JFoFE
..'

=
:

.E
C

,
tE

t
ooJ
E

ttt 
c

dl=

3E>
{

=-

Fzfo(JFoJooEI

ooooE
,

t,ooo'd0-Iot(Eott,(Eoooo(EooJ o.=3xIrJ

!r-l
Jt <

t
>

t irt
r-:ltur

dllF
rLrat

o

FzoUozl-l

zfoIJclr.t
E= l-l


	6-4-2025 Agenda
	B-1 Warrants Report
	B-2 Award RFP 2025-09
	B-3 PS Vehicle Surplus
	B-4 Reject Bids 2025-03
	B-5 Water Service 604 W Murphy Rd
	B-6 Landscape MD 1 Paseo del Sol & Wildflower
	B-7 Landscape MD 2 Sky Ranch
	B-8 Lighting MD 1 Paseo del Sol & Wildflower
	C-1 PH AB 2561
	D-1 Award Bid 2025-04
	D-2 Sidewalk Survey Proposal
	D-3 Plans & Specs Bid 2025-08
	D-4 Award Bid 2025-06
	D-5 WWTP Headworks Screens
	SB 1 Project List FY25-26

